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Places fdr People isan |

: award-winning placemakmg
‘and regeneration company,

with over 50 years of
experience creating places

 that work for everyone. With

along-term commitment to

 the sustainability of places, =
- we have the capability and

expertise to create and
manage entire places.
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2018/1‘? turnover by mérkét ] |

%

@ Affordable housing 4bo
@ Leisure manageinent _ 19.1
o . Development 15.4
@ Property management
{5‘59 Construction 7.2
) @ Non-social lettings 5.0
& Other 1.4
s . - g - ~
Turnover R : Proflt before tax
Figures shown in Em . lgures shownin Em

nderlylng profit

- @) Nogative goadwill 130.2

119.7

795.1 827.1
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Strategic Report

Turnover

1+ (2018: £754.4m)

1+ (2018: £189.2m)

YI)JOd-E):] 2

Reserves:

1t (2018: £489.6m)

Fixed assets .
Figures showh in€m

4497 453

2016 2017 2018 2019

© 2015

- Reserves

- Figures shown in £m

582.4

280,64 . 288.8

2015* 2016 2017 2018 2619

Homes owned or managed

Figures s_howﬁ in 1,800s properties ~

- : 199 147

J0ist 2016 2017 2018 2019

*These figures are from the previtius years' Bnancial statemenis as reported under ald UK GAAP. The 2014 = 2019 figures are reporied under the new Accaunting Standard FRS102,  —
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New homes " | Total homes owned
started - ormanaged -

2647 (197712
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Strategic report

“Qur approach is based on the quality
of places we create and manage, not
_just the quantity. Our aimis tobuild
neighbourhoods where people want to live
and where communities can thrive.”

During 2018/19, we have continued to build
upon our position as a large-scale placemaker
with the expertise and experience to plan, build
" and manage entire communities, from
development and construction to the
management of all tenures of property.

The Places for People Group now
comprises more than 20 complementary
businesses across a number of property
sectors, in all areas of the UK. We manage
more than 197,000 homes of all tenures, we
operate 127 leisure facilities and we work in
390 local authority areas delivering a wide
range of services.

Over the past year, strong performance in
our core markets of affordable housing and
property management, along with continued
progress in newer markets, such as student
housing, has enabled the Group to deliver
positive returns for our investors, positive
outcomes for our stakeholders, and positive
experiences for our customers.

We are proud to be invalved in a number
of landmark placemaking and regeneration
projects across the UK, such as East Wick and
Sweetwater at London's Olympic Park and
Smith's Dack in North Tyneside. In Sheffield,
our joint venture with Urban Splash at the
iconic Park Hill development recently secured
the green light for phase three, while our
pioneefing partnership with Surrey County
Council is set to bring jobs, growth and
sustainable investment to under-used sites
across the county.

The UK needs more housing, and we
continue to play a key role in reducing the
nation’s housing shortage. In 2018/19, the
Group built and acquired 1,876 new homes and
started a further 2,647 new homes.

Chris Phillips
Group Chairman

Our development pipeline exceeds 25,000
new homes across all tenures.

Our approach is based on the quality of
places we create and manage, not just the
quantity. Our aim is to build neighbourhoods
where people want to live and where

- communities can thrive. It isimmensely

satisfying, therefore, when our efforts to
achieve this are recognised and applauded by
our peers. In the last year, we havewon 14
awards for our wark and been shortlisted,
commended or a runner-up in over 50 other
awards. Highlights include two awards from
the Institution of Civil Engineers for Places
Leisure in Eastleigh, the London Evening

. Standard ‘best development’ award for

Lavender Fields, British Construction Industry
Award ‘housing project of the year’ for
Roussillon Park, and WhatHouse? Award ‘best
sustainable development’ for Roborough.

As a Group, our strategy is'always to
balance opportunity and growth with
exposure to risk. Despite challenging times
and ongoing political uncertainty, both in the

.sectors we operate in and in the economy as a

whole, we have been able to consistently
deliver on this strategy and achieve significant
success. The Group regularly assesses its
future viability. Rigorous stress testing of
various potentially difficult scenarios has been
undertaken and the Group has concluded it
could continue to operate in a variety of
challenging situations.

This year we have seen some changes to

'the Places for Peaple Group board at

non-executive and executive director level.
During the year and owing to ili-health, Jo
Dixon stepped down from the board in June
2018. Graham Waddell, who already held

" other board positions within the Group, was
appointed to the Group board in September
2018 and, following Lynette Lackey’s
resignation from the board in April 2019 after
nine years' service, Graham was appointed
Senior Independent Director. Amjad Hussain
was appointed to the board in November 2018.
In addition Colin Rae, Group Development
Director, stepped down from the Group board
in May 2019. .

| would like to thank our partners, our
funders, and above all, our staff, for the crucial
- role they have played in delivering an excellent
. set of results. Their commitment,
determination and collaboration, both
internally and externally, has enabled us to
continue to improve the neighbourhoods we
manage, support the communities we work
with, and deliver outstandang services to our
customers.
| am immensely proud to be Chalrman of
the Places for People Group, and { look
forward to another year of putting our vision
into action.

Chris Phillips
Group Chairman
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““Delivering social value for our
customers and communities is at the
heart of our approach, across all our

Group businesses and functions.”

2018/19 was another successful year for the
Places for Peoble Group, with a turnaver of
£827.1m (2018: £754.4m) and a profit before tax
of £95.5m (2018: £85.0m excludirig negative
:goodwill). We delivered our plan to grow the
business and strengthen the social impact we
create, while mitigating our exposure ta risk.
Our innovative financing strategy continues to
bring new investment into the Group, which in
.turn, enables us to enhance the scale and the
quality of our business. In April 2019, the Group
retained the highest regulatory ratings for
governance and viability of G1 and V1
respectively, following an in depth Assessment
from the Regulator of Sacial Housing.
_ The Group is committed to placemaking
— developing and managing mixed-income
neighbourhoods and creating communities
that people want. Our approach is summed up
in our brand statement: Places work when they
work for everyone. ' '
We have continued to develop our ability to
deploy our expertise flexibly to create and
manage places and assets in a way few
organisations can; to provide an end-to-end
- placemaking offer that encompasses
everything from homes for both buyers and
renters, through to retirement villages, student
accommodation and leisure facilities.

During 2018/19, we have successfully
integrated affordable housing provider Chorus
Homes Group (formerly Luminus), into the’
Places for Peaple Group, which has
subsequently helped to deliver business
efficiencies and improve performance in
Chorus Homes. We have continued to develop
using traditional construction techniques but
we have also invested resource in modern

David Cowans
Group Chief Executive

methods of construction (MMC) which from our
experience of using this approach on seven
sites over the last three years, we are confident
can help to accelerate housing production in
our business. In 2018/19, orders were placed
for modular housing in Blackburn, West
Lothian and Edinburgh from ModularWise, our
MMC subsidiary.

Collaboration and partnership have been
key themes in our strategy over the past year,

- so we were delighted to be named as one of the

first of eight strategic partners working.with
Homes England to deliver more affordable
homes across the country. We also partnered
with the Universities Superannuation Scheme
(USS) to invest £333m into private rental sector
homes.

Reflecting our strategy to grow our

‘presence in selected new markets, the Group

acquired 50% of the share capital in student
accommodation developer, Alumno Group. This
not only complements Derwent FM, our
existing student business, but will also enable
us to expand our reach in this growing market
and provide a long-term income stream.

" Delivering social value for our customers

. and communities is at the heart of our

approach, across all our Group businesses and
functions. In aur regulated businesses, we
delivered a social value of £79min 2018/19,
while our leisure business delivered £195m in
social value for local authorities through
improvements in physical and mental
wellbeing, educational attainment and
reductions in crime. : .

We supported over 2,700 people into
employment, training or volunteering and'
helped over 82,200 children learn to swim in

Places Leisure facilities. In addition, we helped
5,300 people who were homeless or at risk of
being homeless.

By delivering products and services that
are relevant to our customers and positioning

“the Group to respond ta arange of challenges
and opportunities, Places for People has
reinforced its position as a leading placemaker.

Scrutiny of safety in a housing context has

“been a high profile issue, not least through the
Hackitt Review. We continued to develop our
strong health and safety culture and we
continue to set and exceed demanding
standards.OWe focus on working to improve our
customer experience in everything we da, and
we do not shy away from innovation to help us
achieve our vision, including our use of new
and existing technologies.

We are grateful for the contribution from
all of our board members and, in particular,
those who left us during the year. We manage
succession at baard level carefully and will
continue to recruit for non-executive and
executive roles including for the Group
Development Director role.

- As we look ahead to the next phase in our’
journey, our clear strategy will put our
customers first, provide a solid base from
which to grow our profits, and continue to
create places that work for everyone.

David Cowans
"Group Chief Executive
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Places for People is a lafge-scale
placemaking and regeneration business
with the expertise and capability to
create and manage entire places — from
development and construction, through
to the management and operation of
multi-tenure’properties and leisure
facilities. We deliver social outcomes
by taking a commercial approach -
this is what makes us different.

What we do

Annual Iieporl

At the cors of our broad placemaking offer
is a long-term commitment to the quality
and sustainability of places. We provide
homes and services at every stage of
people’s lives, from students to first-time

‘buyers, right through to retirement.

Our vision

Support ,
Always there to help customers
~and colleagues

Creatmg places
‘that work
for everyone

Positive -
A ‘can do’ attitude; encouragmg
others to achieve

ehcapsulates the Group's long-term ambition,

We wilt do this by building more homes,
developing sustainable places and delivering
valued services.

Our values

The Group’s approach is underpinned by

its long-standing vatues, Qur SPIRIT values
demonstrate what is impartant to us and
haw we believe things should be done.

- Integrity
Always delivering on promises;
being open and honest

.Respect

Treating people fairly and with -
understanding.- :

Innovative

. Opentonew idess; not afraid
of fallure

Online annual report and accounts www.placesforpeople.co.uk/annualreport

Tog'ethér ' :
Believing more can be achieved
by working well with others
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Cre’afihg places that work for everyone

The P_lacés for Peoplé Group has seen a
period of transformative growth in recent

years. We have evolved from'solely providing .

affordabte housing, into a large-scale
"placemaking,.regeneration, property
investment and managément company.
We aim to ensure that our Group
compaanies are leaders in their markets.
What makes us special is aur ability 1o bring

these businesses together to tackle issues -

and create places and assets in a way that
few other org'anisa:'ians can.

Together with our values, this approach
underpins the way we do business —and it
defines the 'Places for People way'.

{n July 2018, the Group was announced as
one of the first strategic partners for Homes -
England. This saw the Group allocated £74m of
sacial housing grant over the nexi three years
to deliver 2,800 additional affardable homes.

Over the past year, we have continued
developing our large-scale placemaking
projects, focusing on the Olympic Park

- Landan; Port Leap in Birmingham; Smith’s

Dock in North Tyneside; Park Hill in Sheffield; -

‘Lakeshore and Dove Lane in Bristal; and
. Gilston Park Estaté in Hertfordshire. '

‘New hamés built

or acquired

Our fund managerment arm, pip Capital,
launched a new fund in partnership with the

- Scottish Government to invest in mid-market

rent (MMR) praperties throughout Scottand.
The fund'will source sites for, and develop
and operate, around 1,000 much-needed new

" MMR homes, providing affordable housing

to people an law and modest incomes.

2641

“New homes . '
starled
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Wher e we operate

Our. geographic strategy assesses .

demand for our services at a verylocal

level, enabling us to prioritise markets o Number of homes

in particular areas. . I SN owned or managed
K ' by region

This approach has become increasingly

important to our growth strategy as the UK . . ’ FastMidlands . 19.39%

' Government has devolved greater powers = - . : . : ' East T 30484
to the nations and cities of the UK. Ithas - o L ) 5 . ' Landon 19.081

. —\H : North east 9.805

helped us'to forge new strategjc partnerships
with local commissioners based on an
understanding of local challenges and -

North west 39.343
NorthernIreland 58

. ; . § Scatiand 14,868
riorilies. This enables us ta'create - - . . . acotene A
4 . Sauth easl 26,855

- products and services that are retevant ’ . ) .
to each place . o . South wesl

OU" major sites and‘ . . & 0% e ) : -‘ ) Yorkshire and Humber
projects include: ‘ ' Co Total 1712

Tbmagrain
Inverness |
Urban Eden
Edinburgh
Smith’s Dock
North Tyneside

"Park Hill
Sheffield

Port Loop

‘Birmingham

Brooklands

Milton Keynes

Duchy Field,
Bletchingdon®
Gilston Park Estate

Harlow

Dove Lane
Bristol . ’

Lakeshore
Bristol

East Wick and Sweetwater
London

Egham

Runnymede

South Ridge Development
Surrey

Squirrel Wood'
‘Basingstoke

Lavender Fislds
East Sussex

Poundbury’
Dorset

Trevethow Riel
Truro

. Development sites,
including joint ventures .

@6@9@@@@@6@@@@@@9

_ Onllne’annual repor(-and accounts www.placés_iotjpe;:_ple.cn.uklannusIreport .
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@

Tornagrain
Inverness
We are'helping to create anew

cammunity on land awned by Moray *

Estates in the Scattish Highlands.

Urban Eden

Edinburgh

As part of the overall development
of 81 homes, phase 2 was launched
in 2018. Sales have been strang
throughout the last 12 months,
helped by a favourabte location and
high-quality specification.

Smith’s Dock -

.North Tyneside -
Work continued in 2018 on Smnlh s
Dock, North Shields, whichis being
delivered in partnership with Urban

" Splash, and will include more than
800 new hornes, Alt our three-storey
town hauses were completed and
soldin 2018, white the Smokehouses

buildings, containing 80 apartmenls. '

were also unveiled,

-Park Hill

Sheffield

Our joint venture with Urban Splash
‘commenced an phase two, which
will see us create a further 200 new’
homes and more cammercial space.
Qurjaint venture with student
developer, Alumno Group, completed
the purchase of the third phase,
paving the way for the creatian of 356
student beds at the scheme,

Port Ldop
Birmingham

Qne of Birmingham's most exclllng
new developments, the

tra'nvsformali,on of Port Loop will

_ see the arearemade into anew .

family-focused waterside
neighbaurhoad. In total, 1,150 new
homes will be created, atong with
‘cormmercial property and
community facilities, on the 43—acre

site clase to Birmingham city centre.

Brooklands

Milton Keynes

1,500 homes are now completed

on Brooklands and a further 1,000 -
are expected to be completed by
2023, Broaklands Square, which
cantains shap units, a gymand

a public square, will complete in
summer 2019,

@

Duchy Field
Bletchingdon

DBuchy Field in Oxfordshire conslsls
of 58 new homes designedina
tradilional‘arts and crafts' style. .

Gilston Park Estate
Hertfordshire -
Site allocatian was secured In the -

East Hertfordshire District Plan,
allowing us to praceed with an autline

- planning application for Gilston Park

Estate, with the aim of delivering
8,500 hames, driving £650m of
Infrastructure investment and
supporting sustainable-ecanamic
growth araund Harlow.

Dove Lane

Bristol .

In May 2018, aur reserved matters
planning applicatians for 230 homes,

retail and office accarnmodation at
" Dove Lane in Bristol were approved

by Bristol City Council, The appraval
untocked a £55m investmentin the.

‘ . site, with the first harnes expected
to be ready in the next 12months, - -

-

Lakeshore

Bristol

The £20m Copper Building at
Lakeshare, south Bristal, reached -
its "topping out’ construction
milestone in August 2018, offering
136 new apartments and brand new,
duptex penthouses. :

East Wick aﬁd
Sweetwater

_London’

The project, a joint venture with
Balfour Beatty Invastments, will
deliver 1,500 hames {including 450

" affordable homes), cammunity

infrastructure, green spaces,
business and creative space, lelsure
and community facilities.

._@"

Egham

Runnymede -

The first development delivered
under the cantract with Runnymede
8orough Cauncil was Egham
Leisure Centre. The new EI9m
venue was completed and passed
to the Council in January 2019. .

®

South Ridge

" Development
: Surrey '

This new 15-year joint venture
with Surrey County Councit aims
lo develop the Council's sites,
creating new homes for sale and
rent (including affordable homes),
econamic growth, jobs and
sustainabte investment. The joint
venture will wark on 15 sites inits
first year, with the potential to
generate 475 homes,

_ Squirrél Wood

Basingstoke
At Squirrel Wood, we launched the
sales and construction phase on

the first ‘Design Your Home' praject. |

Developed in partnership with
Homes England, it will inctude 122

" new homes, Six plots will be for

self-build, with 116 custom-built,

't the buyer's specifications.

®

Lavender Fields
East Sussax

‘Lavender Fields is a devetopment

of 39 homes and in February 2019,
the last home was sold for £1.295m,
which marked the final campletion
of the development. .

Poundbury

Dorset .

Wark also continued at our
Poundbury development in Darset,
the Duchy of Carnwall's urban
extension'to Darchester. 66 houses
are set ta be completed, with the
construction of a further 85 homes
on the development’s narthern
quadrant in the pipeline.

Trevethow Riel
Truro .

This prestigious development

is underway and cantinues our
integrated and collaborative
approach to delivering mixed-
tenure hames. The development
is benefitting from the full range
of the Graup's expertise with Places
for Peaple Homes acquiring and
managing 34 affordable homes,
Residential Management Group
(RMG) managing the established

- parts of the estate, and ZeroC .

delivering 102 homes for rent

or sale.
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Our str-ategy

We invest for the long tefmto create and manage places that work for
- everyone, using the Groups mtegrated solutions to grow our business.
and impact. In doing-so, wé aim to.increase our asset base, profitability,
~ and return on investment. Value for money is at the heart of our s‘trategy.
- We drive efficiencies and synerg:es across our Group of companies
" to provide good customer experiences, deliversocial impact for '

_communities, and build our reputatxon for dehvery

Our three year ;trat.egic objectives are to:
Focus on
long-term
outcomes

- We will invest inthe long term, using the
Group's integrated solutions ta achieve -
long-term commerciat and social outcomes.

_ Ourwork focuses on creating places, products
and services that improve people s lives, now
and inthe future.

| ;Gmw msr |
impact

We will continue to grow our impact so

we can serve more cixst_ameré indiverse

circumstances, This includes delivering more

homes, better customer experiences and

greater social impact for coammunities, through
_warking more éffectively and efficiently and

maximising business synergies.

Grow our
. > !
capacity and
. e s

- capability

We will ensure the Group is constantly
. strengthening and improving its capability

and capacity. This will include increasing -
* our asset base and improving margin and
profitability. This will enable us to continue
to secure competitive and diverse financing

“and respond to changes in our nperalmg
envvronment

Our slralegy will enable us.to accelerate the
production of good quality homes. Over the

" next three years, we will build 2,600 additional

new affordable homes in England as part of aur
strategic partnership with Homes England;

. continue to progress our major placemaking -

developments in Birmingham, London Olympic

. Park, Sheffield and North Shields; and

Increasingly draw in third-party funding to

support our growing pipeline of new hames,
including for our student, specialist supported
and retirement housing businesses. We will .

: commence the first phase of development of

our major strategic landholding at Gilston Park
in East Hertfordshire.

As a Group, we own, manage and-develop .
assets across severat key markets, Qur-
approach has three long-term strands:

I. the long-term ownership and management
+ of assets, including social housmg
propertles

-2. the management of assets on' behalf of

other owners, for exampte, through our.
property management companies; and

.3, acquiring assets, developing their value

and the return they generate, and
maintaining optimal asset churn to boost -
value for the Group. .

Qnline annual report and accounts www.blac_csfgrpeople.co.uk/annualrepon




-

Strategic Report

Delivering value

"Land acquisitionand appraisal.”

Construction or acquisition

aldlc d =

Rent or sale of hames depending
on prevailing ecanomics.

Management of retained homes

and existing PRS portfolio while -

17

o Eﬁ-’é“:é.z s > =% N

“ Fund return paid out to investars,

with management fee payable to
* fund manager.

of new homes. ! v Retaihed inqome reinvestedin
o o generating rental income. the acquisition of new land
- _arfurther homes.
Investor _
Establish investment structure, Commit to fund development. Investment and fund
Source institutional capital, ’ : . : management. -
. N N . )
Places for People
Acquire or pfovide’ suitable sites. Procure and manage I .
Ensure planning obtained. construction, Praperty management,
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Our approach

" Annual Report

We make a long term commltment to places and work to provide the
infrastructure, services and products they need to thrive — whether it -
is new schools, shops, leisure facilities, job opportunities, access to -

Iearnmg and trammg or specrahst suppor’c services.

Our placemaking ethos is reflected inour . ~
business médel. By delivering infrastructure:
3t the outset of a development, both riew
residents and existing communities see and
share the benefits.” .

Building partnerships

We are committed to building effective
relationships with a range of strategic
partners, including local autharities, public
sector bodies and other partner organisations
to achieve a range of regeneratlon and
developmenl goals, .

We have created new mechanisms to

- unlock the value of public land and release

housing supply and regeneration selutions by

bringing our expertise and funding capability

ta these relationships.

Many of the homes in our developmen(
pipeline are being delivered through’
collaborative parlnership arrangements

. and, due to our strong track record, we.were
. - selected as Surrey County Council's joint

venture partner ta develop a portfalio of
sites over the next 15 years.

Online annual report and accounts www.placpﬁforpeople.co.uk/pnnualreport

Strong partf\erships are established on

"a foundatian of trust, good communication,

effective governance, shared objectives and
a sound understanding of local requirements.
We listen closely to aur parinersand
design bespake, placemaking solutions,
individually tailored to the specific needs
of an area, to ensure the creation of strong. .
sustainable places.
Inlight of the current funding constraints
being faced | by local autherities, we anticipate .
that the appetite for strategic partnerships

" and joint venture delivery vehictes will

continue to grow.
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- ‘Ourapproach to
placemaking

We offer arange of praducts and services to
deliver our end-to-end placemaking capability.
We don't just build homes, we create and -

- manage places, and the places we create stand
out. We create places that work for everyone,
fram affordabte housing right through to
homes far sale, all designed to meet people's
needs and aspirations,

OurGroup is a family of specuahst
businesses, each dedicated to offering the

- very best products and services. Together,
we are able to combine the capabilities of our
specialist businesses to offer comprehensive,
integrated placemaking solutions tailored

“to our clients’ needs through a smgle poinl
of cantact.

: Placemakmg and
regeneratlon

Placermaking is in our DNA and we bring '
experience from our awn communmes to help
transform others. .

At the same time, p_ubllc_AsAector bodies
continue to face unprecedented financial
constraints and need to ensure they achieve

" the best returns on the investment of their
assets, while supportirig sustainable
_communities. :

We aim to.deliver a set of long—term.
multi-phase, mixed-use and mixed-tenure
developments that involve a number of the

_ Group's organisations, or joint ventures with
public sectar partners. This will generate

" strong income streams for the Group aver *
time, a strong return on capital employed

. and a secure pipeline of new homes.

"Placemaking &
regeneration

. Affordable -

Fund
management housing
markets we
. .
operate in

» Da(relopment. ‘Property

& construction : management
o N nn . -

“Leisure

management

Affordable housing

:There are five affordable Huusing providers -

in the Places for People Group — Places for

- People Homes, Cotman Housing Association,

Derwent Housing Assaclatlon, Castle Rock .
Edinvar, and Charus Homes.
Chorus Homes Joined the Group in March

-2018 and increased the number of homes

owned and managed by the Graup by over
7,000, as well as providing a new base in
Cambridgeshire. We also have a specialist
supported housing business, Places for People
Living Plus. Collectively, these companies

manage over 66,000 affordable rénted homes, -

We aim to create and maintain sustainable,
long-term tenancies and neighbourhaods
where peaple choose to live and want to stay,
by impraving the efficiency of our management
and maintenance. We enhance our capacity ..
to improve existing homes and lo create new
ones, and achieve this by delivering services
in the most efficient and effective way, and .
identifying and implementing opportunities
for synergies across our businesses.

1dodaM aoueus
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Property management

The private rentat sectar continues to grow,
driven by demographic and ecanomic changes
and there is‘increasing appetite for the type

of professional management service we offer.
This provides opportunities for our property
management businesses lo grow their impact
and work collaboratively with other Group
companies to strengthen our national coverage
and grow our market share,

Building on the Group's successful track
record in this market, we will continue to
grow our property management business
to strengthen our caunter-cyclical business.
New business growth is supported by an
. efficlent and cost-effective back office, the

delivery of excellent customer service and
maintaining a compliant'environment where
-risks are controlled.

Leisure, health and wellbemg

We continue to provude leisure facilities across
the country and prioritise work with eur
partners to baost health and wellbeing. Places
-Leisure has developed a membership structure
that ensures good value for cistomers across
its partfalio of 127 leisure centres. We offer a

range of activities including gyms, swimming,

- persanal training and community clubs,
offering something for all customers according
ta the type of physical activity they wish to
undertake.

" In addition, we work wnlh pubhc health
agencies to provide interventions such
as GPreferrals and welghl managemenl
programmeés, These are designed to reduce
the incidence of major chronic diseases, such
as coranary heart disease, type 2 diabetes,
osteoporasis and many forms of cancer,

N

Development and .
construction

We are commlued to playing our part in
tackling the continuing UK housing crisis by
building more homes and helping to make
home ownership and rental more accessible.
Our development and canstruction businesses
aim to deliver profitable, sustainable,
design-led residential developments,

In our rental development programme,
we deliver social and affordable housing,
including shared ownership, as well as market
rented properties, student housing and extra
care properties.

In our development for sale programme

designed to help mixed income nelghbourhoods‘

work, we deliver traditional general market

sales, together with retirement properties.
Foltowing the Group's successful bid ta

become a strategic partner 6f Homes England,

we have secured new housing grant to deliver .

2,400 affordable homes over the next three
years in England. This has resulted in the Group
significantly increasing its development
pragramme of affordable and social housing.

" Through our investment in Alumno Group,

. which designs and develops accammodation

for students, we will grow our student
business. The first project to be delivered

_with Alumno is Park Hillin Sheffield, with

completion due in autumn 2020.
. Wehave continued to grow our retirement
businesses to meet the needs of older people

" across the income spectrum, from social

and-shared ownership homes, through to
mid-marketrentat-and sales.

Our retirement business; Brio Retiremént .

Living, will soon open its first three retirement
communities, offering purpose-bullt homes ’
and a wide range of support, social and -
leisure facilities.-

Qnline annual report and accounts www.placesferpeople.ca.uk/annuatreport
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In 2018/19, our supported living specialist,

Livind Plus, was awarded a number of tenders
to build and operate affordable extra care
schemes for older people, the first of which :
commenceéd building in 2018/19.

Fund management

Our fund management business, PfP Capitat,
builds on the Group’s wealth of experience
in capital raising, property management,

- development and regeneration, offering

opportunities for investment with exposure

. to arange of residential real estate and

infrastructure projects. PfP Capital is the
first time an organisation of our kind has
established a distinct fund management
capability to assist investors to access the
housing market.

Our strategy is to continue to grow PiP

* Capital, in‘terms of bath the value of assets

under management and by drlvmg increased
returns from its funds




- 'Slraleglc Report

Operating

enwronment

At Places for People, success is built an our
" keen understanding and analysis of the Group's

operating enviranment, It provides a robust
foundation on which to base strategy and °
planning assumplions, and gives us a clear
perspective on the markets and sectors’in,
which we operate, haw they are changing, and
how our business can adapt to capltahse on
any-opportunities this creates.

In the wider economy, growth has been
sluggish over the last two years and angoing
political uncertainties contlnué tocasta

shadow over the econamy's short- tomedium-

" term prospects. .

Demand for housing, for both sale and
rent, continues ta grow. At the same time, -
. demiographic changes, in particular the rising

proportion of older people in saciety, are"
fuelling new patterns of demand, such as the
need for. specialist retirement homes and .
.ancillary support services.

" " The UK Government has consistently
reaffirmed its commitment to increasing the
number of new homes being built, including
‘a-series of targeted pollc:es and funding
streams.

We continue la ‘wark closély wnth
government at all levels to identify

opportunities to _help achieve these ambitions

_ and develop new partnerships to meet the
demand for new homes of all types across
the UK.

The UK G@V@E‘ﬂﬁﬁem has
rmed -

consistently reaf
its commi

- its itment to
increasing the number

of new homes being bmﬁ&

| mcﬁudmg a series
of targeted policies and
funding streams.
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'OPERATING REVIEW

Affordable
housing
P'Iaces-wo'rk when everyone ‘has somewhere to éa_ﬂ'hqme ,

_ The Group manages over 65.000 affordable We are committed toimproving our levels

homes across the UK, We are oné of the of efficiency and delivering value for money
country’s leading providers of affordable - in our core services to allow us to do more,
housing and associated services, - " allowing us to continue to help create and

As a leading provider of affordable homes maintain thriving, sustainablé communities.
we deliver a range of accessible and diverse across the UK.

_ services to our customers.

Online annual report and accounts www.places'orpuaple.qo.uklannualrnpurf
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Key statistics

5\?‘

New affordable
homes delivered

. o
Headline social housing E
. S : ' : - cost per unit of 5
T . 3
. N . ‘ . . . mn

Aﬂofdablg housing

occupancyrate

" Highlights

. . Sprinklerinstallations initiated -
- " atallblocks of six storeys
and above S

/'\.,_‘.

- - Preservation of our tenancies has

©3
) &
improved, with stock turnover a
reducing to just 7.71% “é
Achieved our 2018/19 year-end . &
. arrears targets, despite the 4
. -challenging angaing roll-out
. of Universal Credit

N\
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- The Group
OWIS OF Imanages
197,712 homes,

andhas
“over 25,000
- new homes
~ in pipeline.

Building new homes
During the-past year, we built 851 new homes
for social rent, affardable rent and shared
awnership. In July 2018 we signed a strategic
" partnership with Homes €ngland to boost our
delivery further. The partnership will pravide.
£74m af sociat housing grant over the next
three years to detiver 2,600 additional - -
affordable homes. )

In November 2018, Cotman Hausing
Associalion saw the handover of 35 new homes
for affardable rent at Saxon Way, Fakenhamiin
North Norfolk. The £4.3m development project

was managed by Places for Peaple as partof -

the Homes England programme. As a Group
subsidiary, Catman Housing Assaciation was
able to access £2.3m of recycled grant funding
from Places for Peaple Homes,

All 35 properties have been let to local
people in housing need.

Derby-based Derwent Living built more .
than 300 new homes for sacial rent, affordable
rent and shared ownership. Over the next three
years an additional 375 homes are already
cammitted, with a further 300 in the pipeline.’

In 2018/19, Castle Rock Edinvar completed °

" 113 homes for social rent, 109 homes for mid-
market rent, 29 homes for shared equity and-
39 homes for opén markel sale. The first saciat

rent homes were handed over in Aberdeen and -

Aberdeenshire as part of ongoing collaboration
with ZeraC and Brio Retirement Living.

ple.éa uk/: n '_upnl’l
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_ In partnership with Group company.
ModularWise, 18 modular homes for social
rent are to be delivered to a site we have
acquired at Quentin Caurt, in Scolland.

- Elsewhere'in Scotland, several mid-
market rental homes are being developed )
through a relationship with PEP Capital. To date,
43 homes in Paistey, 85 homes in Edinburgh
and 150 in Glasgow are expected to be

- delivered through the PtP Capital MMR Fund,

with plans to expand this area of the business
and deliver 1,000 mid-market rental hames
threugh the'Fund.

Operational performance

We cantinue to focus on deliveﬁng efficiency

- and improved operatianal performance. During -

the year the Graup headline social housing cost

| per unit reduced from £3,139.to £3.022. The

affordable housing occupancy rate increased
10 99.4% and, despite pressures generated as

" more customers transfer to Universal Credit,

total arrears remained below 3%.

Places for People Homes has refined
its processes and moved to a digital platfarm
for all our sign-ups, which helped contribute

_ towards achieving our 2018/19 year-end

arrears targets.
Derwent Living and Chorus Homes both

" continue to improve performance since joining |
" the Group inrecent years, Jaining the Group-

enabled Derwent Living to reduce interest
costs, which has significantly added to the
surplus before tax. o
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Furthermore, a £5m capital reinvestment
pragramme has made considerable
improvements to its homes. It has funded
renavation wark to kitchens, bathrooms and
roofs, as well as the replacement of boilers
and heating systems. This has reduced energy
“bifls for customers, Despite operatingin a
challenging environment, Oerwent Living
achieved rent arrears in 2018/19 of 2,78%

— significantly below its target of 3.25%.

Chorus Homes (formerly Luminus) joined
Places for Peopte in March 2018, and additional
income generation together with Group-wide
efficiencies have improved its financial
performance in the last 12 manths,

in addition to providing an income recovery
‘'service oni behalf of Places for People Hames,
Cotrnan Housing Association, Places for Peaple

‘Living Plu_s. and a debl recovery service on
behalf of RMG, we also began providing a range
of property and housing rhanagemen! services
for Sage Housing.

~ Qur Money Advice Team conlmued to’
offer-support and advice ta our customers.
It also delivered Universal Credit training .
. . ta colleagues from other parts of the Group.
This improved staff knowledge, highlighted
-issues impacting our custamers, and -
enabled atf frant-line staff to offer support
to our cuslomers i

Puttmg our customers flrst

Cu stomer satisfaction for hoth servicing .
and repairs was above the 90% target (96.3%

for gas servicing and 92.9% for respansive
repairs). First-time fix rates were also.above
target (88%) at 89.3%. .

Our excellent perfarmance has alsobeen
noted elsewhere. National Inspection Council

'|. for Electrical Inslallation Contracting (NICEIC)

has been our external auditor for seven years.
During that period, the quality of wark carried
out hy our gas teams has significantly
improved, achieving results of 95.9% for the

.quality of work delivered to customers and:

91.6% for the quality of documentation
completed, These results are against national
benchmark figures of 91. /4% and 70 1%
respectively.

* We continued our work to ldenllfy hlgh-
risk tenancies during 2018/19. This enables
us to ensure targeted interventians are put
in place to suppart at-risk customers, with
3 view to sustaining their tenancies. ’

" In October 2018, we Introduced a series of
customer feedback scrutiny meetings. These
enabled us to ahalyse our effectiveness and
quality of response through the review of case
studies, identifying praofiles and trends, and to
be more proactive in understanding how we
can drive improvements and reduce the
number of complaints. The Deputy Housing
Ombudsman also attended these sessions,

. providing positive feedback about our handling
. of complaints and the significant decreasein

the number of complaints réceived by-the .
Housing Ombudsman.as 3 result.

. 25

Safety first’

- Fatlawing the tragic fire at Grenfell Tower in

London, we reviewed aur ongoing pragramme
of fire risk assessment (FRA) activities, So far.
this has included:

— Reviewing all blacks of six storeys and
above 10 determine any with external
cladding, and if any had similar cladding
to either that at Grenfell or that failed
government testing. :

‘— Appointing a fire safety managerand team

to implement the two-year FRA programme
and commissioning new FRAs for blocks of
six'storeys and above within our affordable
housing businesses.

— Implementing a new software system
to help manage the FRA programme,
providing a fully auditable trail against
each completedaction, including evidence .

" that demanstrates how the action was

completed, This is now being rolled cut' to

all areas of the affordable housing business.

— Creating the Fire Safety Core Group, which
meets quarterly to discuss fire safety .
matters and share best practice. Our
primary authority partners at Tyne and
Wear Fire and Rescue Service (TWFRS)
form part of this group.

— Starting a programme of sprinkler
instaltations to all blocks of six storeys
and above. ’

Reflecting our camimitment ta ensure the safely

of aur customers, Places for People Homes

intraduced a Fire Safety Customer Action Group

- — giving our customers a direct influence over .

haw we manage thisimportant area of work.

1d0dap) mICUIRADG -
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In 2018/19,
our Places for
- People Homes
Homecheoice

Programime -

invested

£227,000
in more than
‘25 projects.

Delivering efficiencies
Over.the last eight years, our Neighbourhood

" Strategy has enabled us to increase the surplus

generated from the 34,000 properties cavered in
our annual neighbourhaad assessment by more

‘than £40m.

Qur wark to keep our hames and
neighbourhoods as clean, safe and attractive

‘ as possible has seen the preservation of our

tenancies improve with stack turnover falling
10 7.7%. .
Through our Synergy Business

Transformation programme, we have delivered

amajor review of our systems and business
processes. We have drawn on best practice

- from across the Group to identify common

ways of working acrass all Group companies,
as well as oppdrtunities for automation and the

.potentia{for new digital and online services.

Arange of other technolagies have been
used to drive efficiencies, including a pilot

" allowing customers to book their awn repairs

online, confirming appointments via emait
rather than letters, dynamic scheduling of the
mobile workforce, and TP Go, an electronic
appfor van stock replenishment.

Online annual report and accounts wwwplacesfarpeaple.co.uk/annualrepart -
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. Cotman Housing Association achieved
its abjective of getting 45% of customers to

-sign up for online services. By helping the

widespread use of digital services, it hopes

- ta free up resources to support its more

vulnerable customers and deliver a more
positive customer experience.

_ Cotman Housing Association restructured
its management team. Reducing headcount °
and centralising the HR function enableditto
take advantage of the economies of scale and
expertise available as part of the Places for .
Peaple Group, saving Cotman more than
£100,000 per year.

Chorus Homes, meanwhile, leveraged the
sypport of the Group’s operations to improve
perfarmance against cyclicat maintenance ’
abligations. An improved approach to electrical
safety, and tighter service level agreements
with external contractors, ensured a more

[ rigorous approach to providing certlﬁcates

on llme
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_Maintéining and
|mprovmg homes

Our Homechonce initiative was shortllsted

" at the Northern Housing Awards 2018, The
approach continues to deliver effective results
for our customers and communities.
Homechaice is an innovative stock
rationalisation pragramme that provides
targeted investment for our neighbourhood.
Through the programime, we sell unsustainable
properties and reinvest the surplus in gur
communities to deliver projects which
contribute ta neighbourhood sustainabitity.
So far it has generated mare that £1.2m in
surplus; all of which has been remvested |nto :
our neighbourhoods.

In 2018/19, Homechoicé tnvesled £227,000

in more than 25 projects to support 163 people -

into work, 551 into training, and engage 12,220
young people in project activity.

In October 2018; our Places Management
team began delivery of responsive repairs and’
voids services to Chorus Homes customers.
Key performance indicators have since '
improved and significant savings been secured.

Since 1 April 2019, the team hias been
respansible for all aspects of heating system '

- repair and servicing, as well as electrical and
other installations.

Cotman Housing Association has lnvested
£410,000in refurbishing bathrooms at Cotman
Fields, Norwich and Harwich, Essex, while
customers fiving at Stathamin North Norfolk
received a programme of energy saving

" measures, including upgraded heating, hot
water and shower facilities.
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Making a difference

Over the past year, we have initiated a number
of new projects designed to make a real o
difference to peaple’s lives.

{n Charley, we were a founder patmn
of the Chorley Youth Zane, which provides
20 actijvities far young people. It has already
attracted 5,400 members, wuhS 000 altendlng

- atleast once a month.
Our Financial Services team continues to

offer a broad range of finance products ideat for -

those often excluded by conventiona! praviders.
Last year, the team wan a Feefa Gold Service

. award, an independent seal of excellence which
recognises exceptional customer service.

In the same year, we issued more than
1,000 affordable loans to customers, saving
them an average of £235 per loan. Our Open
Banking service provides customers with
a sate, speedy and easy way to share banking
history and speed up the loan assessment
pracess.

Cotman Housing Association launched.
three separate projects supported by Sport
England funding: ‘Stilt an the Go', which helps
physically inactive older people to keep
moving; ‘Al About You', which provides
dementia patient carers with an Age UK
volunteer to allow for breaks; and ‘Make Your
Mave', which supports peaple who have moved

‘house to find low cost or free physical activities

in their local area.,

In addition, Colman received a d|stmctlon
in ServiceMark by the Institute of Customer
Service, while two successful open days,

-in'Norwich in October 2018 and Harwich in
March 2019, gave customers the chance to

suggest potential improvements to lts ongomg
service delivery.

_ Derwent Living joined Severn Trent and
Cenergist in a water-saving project, visiting
3,500 praperties to provide advice and fit
water-saving devices. The project expects to

-save 32 million litres of water each year. It was

also the first Midlands housing assaciation to
sign the Make a Stand pledge, committing it to ~
- support those experiencing domestic abuse.
Finally, Derwent Living expects to see the

first sales under the Midlands pilot of the
government's Voluntary Right to Buy scheme
to materialise in earty summer 2019.

Qnline annual report and accounts www.placesfarpecple.co.uk/annuslrepert
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We have been proud to play a strategic
rolein developmg national hausing policy.
We continue to serve on the sector's key
advisory boards, including Homes England's .
equality and diversity board, at board level in
the Housing Diversity Network, and through
memnbership of the London Diversity Forum.

‘We value diversity and are committed
10 equality. We provide barrier-free and
responsive services that are tailored to meet
individual needs and alt communities. Equality
and diversily are at the heart of what we do.
To support our effectiveness, we have
developed a diversity calendar and a range
of resources to help staff plan customer visits
and arganise cammunily events.

Furthermare, we have strengthened our
employee Equality Champions networks and
taken steps to balance our customers' safety

" with their cultural and personal needs.

Translations of key documents have also
been completed acrass the Group, enabling

" increasedaccess to services and greater

community cohesion,




Strategic Report .

Supported living

Places for Peoﬁle Living Plusis the Group's e

expert in providing accommodation, care and

supporto over 8, 500 vulnerable people with

complex needs,

. Continuing its ambitious growth plans )
during 2018/19, it invested £10m in purchasing

high-quality properties from the open market.

These wilt be teased to care and support
. partners,-providing homes far vulnerabte
client groups or those with complex needs.
It also completed the development of a
£3.5m, 22-unit specialist supparted housing

scheme designed to address the shortage of .

community-based services for adults with
very complex needs in the Calderdalearea.
In Grimsby, it has started a £10.2m

devalopment to provide 60 high-quality extra -

" care apartments far elderly peaple, and it will
soon start a £23m Investment in'a 120-unit
extra care development in Hampshire. . -

In Northumberland, the Living Plus
domiestic abuse support service celebrated

_its first annivérsary. It has been rated
as overwhelmingly positive by customers,

with 884 referrals recelved in the first
12 months alone.

Further develapment'of the ‘Delayed -
Transfer of Care’ service, which prevents
bed blacking, is now providing four units of

accommodation for customers whoseé recovery ~’

is being supported in the Langdale Court

| (Northamptanshire) and Campbell Court (Tyne
_and Wear) schemes. Backed by an on-site care .

team, all customers supported to date have
been successfully returned home.

Living Plus was awarded a placé on the .-
framework for dispersed accommedation for
young people and care leavers in Newcastle,

Bradford, Calderdate and Wakefield. In addition, .

it refained its Bristol {Young) Parents contract
andits Northumhefland Young Persons
framework.

During theyear, lemg Plus trained 20

colleagues to become mental health first-aiders

to support our employees with their mental.
health, to improve wellbeing and to create a
culture where we encourage employees to talk

 freely about mental health issues.

Social value is at the heart of Living Plus
and colleagues are actively encouraged to

" record customer support activity via a support
.planning system, which in turn is quantified

using certified Housing Associations Charitable

" Trust (HACT) social values. In 2018/19, Living
" Plus was able to. demonstrale thatits acuvmes

had delivered £5.8m in social value.
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OPERATING REVIEW

Placemaking

and regeneration

' Pléces work _When they are designed, deli\}eréd and

managed by people committed to their long-term success '

Placemaking is at the heart of everything From the smallest detail to the most
we do. We erigage communities and build the ambitious and innovative masterplan,

- physical and social infrastructure needed we take a long-term approach to buitding -
ta make places successful. . ‘ - ‘sustainable value in the places we create. .

- We believe this approach is essential to

¥
ensuring our communities succeed.

Online annuat report and accounts www.placesforpeople.ca.uk/ann u‘alf-eporl
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homes plénned‘
in Hertfordshire

15

homes in two new
London neighbourhgods
-on the Olympic Park

" Highlights

.Continued progress on
developments in North Tyneside,
Bristol and Sheffield

Planning permission obtainégi
for phase one of Birmingham's
' PortLoop -

New joint venture with. -
- Surrey County Council
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Building on London's legacy

Work is underway an two new neighbourhaods -

— East Wick and Sweetwater — at London's

Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park. The project, a

. joint venture with Balfour Beatty Investments,
Is located within one of the UK's targest
regeneration schemes. It is supported by
a£78m loan from Homes England and will
deliver 1,500 homes (including 450 affordable
hemes), community infrastructure, green
spaces, business and creatlve space, lelsure
and community Facilities.” .

East Wick and Sweetwater are greal

examples of the benefit of partnership working,

- a key focus of our placemaking approach.
As well as providing much-needed mixed-

. tenure homes in the capital, they also affer vital

infrastructure improvements and long-term
opportunities for communitiés in East Landon.
The first homes and facilities are due to be
- completed in summer 2020. These will include
. 130 affordable homes, 105 private rentat
homes, mare than 35,000 sq.ft of business
and creative space, community gardens, and
anursery. The development demonstrates
Places for People's focus on the community,
and the peaple and their families who will

- benefit fram the long-term urban regeneration .

facilitated by the legacy of the Landon 2012
-Olympic Games:

" East Wick and Sweetwater are twa of ﬁve '
new neighhourhoads to be built on Queen
Elizabeth Olympic Park over the next 15 years.

Makmg a splash in Notth
Tyneside _
Work continues on Smith's Dock North

Shields, a 30-acre former ship repair yard
on the banks of the River Tyne. The site, which

" is being delivered in partnership with Urban

Splash, willinclude more than 800 new homes
as well as workspaces, retail areas and a

“riverside cycle and pedestrian promenade,

In September 2018, a two-bedroom ‘Fab'
showhause was completed. It is one of 10

completed ‘Fab' houses aon site, designed by

Narth East architect and Channel 4 presenter,
George Clarke,

All the site's three-storey lown houses
overlaoking the River Tyne, were completed
and sold in 2018, while the Smokehauses
buildings, which contain 80 apartments with .
views of the River 'Tyne, were also unveiled,
The Smokehauses buildings brought a
prominent neiv addition to the lacal landscape
and praved a natural architectural extension aof

the neighbouring apartments at Brewery Bond.

* - Online annual report and secounts wwwi.placesfarpeople,co.uk/annualreport
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Planning for growth
in Hertfordshire

‘ Places for People secured site allocation in the

East Hertfordshire District Plan, allowing us
to praceed with an outline planning application
for Gilston Park Estate, Our site is the largest
within the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town,
a key development in the government's Garden
Towns and Villages pragramme.

We have submitted autline planning with
the aim to deliver 8,500 homes, helping to drive

_more than £650m of infrastructure investment
-into the area and suppart sustainabte economic.
growth around Harlow.

Continued success

.in Sheffield

The total invéstment in Park Hill in Sheffield
surpassed £100m this year. Our joint venture
with Urban Splash commenced its next phase
of development and student accommadation

developer, Alumno Group (in which the Group

is a joint venture partner), completed the
purchase of the third phase. This paves the

 way for the creation of 356 student beds at the

scheme. The first students are due ta arrive

in Septémber 2020.

. Phase two will see Places for People
and Urban Splash create a further 200 homes

: and more commercial space. The firsthomes
" will be ready to hegin marketing by the end of

2019, with anticipated first move-in dates of
December 2020.
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Partnering for.progress
at Port Loop

Another joint venture between Places for
.People and Urban Splash has started wark
.. on one of Bifmingham's most exciting new

develapments, the transformation of Port .

Loop. The area is being remade into a new

family-focused waterside neighbourhaad.

We are working in partnership with the

landowners, Birmingham City Councit and

the Canal and River Trust, |

In total, 1,150 new homes will be
created, alang with commercial property

. and community facilities, on the 43-acre site

close to Birmingham city centre, The first’
homes to be delivered will include 77 yrban
family houses.

Planning permlsslon hasbeen ohlalned

\

for the entire first phase, including a mix of 207
family homes and apartments alongside a new -

park. Work started on the park in November
2018 and will be completed in 2019.

“Topping out in Bristol

The £20m Copper Euilding at Lakeshore, south

. Bristol, reached its ‘topping out’ construction

mitestone in August 2018, It will offer 136 new
apartments, many of which are already on sale
~Including arange of brand new duplex
penthouses

Warking with ourjomt venture partners
Urban Splash, we have created a striking
addition to the local landscape through the
building's copper fagade. The building is
situated on the site of the former offices of
Imperial Tabacco. All hames will be camplete
in the summer of 2019.

New homes for Surrey

Anew IS-year joint venture with Surrey County
Council calted South Ridge Development Lp -
is now set up and fully resourced.

Sauth Ridge Development aims lo develop
the Cotincil's sites which are no [anger required
for service delivery, creating new homes for
sale'and rent (including affardable homes),
ecanomic growth, jobs and sustamable

" investment — the benefits of which will be felt

throughout Surrey.
The jaint venture will work on 15 sites in
its first year, with the potential to generate 475

_homes, The first new homes will be delivered

in'the coming year.

- 33

Regenerating.Runnymede

In 2014, Runnymede Borough Council chose
Places for People as its partneér on a £200m
long-term programme to regenerate several
council-owned sites. The first development

" delivered under the contract was Egham

Leisure Centre, which opened in January 2019.
The new £19m venue was completed and
passed to Runnymede Borough Council on

‘time-and within budget.

Several sites will be redevelopéd across
the Barough over the next 13 years. The next .
stage of the Council's planned regeneration
programme Includes the redevelopment of
part of Egham tawn centre to provnde anew.
gateway to the town,

Approval for Dove Lane
development

| I May 2018, our reserved malters planning
.applications for 230 homes, retail and office

accommodation at Dove Lane in Bristol were -

" approved by Bristot City Council,

The approval unlocked a £55m investment
in the site, with the first homes expected to be
ready during 2019.
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OF’ERATING REvnElwf -
Development
and construction

Places work when they have g}eét '.h_c')mes

Places for People is an end-to-end déveloﬁer " We are experts in land acquisition, pianning .

with a proven track record of creating high- and design, construction and sales, across
quality properties that people areproud arange of homes and tenures.

to call home.

Online annual report and accoun!s-Www.plécesforpeople.cn.uk/annual(epnrt»

Annual Repbrl
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" " Kéy s_tatiétics

" newaffardable homes to be'
commenced by 2022 with Homes -

, England support
hew hotnes under '

construction at Squirrel Wood, -@

. Basingstoke :{ Lo

R
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newhomes are planning to be
devetoped by Chorus Homes over
the next three years

o 83Im
operating profit genera(ed by
Millwood Designer Hames in the )

first year of complete Places for
People ownership-

Highlights

Ry

. 3

Appointed a strategic partner “‘
of Homes Engtand kS

o

- -3

Roussillon Park named ‘;j
"Hausing Project of the Year' 2

at the 2018 British Construction
Industry Awards

The first new owners moved into

our £20m, 101-homes Granton
development in Edinburgh




36

Develo'pme‘nt f;)cus

Places for People continues to develop high-
quality new homes on a significant scale. Our
facus remains on making home ownership
more accessible to all, with improved
properties, delivered efficiently and at pace,
providing better customer choice and ensuring
aur dngoing success for many years to'come,
During 2018/19, we completed 1,384 new

homes, adding to our stack in key sites acrass.

- the UK. There were 2,647 new starts in the
year, with a further 25,000 being planned

. beyand that.

" InJuty 2018, Places for People was
announced as ane of the first eight strategic
partners working with Homes England —
the Government’s housing delivery agency
. — tobuild more affordable homes across the
country. Our target is to'have begun all 2,603
homes by March 2022. . .

The annauncement marked the first step

towards a new way of working between Homes -

England and its partners. Places for People's
collaboration with Homes England will drive
bath the scale and pace of housing delivery,
giving us the certainty and confidence to
-accelerate our house-building programme.

B’uilding new homes
throughout the country.

Our commitment ta building sustainable, high- -

quality hames helps ta create and support
strong communities. By facusing on high

" quality assets, alongside sales revenue, we are

-able to support UK Gavernment strategy to

expand the national housing stock and increase

mobility between tenures.

Qur projects include a range of concept
designs, such as custom build {Design Your
Hame), timber-frame construction (Swedish
by Design), and energy efficiency. = .~

At Squirrel Wood, Basingstoke, we
{aunched the sales and construction phase on
the first ‘Design Your Home' project. Developed
in partnership with Homes England, Squirrel
Wood will include'122 new homes. Six of the
plots will be for self-build projects. The
remaining 116 will be custom-built according
to each buyer's specifications. i

Elsewhere, our Roborough eco homes -
development in Bickleigh, Plymauth, wilt -
deliver 101 contemporary, energy-efficient
hames. This project has already been
recognlsed as the Sustainable Development

" of the Year at the WhatHouse? Awards in 2018,
" The latest phases of our development
at Trevethow Riel, Truro, is now underway,
continuing our integrated and collaborative
approach to deliver mixed-tenure homes. The

development is benefitting from the expertise

of Places for Peaple Homes in acquiring and

| managing 34 affordable hames.

Online annual report and accounts www.pl (]

le.co.uk/.
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At Marlbarough Park in Swindon, the tatest
phase of development was initiated in 2018, We
will deliver 90 homes under our ModularWise

_ brand. This modern, off-site methodis fast and

cost-efficient, and has resutted in the speedy
delivery of high-specification homes.
Wark alsa continued via our ZeroC brand
at our Poundbury development in Dorset.
Sixty-six houses are set to be compléted,
with the construction of a further 85 homes’
on the development's northern quadrant
in the pipeline. ’ : .
The development pragramme also includes
the refurbished naval canteen building at
Castle Courtin'Portland, Dorset. Delivery of
the nearby Memorial Garden pravided a place
for.our residents and the wider.community
to reflect upon the historical significance

" of the area. The quality of this initiative was

recognised by Weymouth Civic Saciety when
a spécial commendation was awarded to the
ZeroC team.
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Places for People
“delivered 2,647 -
new starts in
the year, with a
further 25,000
being planned
beyond that.

Construction began-in April 2018-on our
Woolmer Copse development in Whitehill
and Bordon, Hampshire, with completion
scheduled for 2020. Part of the Prince Philip
Park, this is one of the most exciting.

" innovative and largest regeneration projects ..

~inthe UK, Work continues with the Bordan
Future Skills Centre, a vocational skills training
centre in Whitehill and Bordon that has a core
curriculum facussing on constructjon and
skilis for the built environment.

in the South East, the Ditton Mews -
develapment in Esher, Surrey, will deliver an
exclusive collaction of luxury hores with views
‘over Sandown Park, while our Golden Mede
development on the Waddesdon Estate, in
partnership with the Rothschild Foundation,
will deliver 75 homes in two phases.

In Chichester, our Roussillon Park

. development was named’ Housing Project
" of the Year' at the 2018 British Construcllon
(ndustry Awards. ’
In Edinburgh, during 2018, the ﬁrsl
‘new owners moved into our £20m Granton
development on the waterfront. Three more
construction phases will follow, bringing the
total number of homes to more than 500 when
fully complete, including modular hames as
" part of our Mid Market Rent commitment.

At our Engine Yard project in Edinburgh,’
we are creating stunning new apariment
buitdings among a pedestrian streetscape
of pathways, gardens and public spaces.
The development includes more than 300
stylish new homes and a brand new Places

. Gym — the firstin Scotland, operated by Places -

Leisure, part of Places for People Group, which
opened in November 2018. This regeneration
projectis being canstructed by our in-house
team and is located on the site of Edinburgh’s
historic tram depot, and is due for final .
completion in December 2020,

We were selected by the Wemyss and

March Estate to Jaintly develop the Longniddry

South site in East Lothian. Planning in principle
was achieved in June 2018, confirming the
delivery of 240 mixed-tenure homes over the
next seven years.

An application for detail planning for a ﬁrst .
‘phase of 98 homes, lncludmg 39 affordable

homes for older people, was submitted ir

October 2018,

The final phase of new build was started
at the Thistle Foundation in Edinburgh. When
complete, it will bring ta an end this long-term
regeneration praject, which started in 2005 and
will have-refurbished 88 homes and built 256
mixed-tenure properlles

37
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 Design Your
Home, a Places -
for People

business, markets

a range of custom
‘and self-build
products that
are designed
‘to appeal to all
mariket secmrge

Mitlwood Designer Hames, acdu}red b.y the
Group in 2017/18, continues ta focuson -

-delivering high-specification homes of local .
" vernacular inthe South East of England.

In 2018, Millwood Designer Homes
campleted the award-winning Lavender Fields

'development, and acquired several new sites, ’

including Heathfield (23 homes), Storringtan
(nine homes), Ramsgate (31 homes) and

Yalding (30 homes). These will form the basis
of developments starting in 2020, ’

Student housing "
develépment

Places for People acquired 50% of the share

-capital in Alumno Group, 3 well-regarded and

established developer of purpose-buill student
accommodallon

-This witl allow the Group to parucipate in
the development and sale of student housing
projects.

Alumno Group has a near-term
development pipeline in excess of 2,000 beds,
with twa prajects an site and a further three

“in the planning process.

Online annuat report and accounts u(ww.placesfurpenpla.cn.uk/arinualr'epori
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Retiremenf living

Our lifestyle retirement living brand, Brio
Retirement Living, has continued to grow.

It will soon dperate three communities:,
Chapelton (apening August 2019), Hackbridge
(opening August 2019) and Stow—un-the-wdl'dA
(opening September 2019}, Almost 260 homes
are under construction, with further work due -
to start at Poundbury in summer 2019,

" Working with Places for People Homes
and Barratt Londan, Brio will develop its first
rental proposition of 80 one- and two-bedroom
apartments in Hackbridge, part of New Mill
Quarter, a significant new community set
within the heart of Hackbridge.

‘Chorus Homes

After joining Places far People in March 2018,

" Chorus Homes accelerated its activities to

increase development starts and completion
targets. The first element of this was the
purchase of a part-completed site in

- Huntingdon; which will deliver 77 homes for *

markel rent, affordable rent and low-cost
home ownership A'turther 44 homes are also
progressing through the final stages of internal
approval, ensuring an ongaing pipeline of over

400 new homes before 2022,

The first new homes for shared,ownershlp

are to be completed in 2019. The development
is well positioned to benefit from the local
transportlinks, including access ta London,

1t will provide much-needed affordable housing
forlacal residents and local response has

been positive.
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Modern. methods
of construction

- We have made extensive use of traditional
methads of construction in our businesses but
we believe that where improvements can be
made we should be open to them. Modern

) methods of canstruction (MMC) offer the
prospect of homes being built more quickly

- and with mare consistent quality. This is
obviously better for customers and itis also
better for our calleagues, as much of the work
can take place indaors during the winter
months, and for us as we-can get a site to the
point af making sales or tettings taster,

Toassist us to achieve our housing

commitment, given the.wider much discussed

. construction industry challenges, we spent
much of 2018/19 developing our delivery
strategy including MMC, Many of aur prajects
feature, or will feature in the future, modular
homes, including callaborations with
volumetric manufacturers* like Homes,
Urban Splash, ModularWise and Trivsethis.

- Places for People has a very broad UK .

_portfalio, which enables us to market test
arange of house typolagies, including size,
design, and layaut of hame. All of these hoimes
are available for market sale or retained by the
Group.and rented out to customers.

- *Three-dimensional volumetric constructionis amodern
methad of bullding by which large, often roam-sized modutes
are manufactured in a factory, then transparted to site and
craned into place. The methad is suited to buildings with lots
af repetitive design such as houses, hotels, schools and
prisans (RICS February 2019). -

ModularWise is our subsidiary that
produces volumeric medular houses inits
factory in Wales. We have installed them
on site in Swindon and will shortly deliver
27 homes for mid-market rent to Granton,
Edinburgh and 18 ane- and two-bedroom -

- apartments tor sacial rent to Quentin Court,

West Lothian.
Swedish by Design is our partnership
with Trivsethus, an established MMC husiness.

It offers factory-built energy-efficient homas °

with strang Swedish design features. There are

" 39 homes using this system at Sommar Place

in Milton Keynes.

We are a partner of ltke Homes, which
produces precisian engineered houses
manufactured in a specialist factory to the
highest quality standards. The groundworks

"and foundations are installed on-site but the
‘homes are made simultaneously elsewhere

~ significantly reducing overall construction

. lime. At Hawthorne Avenue in West Hull, a

devetopment of 16 two-bedroom affordable
family homes is the final phase of 3 mixed-
tenure regeneration project. It is the first
scheme of wholly modular canstructian
manufactured by Itke Homes, They were
handed aver at the end of March 2019 and
were all pre-let, securing more than 1,000
expressions of interest in the first few hours
of their taunch,

39

Custom Build

In addition to accelerating hausing production
through MMC, we have considered the design
of new homes and taken steps to offer greater

ccustomer chaice. Design Your Home, 3 Places

for People business, markets a range of
custom and self-build products that are
designed to appeal to all market sectars. its
competitively-priced homes can be accessed
by first-time buyers, homeowners trading up,
the retiree sectdr, and affordable home
tenants, There is an option for purchasers who
wantto get their hands dirty and build their
hame themselves, as well as more mainstream
options where the purchaser simply chooses
the layout and internal specification and Destgn
Your Home then builds the praperty.

Design Your Home has developed a
praduct that is compatible with Help to Buy,
while still allowing buyers to select their own

.internal layouts and their choice of internal.

specification. This will help Design Your Home
to achieve its goal of making both custom and
self-build mainstream products that are
accessjble to any hame buyer.

Design Your Home is in the process af
building the UK's first Customer Choice Centre -

_for custom and self-build properties at Squirrel -
Waoad, Basingstoke. The centre, which opens

in mid-2019, is based around a four-bedroom

- house and wilt display atl the internal

specification options available to customers.
The centre has interactive displays to help
the customer better understand the custom .
butld praduct.
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OPERATING REVIEW

Property
'-management

" Places work when they’re well lo‘dkéd after

Ac_iass the UK, and in addi_tion toour - the effective management of our property
management of affordable housing, Places portfolio continues to drive our success.

for People is proud to provide-residents - “Our property management experlise also.
with the peace of mind that their homes, -leads to exceptional value for institutionat
neighbourhoods and communities are . landlords, prafessional investors, property
“well cared for. From expertly planned funds, local authorities, housing assocnahons.

’ maintenance through to timely repairs, developers, and landlords.

Orillpe annual report and accounts www.placesforpéoplé.co.uk/annualreport
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E 5 ?
news student beds mobilised by

Derwent FM at Aspire Pointin
Stratford and Essex Phase i

N

Tew clients secured -
by RMG

. Highlights

£80,000 savings achieved
by RMG’s use of new
technology -

98% client retention
rate maintained
by Touchstone .
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Property Management
Companies

Places for People Group manages 125,745
homes across the UK undér our four
companies, who are expertin different areas.
RMG is one of the UK's leading propertyand -
estate management praviders, Teuchstone
is dedicated to private rental property
management, Derwent £M specialises -
in student accommadation, and Girlings
Retirement Rentals focuses on the
management of purpose-built retirement
homes. These companies enable Places for .
Peaple ta operate across all elements of the
property management sectar and offer
seamless service ta clients with a mix

" of assets in their portfolios.

RMG

As one of the UK’s leading residential propertly

management service praviders, Residential
‘Management Group (RMG) plays a'centralrate
in both the public-and private hausing sectars.
In 2018/19, it increased the number of homes
it manages by 7%, while aLso securing 22
new clients,

As a demonstration of Group collaboration,
2018 saw the successful transfer of the

management.of 3,000 homes in the Castle Rock

Edinvar home ownership portfolio te RMG.
During 2018/19, RMG successfully
embedded the new Housing Solutions Service’
. delivery model to ensure service targets
and contract outputs were achieved, white
maximising contract income which delivered
anincrease of 10%. RMG alsa provided
homelessness review services to eight
cauncils (up from six in 2017).
RMG agreed a three-year service
transformation plan with its existing client,
the City of Westminster, which is being
delivered in partnership with Sheiter and The
Passage, wha became RMG's third-sector
delivery partners in 2018, The partnership
" restructured its service to reflect the changes .
needed after the introduction of the
Homelessness Reduction Act,

Touchstone

Touchstone, our-dedicated private rental sectar
property managefment company, manages
20,000 properties for a range of clients. As
well as maintaining its client retention levels
at 98%, it also achieved its large! of Elm

in new business.

In the last year, Touchstone created.an
operations board lo improve the examination
of its key business metrics and operational
performance. This will help to ensure alt areas
are performing to a consistently htgh standard
and achieving their targets.

Derwent FM

Derwent FM is the Group s UK-wide facilities
management company, specialising in student
accommiodation. Key to its success during
2018/19 was the successful management
of an intake of more than 12,500 students
in September 2018 acrossiits portfolio of . ~
accommadatjon schemes.

"In 2018, Derwent FM successfully

mobilised 1,078 new student bed spaces at’
_ Aspire Point in Stratford and at the University

of Essex. Both projects were delivered in tight
timeframes and secur'ed positive feedback
from both client teams and students.
Afurther 643 student beds, as part of
phase two of the successful ULiving scherne,

"brought the total number of University of Essex

beds under Derwent FM management to more
than 2,000, This scheme involved a very tight
handover from the construction team, with
only days to complete a final deep clean before
all students checked into their accommodation.

Online annual reportand accounts www.placesforpeople.ca.uk/annualreport
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Girlings Retifement Rentals

Girlings Retirement Rentals offers purpose-
built accommodation on long-term tenancies.
The properties-are owned by third parties,
but let and managed by Girlings. In 2018,

- it switched reporting 'plalforms for praperty

inspections, resulting in quicker reporting and
areduction in software costs of 50%5. )
- In the last year, Girlings has warked with

.the Places Management team ta conduct

electrical installation condition reports,
resulting in significant savings for landlords
and reduced lead times,

In January 2019, Girlings recorded ns
highest number of reservations in a single
month. Two months later, it also launched

‘anew website, which has lmproved the

customer expenence

Osterna health and safety

RMG's health and safety business, Osterna,
had another successful year in 2018/19,
providing Fire Risk Assessment services to
businesses across the Graup, including Places
for People Homes, Touchslone. and Castle

- Rock Edinvar.’

RMG and Osterna contintie to support -
several external clients with the investigation
of cladding systems, angoing interim
management arrangements, af_\d establishing

- lang-term solutions. The expertise

démonstrated in this area is attracting new
business interest from outside the Group.
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Achieving efficiencies
in property management

Tauchstone developed a new customer partal :

" in 2018 to imprave its customer experience,
encourage the use of online tools and reduce
the amount of email and telephone traffic.

Embedded in the portal was FixFlo, a
web-based software for property professionals
that helped Touchstone further improve its
custamer service. It provides cuslamers with

- advice on maintenance that they are capable
of carrying out themselves,

Tatchstone also launched an automated
booking system which'iritegrates with .
Rightmove. It enables customers to book an

-appaintment 24/7, and as the systeminteracts
directly with the letting manager’s diary, no
time is lost waiting for colleagues to contact
prospective customers.

RMG has capitalised on mnovalwe

T lechnology to deliver s«gmﬁcant savings in
2018/19, The use of back-office bot’ technology.

which builds automatic routines into system

* procedures and removes the need for human
invalvement, has saved £80,000. The RMG
Living customer portaland the RMG mobile
application have also met the growing demand
from customers for improved online access,
to services and self-service, reducing both

. transaction times and delivery costs,

-Supporting our people

Touchstone has continuedits Brilliant Place to

Work initiative over the past year, introducing
a flexible hours palicy and a focus an mental

" health and wellbeing, training several
employees across all areas of its business so .

it now has an equal number of mental health
first-aiders and physical health first-aiders.
" Further afield, 11 Touchstone colleagues
visited Malawi in May 2018 as part of a
three-year praject, A total of 36 employees
have now visited the Salima region during the
project, praviding new hames and communal
toilets to same of the world's poorest families,
In partnership with Habitat for Humanity, we

. have now committed to a similar three-year
" project in Cambodia.

Inthe UK, Touchstane engaged with
Developing Health and Independence (DHI),

a Bath-based charity that helps homeless and

vulnerable adults find away back into society.
Touchstone also received a double awards

success, winning ‘Employer of the Year' at the -

Property Week'All Stars Awards 2018°and
topping the ‘Professional Services' category

- atthe Bath Property Awards 2018.

‘In January 2019, Derwent FM developed
a partnershlp with Student Minds, the UK's

" student mental health charity, to deliver .
.mental health.awareness training for -

colleagues across }he UK, and initiated
a fundraising programme.

43

Finally, Derwent FM also saw its University
of Gloucester scheme nominated forthe ”
'Residence of the Year' award at the annual
Student Property Awards in December 2018, .
lts University of Hertfordshire scheme was
nominated for Collaboratxon of the Year'
at the same event.

- RMG
increased the
number of homes
it manages by

7%, while also
securing 22 new
© clients.

- Jioday esuElIanng

SWUBUNRIG JEuRUL .
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'OPERATING REVIEW

Lelsure R |

management

health and wellbelng

. Places work when they are actlve

We design, build and manage bath

leisure facilities and health and wellbeing
programmes, ‘Whatever place they're into’,
we help people find the means and mativation
to be fitter, healthier and more active.

Online annual report and accounts www.placexf}:rpanple.éo.uk/annualrepérl

. Annual Report
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+ Key statistics

- £195m

in social value generated
through impravements in
physical and mental wellbeing,
educational attainment, and
crime reductions

More than

A .
children learn to swim
with us every week -

Highlights

Acontracthasbeen
agreed between Surrey Heath
Barough Council and
Places Leisure for a £22m leisure
centre in Camberley, Surrey

Places Léisure was rated
as the top performing
arganisation in its category
" by Quest National Benchmarking
" Service (NBS) —for the
fourthyearin arow
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In a busy year, six new leisure centres apened
across Places for People communities, helping
us to create heaithier communities and
encourage more active lifestyles: Waltham

. Abbey Leisure Centre, Places Gym Edinburgh,
Dover District Leisure Centre, Ryeish Leisure
Centre, Arborfield Sports Centre, and The'
Bridge Leisure Centre.

. Waltham Abbey Leisure Cenlre opened in
November 2018 after Places Leisure, Pellikaan

Construction and Pozzoni were jointly awarded

the design, build, operate and maintain

contract by Epping Forest District Council. . -

The new centre has been sympathetically

- designed with a green roof to camplement:

its surrounding area. It boasts an 80-station
state-of-the-art gym, six-lané swimming pool
.with separate teaching paol, community roem
and cafe. .
) Sir Hugh Rabertson, chairman of the
British Olympic Association, opened Qover
- District Leisure Centre in February 2019, Its .
facilities include an eight-lane county-standard
swimming poal (the first in Kent), learner paal,
sports hall, outdoor 3G pitches, squash courts,
. a 120-station fitness suite and animpressive
Clip'n Climb course.
in Broadbridge Heath, West Sussex, The

Bridge Leisure Centre opened in October 2018, °

It also houses a Clip'n Climb facility, as well
as a 70-station gym, a six-court sports hall,
athletics track, indoor cycling studio, café and

* meeting reom. A new sensory room, which can

transform from a calm and soothing place

_ta an exciting interactive space, has also been

installed. -

. A£4m cash injection from Wokrngham
Borough Council was brought to life when
Ryeish Green Sparts Hub opened in August

'2018. The'centre includes a 45-station aym,
four-court sports hall and a full-size 3G football

pitch. The impravements were funded by
developer contributions, ensuring the facilities

‘were provided at no direct cast to the tax payer.

Places Gym Edinburgh; part of a Group
development, became the first Places Gym
to be embedded into one of the Group’s major
brownfield housing regeneratian projects.
Itis lacated in The Engine Yard development
on Leith Walk and apened in November 2018.
The gym is ane of six Places Gyms acrass the
UK managed by Places Leisure.

New services and contracts

A staté-of—the-art gymnastics facility at

Elmbridge Xcel Leisure Centre apened in

September 2018, Commonwealth Games gold
medallist Courtney Tulloch and Elmbridge

- mayor Shweta Kapadia attended the ribbon-

cutting ceremony, alongside representatives
from Elmbridge Borough Council, Places
Leisure, British Gymnastlcs and the local
community. )

Online annual report and accounts www.pl; p

co,uk/. lraport

‘to open in 2021, it will feature a 25-metre,

Annual Report

Places Gym
Edinburgh was
the first to
‘be embedded
into one of the
Group’s major
brownfield

housing
regeneration
- projects.

A 25-year design, build, operate and .
maintain contract has also been agreed
between Surrey Heath Borough Council and
Places Leisure for the provision of 2 £22m ;
leisure centre in Camberley, Surrey. Due A

six-lane pool, learner poot with adjustable
floor, eight-court sports hall, fitness suite,
exercise studios, Clip'n Climb and café,

~

Taking the lead in sector

_qualifications

Places Leisure enrolied 30 managers
onte a new leisure-~specific apprenticeship
management qualification. This substantial

 wraining programme far management-evel
‘employees is a ‘trailblazer apprenticeship’

coordinated by the Chartered Institute for
the Management of Sport and Physical

- Activity (CIMSPA).

" The 15-month course is supported with

“online learning, webinars, and organised
.workshops. It covers eight different topics,

including leisure facility management,
personal develepment, people management,
legal and compliance, business support

and finance.
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Healthy lifestyle initiatives"
Places Leisure partnered with Sport England
on the relaunch af the This Girl Can (TGC)

- campaign, with a specific focus on TGC Swim.
We received grant funding of £50,000'to cover
créative and social media advertising costs

" inthe drive to encourage inactive women

to attend the TGC sessions at sites across

the UK. : ' ' .

In addition, we work with public health
agencies to provide interventions such ’

as GP referrals and weight management

programmes, These aré designed to reduce

theincidence of major chronic diseases, such
ascoronary heart disease, type2 diabetes,
" asteoporosis and many forms of cancer.

Improving our customer .
experience

In 2018/19, we made significant advancesin
measuring our customer experience. Every
maonth, 200 mystery custamer visits happen
under our'Places Pulse initiative. The results
let us know what our customers realty think, -
enabling us and our suppliers lo prioritise the
projects that really make a difference.

“ Qurrelaunched Net Promoter Score (NPS)
programme, which gathers further insight ta
shape our services and business decisions,
‘saw response rates increase from 4% ta11%.

Elsewhere, a six-month study by GGFit,

-anindependent cansultancy specialising in

data analysis and member retention, showed

-a marked increase in member engagement

on Places Leisure's ‘Places Locker' app. ~
The GGFit study aimed to help imprave

customer engagement at the 98 Places for

People developments with gyms. It focused

.an 14 Places Leisure sites and recorded 2.34

million site visits from April 2018 to September
2018. The study found that members who do

nat Have the Places Lacker app visit an average
of four ta five times per month, while those ~

with the app visit seven to eight times per

month, Mémbers using the app alsa stay on
sile an average of 20% longer than those

‘| without the app.

Outstanding performance
For the fourth consecutive year, Places
Leisure was named by Quest NBS as the top
performing arganisation in the 31+ Registered
Sites category. -
Riverside Leisure Centre, whichis
managed by Places Leisure onbehalf of
Norwich City Council, retained its ‘Excellent’ -
status from Quest — the leisure industry’s only
recagnised quality assurance tool for leisure

" facilities. It was also named the second
" highest-performing facility in its category.

47

Gosporl Leisire Centré was named
the third highest-performing facility, and
Godaiming Leisure Centre the fifth highest-

"pertorming facitity. Maltby secured the fourth -

highest-scoring mystery visit.
Wisewaod Sports Centre in Sheffield
received the prestigious Customer Satisfaction

" Award from Sport England's Natianal |

Benchmarking Service (NBS), a scheme
which allows local authorities to compare the
performance of their sports and leisure centrés
with that of equivatent facilities elsewhere in
the country. The award-winning centre, which
Places'Leisure manages on behatf of Sheffield
City Council, was one of just three top-scoring
facilities to receive an award in the Customer
Satisfaction category at this year's NBS
Awards, presented at the Quest and NBS
Conference in Kenilworth in February..
Graves Health and Sports Centre, which
is also managed by Places Leisure on behalf
of Sheffield City Council, won three awards

- at the 2018 Yorkshire Tennis LTA Awards in -

December 2018. The centre took hame the
Yorkshire Cammunity Award and Yorkshire
Disability Award, while its head coach, Sam
Sa(t, was named Yorkshire's Coach of the Year.
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,.bPERATIN,G’ R."E_V‘IEW
4Fund
| management

Places work when there is mvestment in new homes

A

PfP Capital aims to provide investorsinthe . Now in lts_third year of operations, PtP
property market with sacially-cansciousredl = Capital cantinues ta enhance its profite and
estate fund management that delivers stable reputation through a series of partnerships -

réntal income and long-term capital growth. and investments.

“Online annual repart and accounts www.placestorpeople.co.uk/annualrepart

* Anpual Report
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- Key statistics
: [a)
. 3
£300m
investment from the a
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Scheme. . 2

: S ) T . e investment
B from the Scottish
-Government
_Highlights -
‘Developments in
Glasgow, Nottingham, )
Newcastle and Leeds ' Lo
‘tatalling £47m now s A
being planned” R
3
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. Responsible investment

With Brexit and other factors creating
continuing uncertainty, raising private capital
in the market has been challenging for some
time. Hawever, PP Capital's residential real
estate funds offer investars attractive and
stable returns over the long term, derived from

.anunderlying asset base that is in high

demand, supporting strong, cansistent
revenue streams and underlying values.
PP Capital’s responsible Investment
philosophy aims ta invest clients’ capital
conscientiously, to help protect the
enviranment, develop sustainable
communities and create Sacial value, while
at the same time delivering attractive relurns
on investment to clients, ’ g
Our focus on investment and careful
management of each fund leads to the
generation of value far aur clients' funds and
for residents, places and neighbourhcods —

.which ultimately helps us to foster sustainable

communities. o
This complements the Group approach
to creating social value in three ways:

1. All PP Capital funds aim to enhance the
physical, mental and social wellbeing of
ihdividuals~ and communities,

é. All our funds invotved in placemaking aim
to build sacial capital by focussingon
- people to deliver strong cammunities.

3. " All aur funds aim to reduce the use of finite
resources, and preserve and enhance the
natural environment, '
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Over the last year, PfP Capital
has achieved several successes
on its journey to being recognised
- asan am'acﬁwe and credabﬁe fand .

, '_G'r.owjng our impact

PfP Capital has always been a pioneer.
When it started business in March 2017, it
was the first time an organisation-like Places
far Peaple had developed its own fund
management capability.
Yet PfP Capital has quickly- established
itself in the fund management sector and
“attracted high-praofile investors. Part of this
success can be attributed to a committed-
management team with experience across’

finance, property management and investment.

Over the last year, PfP'Capital has achieved
sevaral successes on its journey to being
recagnised as an attractive and credible fund
" manager. It secured a £300m investment from

the Universities Superannuation Scheme
(USS), and established a3 partnership with
USS and- Places for People Homes ta invest
£333m into private rentat sector (PRS) homes.

On behalf of the funds, PfP Capital then .
acquired a £150m portfolio of PRS homes from
Places for Peaple Homes, as well as investing
capital inta new homes to grow its assets
under management, The Group has also
agreed to supply PRS properties fromits ~
development pipeline and Touchstone has
been appointed by the parlnershlp to manage
the properties,

In Scotland, on b,ehalf of investars, PP
Capitalis investing in and building 1,000 new
mid-markel rental hames after establishing -

.aresidential real estate fund in partnership
with the Scattish Government. The Scottish. .
Government invésted £47.5m into the fund,
which has already acquired its first homes at
Abbotsway, Paisley. Following an investment

manager.

‘from Castle Rock Edinvar, the Scottish fund

is now raising further capital to support its
ambitions to be the leading provider of mid-
market rental homes across Scotland.

On behalf of the Group, PfP Capital secured
the purchase of investments from Aviva's Igloo

. Regeneration Partnership. This wilt help it to

establish a fund to deliver enhanced returns

-by investing in and developing high quality,

environmentally sustainable urban

" transformatian. Developments in Glasgow,

Nottingham, Newcastle and Leeds with a gross
development value of £47m are now being.
planned, while a project is already underway
that seeks to invest in a residential-ted scheme

" at Frome Gateway, Bristol.

Finally, PP Capital is developing a new
‘build-to-rent'investment sirategy, with the *

aim of attracting.capital ta a y £550m fund. .aiming
_ tohald 3,000 multi-generational homes. ’

~ Capital rais'ing"i

Over the last 12 months, PfP Capital has
worked with investors to raise new capital for
its mid-market rental and regeneration funds.
Emphasis is being placed on PfP Capital's skills
in creating sacial value through responsible

" investment. This approach is resonating with

investars looking to achieve greater saciat
impact with atiractive returns.
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| Fmancuaﬂ
jfpeffmmance

": ijed assets of

e (2018: £4.5bn) |

Loans-of -

e aes: £2.7b0)

: AReserves of g

- 1 1‘ (zma £1«89 em) '
"f}Key haghhghts
77 . The Group's proﬁt before. laxatlon

" “Was £95.5m (2018: £85.0m before .
negatlve goodwﬂl)

~ _The Group has retamed a s(rong L
" @ "balance sheet position at the year : .
"+ _.end with net assets of ESél am.

- (2018: £487.6m)

'“ -Early redemptlon of 25—year £105m o
L8, 625% wrapped secured bond o

= 'Unsecured: pnvate placements
el were completed durmg the year.

HKD980m 7-year |ssuance -
JPY10bn 10-year|ssuance‘ 2
. amn ‘

-year bond

Qnliné annual report and accounts www.placesfarpeaple.co.uk/
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inancial review

Profit and loss for thé year

The Group profit before tax and negalive gaodwill for the year has
increased by 12.7% from £85.0m to £95.5m in 2019. In 2018 the Group .

“profit before tax was £130.2m, which inctuded a £45.2m gain from Chorus
Homes Jolning the Group. As such the praofit for the year endlng 31 March
2018 ona comparable basis was £85.0m. :

The Group lurnover for the yearwas £827.1m (2018: £754.4m). The increase
of 9.8% is predominantly due ta a full year of trading of both Chorus and :

. M|llwood who bolh]omedthe Graup in 2017/18.

The Group aperatirig profit increased by £37.9m to £227.1m, witt( the main
driver for the increase being the disposal of some of the Group's market
‘rented units, The underlying operating profit, excluding sales of fixed

- assels, increased by 8.8% from £184.5m in 2018 10 £200.8m in 2019 in

(ine with the growth in the Group's turnover.

. The Group aperating margin increased from 25.1% in 2018 to 27.5% in 2019.

: This'increase is due to the increased sales of fixed assets fram the prior
year. The Group underlying operaling margin, excluding sales of fixed

-, assets, remained stable and above 24%."

Profit before tax

130.2

F"lg‘ures shownin £m 119.7

Underlying profit
@ Negative gaodwill

2015* 2016 2017 2¢18 - 2019

*These figures are fram the previous years' financial statements as reparted under old UK GAAP.
The 2014, 2017 and 2018 figures are reporled under the new Accounting Standard FRSI02.
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Treasury management

. Thetahle below shows the key treasury p.erfor‘mance indicators far the
year together with the comparative information for the previous four years,

2019 2018 -

) leedlﬂoat mix — Flgure 3

2017 2016 2015¢
Total loans (Ebn) Y] 2.9 23 .18 17
L"‘“”"s.“f"’“a“e' 9. 20 18 15 13 .
depreciation ’

. Gearing ;  58.7% .57.1% 85.206 55.1% 54.6%
Forward cash - N .
commitment (mahths) 8 '8 18 508
‘TheZOlSﬁguresarereparled. der-old UK GAAP, Sub ‘years'lﬂguresvarereputequnder

" Accaunting Slandard FRS 102.

The Group had committed borrowings of £3.7bn of which £2. 9bn

were drawn, an increase in committed borrowings of £0.Zbn from 2018,
The Graup's strategy is to borrow on an unsecured basis with a.

‘medium-term objecuve of rebalancing the portfolio to 60% unsecured.

_New issuances, combined with the early redemption of its £105m 8.625%

‘bond, increased the propartion of unsecured debt to 59%, just 1% off the

Group's mediumzterm objective, ' '

Debt portfolio.'— Figure 1 -

" Key T o %

- Group gearing remained below the 60% target at 54.7%, a reduction
of 0.4% from the prior year. ; ’ '
- The Group's policy is to maintain cash and undrawri committed loan
facilities that are imimediately accessible to finance 12 months' cash flow.
" At the year end, the Group had total liquidity of £897.1m, comprising
£806.5m-of undrawn facilities and £90.6m of cash and short-term
inveslmenls which was more than sufficient to meet the Group's policy.

: -‘Avatlable liqundlty FlgureZ

Undrawn facilities -

Unséqured . g9

Secured Coay

Key- ' L £m
Cash and short-term 90.6

2 investments _ ’
8045

.53

The borrowing strategy is ta contain interest rate risk to below 30%af
autstanding debt, with the board exercising strict control over derivative
transactions and their assaciated risks. This interest rate target has been
met with 77% of debt at fixed rates of interest at the end of the yearwlth
12% of debt at floating rates and 1% index llnked

Key 4 C %

In 2016, the Group'set up a treasury vehicle, Places for People Finance |
ple, which acts as the funding vehicle for the Group’s non- regulated -,
businésses. In December 2016 Places for People Finance plcissueda-
£65m retail bond, with no recourse ta the Group's regulated activities
or social housing assets. '

This complements the arrangements already in place for the

_ regulated businesses where Places for Peaple Treasury plcraises funds

far the Graup's affordable housing operatluns
The structure allows for a mare efficient use of the Group's balance
sheet and drives cheaper and moare efficient borrowing costs whlle ’
pratecting the Graup's sociat housing assets. .
The Group's investment activily is governed by strict counlerparly

. credit criteria and-investment limits which are monitored and reported .

ona regular basis. The Group continues to be compllanl with covenants
for funding arrangements. Further information on the Group's financiat
instruments, including a maturity profile, can be found in note 23to the’

financial statements.

Pension funds

" The hoard has reviewed its obligations érisiﬁg from employee pension

funds and is satisfied that its liabilities are properly identified, planned

. and accounted for. The Places for Peopte Retirement Benefit Scheme

{the Scheme) was closed on 1 September 2004 to new employees and
was closed to future benefit accrual in October 2010. All new employees
joining the Group still have the opuon of joining a pension schemeto -
which the Group contributes. .

B2 Index linked : on
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Value for money

Value for money is embedded throughout
the organisation and is intrinsic to what
we do. We know that being efﬁcnent

and effective is crucial to our success in
delivering services that.are valued by our
~customers. Our board is committed to -
‘ensuring that we are makmg the best use
of resources and maximising the efficiency
and quality of our services. Innovation
has a key role to play in our approach and
assessing the best delivery models and
evaluating alternatives is a key element

of our annual business planning process
which ensures that achieving value for
money remains central to how we operate.

Our Grohp-wide Strategic Risk Management and Value for Money Group,
chaired by the Group Chief Executive and attended by key senior staff,

drives our approach, embedding Valué for Maney as a key priority at the . -

" highest level, Value for Money is a standing item at every Regulaté& board
meeting so that scrutiny of our performance against metrics is cansistent
and rigarous. Qur Efficiency and Praductivity Group supparts the annual -
business planning process by identifying ways to maximise efficiencies
across the spread of our activities, drilling down into different parts of the
business to idenlify potential synergies across market areas sowe can
use our strength, size and data te drive efficiencies acrass-the Graoup.
We continually review the Group's asset base, appraising return on
assets in a lailored way.that is appropriate for each Group business to
. ensure that-we are making the most effective investmentsin the right
properties at the right time. As part of this approach we moniter and
continuously improve our return on core housing operations. We also
focus on how our other assets can cansistently deliver value for money
through strong financial and social returns. We conduct an annuat
assessment of the Group's neighbourhoods: which calcutates the surplus
per property for each neighbourhood. This is then assessed against the
contribution that each individual property needs lo make to cover
management costs, interest costs and a coritribution to major works.
This enables us to clearly identify which neighbourhoods are meeting
the minimum financial requirements. ’ T :

- Inlastyear's Annual Report we set out five areas where we
believed there was potential to improve efficiencies which were customer
experience, staff efficiencies, marketing efficiencies, procurement and
technology Set oul opposne are the main autcomes in the year for

. each area,

Oaline apnual report and accounts www.pla'cesfarpé ople.co.uk/annualreport

2018/19 areas
of focus for

. efficiencies -

2018/19 outcomes

Customer
experience

4 Tﬁe Group-wide Customer Experience Journey

Mapping project commenced in February 2019, with

" the purpose af developing a consistent understanding
- . and approach throughout the Group. This project is

pert of the wider Customer Involvernent Strategy to

" : establish best practice consistently across the Group,
- and alsoincludes how we will deliver customer service
. training and how we will measure success. mcludlng
* rolling out Net Promater Score (NPS) as a
" measurement tool during 2019/20.

L Cotman Housing has achieved its business plan

objective of signing up 45% of customers to online

"services. 47% of customers were signed up at 31

.. March, thus improving customer experience by

allowing digitally enabled customers to self-service )

.. queries wherever possible. This has created businéss
- efficiencies by reducing volur_nes of calls to'the
- Customer Service Centre.and allowing resources

to be focused on those who prefer a non-digital

' service. Cotman has been supported in this by its

Digital Inclusion Group for older peopte (Too Gld to
!.e'arn-Neverl).

Staff .
efficiencies

Derwent Living has restructuredits sales team,
- development teams and customer service teams and

- achieved savings of £100,000 per year.

" Cotman reduced headcount and further savings were
- achieved by recharging 20% of a manager’s postto -

Sport England, achieving total savings for Cotman

. of £133,200.

. Chorus Homes reduced headcount and its salary blll
" by £607,000.

"The Group's property main_lenahce business, which

". aperates within the affordable housing business,

' increased its productivity by 1%. This represents added
* :value of £250,000 by saving subcantractor charges and
" inturnrepresents a saving in,cosl to the Group.

The Neighbourhoods team staff cosls reduced by

" £122,000, and the Financial Services team staﬁ cosls
" raduced by £43,000.

“. Within the Affordable Housing business, the Place

team has saved £15,000 on fire safety training by

_ engaging Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service.

Livjﬁg Plus has éch[eved anoverall 1.38% saving

inits management costs, equivalent to £400,000.
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2018/19 areas
of facus for
efficiencies

2018/19 outcames

2018/19 areas
of facus for

efficiencies  2018/19 outcomes
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. Marketing
efficiencies . -

Initiatives implemented in the last quarter of 2018/19

: have started ta show positive results and a saving to.-
* the marketing budget of £30,000 has been achieved.

" Social media management has been brought in-house,

.. areview of reSource and a restructure to developa
- - business partnership approach to wark more efficiently

. acrass the Group, and a review of media relations,
- ' strategic communicatians, channels (media and CRM),

has been scoped and is being implemented.

Pracurement.._

During 2018/19 the Grdup's Strategic Procurement *

. team generaled £2.4m savings agalnst atargetl

of £2.2m,

E The spend analysis pro]eét has also started well, With

- an average of 38% savmgs seen in projects delivered

'-.'sofar

- Over 50% of lhe regulated compames spend was with

" SME businesses {small- and medium-sized enterprises).

: .' Our Lettings and Marketing team has re-negotiated
“. its e-signature contract, changing from pay per user

* to pay per envelope. This has resultedina savmg
- of £10,000.

“ Chorus Homes saved 2342 000 through working

. with the Group insurance team to procure new
. insurance cover.

The Landscapes team with the Affordable Hausing'
" business has saved £24,000 a year reviewing its
- iAuditar software licences for operatives.

Technology

" . The Lettings and Markallng team has moved over
" to-a digital application and sign-up process far each
. . .New letting, saving £64,000in printing, ma:lmg and
- scanning costs.

: . Within the Affardable Housing business, the Place ’
team has saved £22,000 in travel costs by i mcreaslng
" the use of videa canferencing.

1Joday azu

" Technology

- We taunched a two-and-a-half &ear programme of

- works to be a Digital Business this year. Our strategic

" goal as a Digital Business is to seek new technology

" * and exploit it as an enabler: ta identify new apportunities,

' develop new aperating models, simplify and/or .

improve existing opera!mg models and to conlinuausly'
improve on our previous best.

The Digital Business programme of Work will sae a.

., heavy investment in aur technalogy estate and will_

enable us toinnovate at pace. As gart af the programme,
we will be replacing much of our current legacy estate,
which is castly ta run, with cost-effective advanced
new digital technology. This will deliver value-for-
money and will imprnVe the efficiency, effectiveness .

.- and productivity of our workforce, leltlng the .

technology take the slram

- Chorus Homes saved £337,000 on Information

Technology-relaled contracts, equlpmenl
and procuremen!

Targets for 2019/20

As part of our continuous improvement approach we have now adap!ed
our business planning pracess to deliver transparent targets on value for

money. With effect from the 2619/20 business planning cycle all business .

.. areas have been asked ta identify efficiency and value-for-money targels
~—including a target to sustain or improve the business aperating margin.

Perfarmance 3gainst these targéts will be manitared by the Group Board

and Group Management Team ‘The main value for money facuses for
. 2019/20 will be: . Lo

~ customer experience, including achlevmg the Grcup customer

satisfaction target of 85%

" — procurement, wnh E] target ta generate In excess of £3m savings
— affordable housmg. wnth atargetto achleve anincreasein

) operating margin -

— Living Plus, with a target ta'achieve an operating margm of 23 7%

- dellvgrmg efﬁCIency gains in respec; of technology and _marketmg

{

These areas are expected to im;irove the Group‘s,reéult by over £4m,
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Value for money metrics

-Registered providers are required to report their performance against
. 'specific metrics annually. Our performance against these ietrics
-is highlighted in the table opposite.

The gearing metric shown in the table is not considered to fully
represent the true gearing of the Group, While the metricincludes the .
Group's social housing assets, it does not include the Group's investment
properties or Investments inte Joint ventures. When these additional
assets are takenintg account, the Group's gearlng at the year-énd -
is 56.7%.

The reinvestment metric shows a reduction from 21. 7% forthe ~
year ended 31 March 2018 to 5 0% for the year ended 31 March 2019
as aresult of the approx|mately 4,000 Arpeggio leased houses being
recognised underfinance lease arrangements during the year ended
31 March 2018.

Online annual report and accounts www,placesforpeaple.co.uk/annuatreport

Annual Report

Benchmarkmg

The Group participates in the Sector Scorecard affordable housing

benchmarking group. Housemark is overseeing the collection and
collation of data for this benchmarking group, which includes over 300 )
registered providers. It measures efficiency within the sector and reviews
and compares performance.

This has provided benchmarking data so the Group can be compared
to the wider affordable housiny sector. The results from this benchmsrkmg
exercise are set out in the table opposite, where available, They compare
the Group's metrics as at 31 "March 2019 and 3t March 2018 to the latest
available Sector Scorecard benchmarking data as at 31 March 2018.

As the table shows; the Group performs well against these benchmarks.
Our Efficiency and Productivity Group will continue ta drive and strengthen
value for maney performance in the coming year. We cantinue to invest
in new hames. In July 2018 the Group was selected by Homes England
as one of eight strategic.partners to deliver more affordable homes
across England. As part of this agreement we witl boast our investment
in new supply and deliver 2,400 additional aﬁordable tiomes over the

coming years
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. : . 4 Benchmark "~
Indicator . ; 2019 Group Median 2018

Reinvestment CUs0% st s,

New supply delivered o
(sacial housing units) . -: -

" New supply deliye'r‘eéj. R
- (non-social housing units) : -

Gearing %

EBITDAMRI

«

Headline sqéial housing cost perunit : .

*£3139 .-

Operating margin 'Asch'idlhpqsin'g letting 48.0% :

’ Operating'ma;f'gin gy;ara'll' t . 24.3% .. K

ROCE

Customer satisfied with service'pr'ovided

by their. social housing provider * 88.7% - ) 87.5% 879%

£ invested for eve;y £ generaled from

aperations in communities* - £0.0 - BO - boor

Occupancy’ h T 99.4%  99.4% . 99.3%

Rent collected* C o 10L3%  999%. - 100.4%

*Affordable housing only
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Social impact

" Our Group vision is ‘cr‘eétihgﬂplaces th:at' -
‘work for everyone’. Creating social impact
is at the centre of everything we do. |

- We use commercial approaches to deliver
_ social outcomes and the profit we make -
is reinvested to make a difference to people,
places and planet. Over the last year, we
have made a significant impact oh some
of the mast challenging problems in saciety

and helped people to overcome barriers ‘ < Suppof’cing
toreach their potential. ) : wellbeing
Improved | o Improving. -
hfe chances %l% 8 8 @ mental health
AcceSs to = 4 - r—‘ ‘ Reduéihg .
' bene’fits““' ' O\,\_ obesity

: Home
- improvements

R PN Cre‘a'ting -
>< employment

C] " Providing -

‘training

er Apprentlceshlps

Somal Impact

" Outcomes
delivered -

Supporting
* . charities

Providing % '
affordable | :
L ﬂnance

SR ﬂ o
Engaglng q_mﬂ G@% I | _Dlgltal ,

_ young people inclusion

" Reducing
" isolation -

Qnline annual report and accounts www.pl farpeople,ca.uk/; Irapart
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Our social impact:

social value generated
by our regulated activities. .

" How we create social impact

Across the Group, we create sacial impact
in three ways:

Places Impact

Places Impact is our Group-wide function @

. 1 responsible for delivering saciatimpact. g

. Its three key roles are to: 3
Creating saocial impact o ) . 3

opportunities by, ’ 1 Maximise the social value of our existing ) : ) 5

'providing employment L activities across the Graup. in social ya(ue generated by aur ,fé

2 Multiply our social value by creating new lelsure business for local authorities g

or training and making
. itarequirement in our
supply chain.

through improvements in physical and mental
wellbeing, educational attainment
and reductions in crime.

oppartunities ta deliver impact.
3 Measure social impact acrass the Group.-

Lo - All activities delivered by Places |mpact ahgn
! with the IMPACT pnnoples .

" — Innovative: New ideas to deliver sociat .
change are tested.

~— Measuyrabtle: Effective processesarein .
place ta measure sacial impact and learn.

pedple helped into work,
training, skills development or -
. volunteering apportunities.

2

Generating social value

- Purposefﬁl: All activities are directed at
addressing a clear social issue in a timely

through our services, such
" as providing specialist
support, running leisure
facilities and-offering

aﬁordablé credit. across the Group and externally, g
~  Transferable: Approaches that we test ' y n R
will have the potential to be replicated . children {earmng to swim eac week an
across the Group in ather neighbourhoods. 2t Places l,elAsure acilities. g
(%3
' o
3 ; o
oL dditional C people helped who were homeless o
Taking additiona steps or at risk of being homeless,
to deliver social value ' '
by providing grants,
. volunteering
opporiunities, fundraising
or social lnvestf'r.lent dpportunilies pravided for
to make a positive, ~ young people ta fulfil .
difference to . their patential.
people’s lives. -
™\

way that aligns with Group priorities.

Accessible: Services will be accesslble
and inclusive. .

Collaborative: We will work in partnership -
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People

Supporting people to
‘reach their potential

Reducing homelessness

Homelessness is a growing challenge across
.the UK, Shelter states that there are over
300,000 homeless people living on the streets, -
in temparary accommodation o ‘sofa surfing’
with family and friends. Across the Group,
. we have supported 5,300 peaple who were
horrieless or at risk of being homeless over
the past year by providing accommodation
and specialist support.

In Westminster, for example, RMG runs
the Housing Options Service in partnership
with Shelter and The Passage charities to
support people at risk of hamelessness. The
contract is focused on prevention and early
intervention. Nearly 2,000.people have received
advice and support over the last year and 608
people have been successfully moved |nto
permanent accommodation,

Living Plus offers accommodatlon .
and specialist suppart for homeless people
including refugees, families, and people with
complex needs, In Bristol, for example, Living
Plus runs three hostels, which support 44
clients with issues including homelessness,
mental health and substance misuse. -

A Graup-wide team is being led by Living
Plus to develop further inngvative solutions
to address homelessness in the UK.

- Tackling domastic violence -
. Official statistics show that in the last year,

1.3 million wornen and nearly-700,000 men
were victims of domestic abuse. The Group

| provides services directly and with specialist

partners to support people who have suffered
from damestic violence.

For example; in Northumberland, meg
Plus provides an integrated domestic abuse
support service, which includes a refuge and

- independent domestic violence advisars for

high-risk cases. The advisars have supported
678 people in the first year and the refuge
provided safe accommadation for 102 peaple.
Our affordable housing businesses have
signed up to the ‘Make a Stand’ campaign to
support people who are experiencing domestic

.abuse. The campaign pledged to implement

policies and procedures to help customers
and staff, so they know where to go for help.

Offering affordable credit

In the UK, many families are under financial
pressure and over six million people turn to
alternative finance, such as high-cost payday
lenders, to make ends meet. Ta help address
this issue, Places for People Financial Services
provides financial products, such as aﬁordable
loans, to custamers,

So far, over 13,000 affordabte loans
have been provided to a value of £10m, with
customers saving an average of £235 ona £500
loan, compared to adoorstep lender. A recent
survey of customers found that 80% said

‘borrowing from us had helped to reduce their

levels of stress and 73% reported improvements
in their wellbeing.

Onfine annual report and accounts www.placestarpeople,ca,uk/annualreport = -
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Places for People Financial Services

. has won the Feefo Gold Service award, an
.independent seal of excellence, The award

recagnises businesses for delivering an

 exceptional customer experience, as rated

by custarners, -

. Supporting older people

The population in the UK is ageing. in
mid-2014, the average age exceeded 40 for
the first time, and by 2040 nearly one in seven
people is projected to be aged over 75. Acrass
the Group, we are delivering a wide range of
activities for older people, including support
for people with dementia, reducing loneliness
and promoting physical activity.,

Shape Lancashire, which is funded by aur
Homechaice programme, delivers activities
for older people tiving.in our housing in Preston
and Bury. We provided over 500 opportunities
for customers to take part in the project, which
aims to address issues'such as loneliness and
isolation, as well as improving general wellbeing.

Similarly, the Touchstone Fund has
supported two projects that use reminiscence-
based activities to engage older peaple with
dementia. This involves encouraging people
to write about their life through prose; poetry,
photographs and drawing memories. Through
this process, people gain campanionship and
mental stimutation. It also helps to improve
their wellbeing and reduce isolation. '

Em,pl,dyment and,traiﬁing
opportunities

Employment is at record tevets, but

there is stilt a need to inspire the warkforce
of tomorrow and help people back into work
who have faced challenges in their lives. Qver
the last year, we have warked with partners
to support over 2,700 people into employment,
training or development opportunities.

“ In Lancashire, Places Foundation is
detivering the Building Better Opportunities
project, which is led by Selnet UK and funded

“bythe National Lottery Cammunity Fund and
the European Sociat Fund. Over 50 of the most

economically and sacially exctuded people have .
been helped to improve their tife chances and
find work or training through the programme,

. The project works closely with the
Miltbank Wellbeing Centre run by Living Plus,
which supports young homeless families, and

-with external agencies such as Job Centre Plus
and Homechoice-funded Chorley Youth Zene. .
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Allenbuild has worked with the Rothschild
Foundation to involve young people in the
construction process at our Golden-Meade
site, in partnership with an organisation called
Volunteer it Yourself. Over 20 young people
have learned essential trade skills through
the praject, such as bricklaying, painting,
decorating, plumbing and titing, and five young

- people have already progressed into ather
employment. A Channel Four documentary
called ‘Building Britain' featured the work at
Golden Meade and explored how teenagers

-are being equipped lo deal with the UK’s
housing issues.

‘Improving Héalth‘
and wellbeing

~The health and social care system in the UK’
is under immense pressure due to rising
* demand and budget challenges. The Group
is helping to respond to these challenges by
offering supported housing and providing
leisure facilities which improve health and
- wellbeing and have aver 30 million visits a year.
Lastyear, Living Plus set up new
" step-down services for customers leaving
hospital. This helps to relieve ‘bed-blocking’,
which in turn saves the NHS money and
provides a better transition for patients back
into their community. Across Living Plus,
93% of customners said the service has had
a positive impact on their life.
In Rotherham, Places Leisure works in
_ partnership with a social prescribing mentat
. health scheme to prowde physical activities,
buddy sessions in the gym, nutrition-
. workshops, mind and wellbeing workshops
"and suppart to access ather community
services that promate independence.

Places Leisure runs an ‘exercisé on ’
referral’ programme at 60 sites for people
‘ta access opportunities for physical activity.

This enables GPs and health professionals -
to directly refer patients who are sedeﬁ(ary

and have one or more medical canditions.
The 12-week supervised exercise programme
_is delivered on site by qualified fitness
instructors, with the aim of developing
positive, lang-term behavioural change.

Engaging young people.

Youth services across the country have
reduced as a result of public sector spending -
cuts and there is widespread concern about
knife crime. The Group has provided over
14,000 opportunities for young peaple to fulfil
their potential by supperting positive acllvmes
in communities.

61
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improvin'g wellbeing
for older people

Living Plus has been working with Qomph, -
an award-winning social enterprise, to.provide
exercise classes for older people across

14 sites. Sport England has subsidised the
programme, which has trained 21 instructors
to run sessions for 1,512 participants. The
sessions include activities to develop strength,
flexibility and caordination, with games such
as Slipper Saccer, Armchair Volleyball and -
Clock Cricket. Games are accessible to people
with a variety of needs and have helped to
improve wellbeing for participants,

Our affordable housing business is
working with the Blackburn Rovers Community
Land Trust to deliver weekly sports sessions
in our neighbourhoods, using in\_/eslrrjent from -
Homechoice and the Premier League. Sofar, -~
900 opportunities have been provided for
young people to attend sessions, engaging
them in activities that promote positive

~ behaviour, improve their physical abilities and

help them ta realise their potential. Anti-social
behaviour-in the area has fatlen by 18% since
the project started.

In Chorley, aur affordable housing business
is a founder patron and funder of the Youth
Zone, a cutting-edge facility that has over 5,400
members. The centre offers fully equipped
exercise and boxing gyms, a music studio;

a climbing wall and a craft room, as well as_
training in employment and life skills. Reduced
bus fares have even been negotiated with the
local bus campany to enable young people . -
from surrounding areas to travel to the Youth
Zone and access the services on offer.

‘Supporting digital inclusion -

* Digital exclusion can cause social isolation
and prevent people from accessing essentiat
infortation and services. According to charity
Good Things Foundatian, just over 14% of
people in the UK are digitally excluded, in that
they are unable to access information online.

Across the Group, our businesses are helping
customers to overcome these barriers.

For example, Cotman Housing is detivering
the ‘Too Old to Learn — Never' project, with
support fram the Touchstane Fund. More than
200 otder customers fram Essex and Norfolk,

aged from 60 to aver 80, toak part in the project

with the aim of getting anline and reducing
digital exclusion.

 Volunteer custarner champions are also
providing ane-to-one hame visits to support
other custamers, enabling them to keep
in touch with family members and friends,
shop anline and play games to keep their

_ minds active.

The success of the praject has ga(ned

. national recognition, with two of the customer

champions showcasing the project ata
Housing Quality Network event in London.

"In addition, we set up a Digital Champion
project that involves front-line staff referring
‘customers for support to our Digital Inclusion
Qfficer, wha signposts them to free courses
in their local area at community centresand
libraries. We have also been consulting ’
customers.about making improvements to our
online services lo make them more accessible
and we have developed an action plan of
priorities to address their needs.

\
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Place

Creating places that
work for everyone

‘Managing successful _
neighbourhoods

Over 77,000 opportunities were taken up
by customers invalved in events in their
neighbourhoads, Gur award-winning
neighbourhaod planning and nelghhourhood
" assessment processes have been
. mainstreamed in our affardable housing
businesses. The neighbourhood planning
~ approach identifies and addresses specific
“challenges facing each area and reﬂects the
priarities of local residents.
This involves assessing indicators such as

customer prafile, satisfaction and engagement, |

allocations and lettings, void management,
" repairs, asset investment, income recovery,
community safety, site services, kerb appeal
-and environmental improvements, to
understand the key drivers of neighbourhcod
performance and develop lacal action plans
to address them. : )

'

Supporting active
communities
The benefits of physical activity are well-
known, but data from Sport England shows
that 25% of the population is currently mactlve.
Across the Group, we are providing
oppartunities for people to take part in physical
activity to improve their health and wellbeing. -
Places Leisure is delivering a Healthy
Communities strategy across 38 local
authorities. Activities are tailored to meet

local needs and developed in consultation with -

local autharities and clinical commissioning
graups. Al our leisure centre in Wandswaorth,

" for example, there were over 9,000 referrals

last year and 76% of participants were from
the mast deprived parts of the borough.
Activily levels have increased by 72%

.across participants over lhe 12 weeks

of the programme.
* InHull, our affordable housing busmess
is.working with partners including UK Active,

the Royal Coltege of Paediatrics and Child

Health, and Liverpool John Maores University,
to increase physical activity for 4,000 families.
This cross-sector initiative is funded by Sport .
Engtand to encourage families to enjoy arange
of fun activities, cannect ta their local facilities
and open spaces, and i increase physical

. acuvuy levels.

Online annual report and accounts www.pl orp
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Investing in communities

Our Homechaice programme funds projects

_ thatimprove customer experience in affordable

housing neighbourhoods across the country. -
QOver the last year, the programme has invested
£220,000 and obtained over £82,000in
additional match-funding to deliver projects
in communities. For example, the programme
sypported the ‘Sustaining Tenancles at Risk’
project in North East England, whichisa
partnership project between Living Plus and
arange of specialist organisations to support
customers wha are struggling with their
tenancy. Customers are identified by tocal

_ teams and referred to Living Plus staff to

assess and support their needs,
The annual Touchstone Fund delivered

" by the Places Foundation provides grants to

improve and enhance neighbourhoads where
the Graup has a presence. The fund was
launched in late 2013 and is now in its fifth
successful year of aperation. The latest cohort
of projects focuses on routes to employability
and tenancy sustainability. For example, the”
fund supported the ‘Healthy Standard of Living
for All’ project, which helps 18-25-year alds to
set up and sustain their first home after leaving
temporary accemmadation. Sessians focus on

_ finances, home conditions, health and safety,

safer estates and planning for the future.

Supporting new businésse,s

_ Our joint venture at East Wick and Sweetwater

at the Londan 2012 Olympic Park has .
established a growth fundto invest £500,000 in
start-up businesses over 10 years, We are also
working with Makeshift to develop workspace, .
community facilities and retail space for new
business in this thriving part of East London.
The Places Foundatian invested.
£100,000 in the Big Issue's ‘Invest Corporate
SactalVenturmg programme in 2014, The
programme provided mentaring and finance
for 30 early stage social businesses, in
partnership with Barclays Bank, Fusion21,
First Ark, Experian and the Unlversny
of Northampton.
These businesses are now repaying
the loans and delivering a positive social
impact. Parent Hub, for example, is one of
the businesses supported by the pragramme.
It has developed a smartphane app that

_ facilitates two-way communication between

parents and teachers, to help engage parents
in their child's learning, particularly in areas
whare parental involvement is weak. -
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Cotman ‘Stilf on the go’ ~
Sport England project
‘Stilt on the ga' is a Cotrnan Housing
Assaciation project funded by Sport
England and delivered in partnership
. with Places for Peaple'Leisure. The
" project aims ta support physically
inactive older people to achievea
_minimum of 30 minutes’ exercise
aweek, in line with Sport England's
strategic ambitions ofencouraging
-an active nation. -

thraugh one-to-one work and peer
support from a poolofcustomer ’
ambassadors

Fifteen pro;ect-specxﬁc sessions’
are delivered each week through Places ‘

- for People Leisure’s Riverside Centre

in Norwich. These range from off-site

_activities in sheltered hausing to zZumba’

classes, gym and aqua-fit sessions at
the centre. By February 2019, 10 months

it explores ways to overcome
" barriers to exercise, such as fear, lack
of confidence and financial deprivation, -

Improving community’
spaces

Community buildin'gs where people can meet, A

socialise and take partin activities are an

". essential aspect of thriving places, Our ‘Major

Warks Makeover' pragramme brings together-
Group companies and supply chain partners
to deliver an annual makeover to a locat
community facility nominated by our front-
. line staff,
In 2018, we renavated the IvyStreet
" Community Centre in Blackburn, located in
an area where we have 130 general needs
properties anda supporled living scheme,
The centre provides a wide range of services

and sacial activities for focat people, including -

youth groups, services for disabled adults,

.spart clubs, parent and taddler sessions anda
drap-in family health clinic. The impravements

to the centre were co-ordinated by Places

Impact and delivered by aur property services

division, along with supply chain contractors,

including Novus Property Solutions and ENGIE.
In Bradford, our Homechaice programme

has funded the Lower Grange Communily

Centre to déliver aclivities-to improve

customer's’ wellbeing, support them to get

ontine and develop new skills. The centreisa -

facal point for the lacal cammunity. Our funding

has enabled it o obtain further external

support to expand its grawing range of

activities to meet local community needs.
Activities inclide a youth club, keép-

fit classes and digital inclusion training,

and health and beauty courses. To date, aver

650, 0pportunities for people ta participate

in activities have been provided, with over

90 sessions dellvered and 43 people :

B recelvmg training. -

after going live, the project cetebrated
its 200th customer. -

Fundraising for charities

" Our staff ac!ivoly fundraise for charities that .

facus on a wide range of sacial issues. Staff
can apply for match funding from the Group .
for donations of up to'£250.

For example, colleagues from RMG run

" a ‘wellbeing calendar' that includes staff
support for social responsibility initiatives and -

a partfalio of major charities. In 2018, staff from

- RMG's Northwich office raised over £30,000
. for the Booth Centre homelessness charity
“in Manchester, as well as.support-in-kind

!hrough volunteering. -
Staff from Brio organised a Sk charity walk

“in Chapelton and raised £1,750 for the North ]
East Sensory Services charity. A further charity -

walk is planned for 2019,

The managing director of Miltwaod
Designer Homes, meanwhile, completed 3
charity trek that raised £100,600 for the Atlas

. Foundation. The trek was undertakenin a

persanal capacity, but was well-supported

.by Millwood colleagues, suppliers and

subcontractors.
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Planet

Improving energy efficiency

Our affordable housing business has invested
over £13.2m on home improvements in our
praperties throughout 2018/19, future-praofing
aur homes and making a real difference to the
lives of our customers. ’ .

In addition we invested £4.2m in various
energy efficiency projects — an Increase of
£500,0600 on 2017/18. These impravements .
have reduced the emissions of our affardable

" housing stock by aver 205,000 CO; kg per year.
This equates to an average reduction of 554kg
'of CO, and £96 of runnmg costs per ‘property,
per year.

We replaced the windows and external
doors on 1,187 praperties to make them more
energy efficient, We alsa replaced 2,042 boilers
and improved the loft insulation on over 110
_properties, enabling our customers to heat
their homes more effectively and éfficiently.

le.co.uk/:
p

Reducmg corporate energy
consumption

We are always loaking to find ways to reduce
our energy consumptien, such asintroducing
more efficient IT equipment or promoting

- energy-saving behaviour among our teams.

Our corporate offices achieved notable
progress In this regard, décreasing electricity
consumption by 3.86% and gas by 18N%
during 2018/19.

The solar PV panels at our Group Support
Office have generated 257,242kWh of electricity
since they were installed in June 2013. This .
green energy helps to reduce our overall’
carbon footprint. The PV consumption is
monitored monthly and all electricity generated
‘is used to power the office.

Touchstone achieved further energy saving

.success, retaining its SO 14001 and 50001
certification and reducing energy use across
lwo offices by 25.4%.

Reducing travel

Business travel during 2018/9 decreased
by 130,573 miles, a fall of 6% from the previous
year, helped in particular by an increased use
of video canferencing. During the same peried,

* over 5,3'million business miles were saved

through vided canferencing, which is the-
equivalent of 1,549 tonnes of CO;.

lreport
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We recognise that travel is an essential

_part ofdl.ll business, so where we are unable

toreduce the mileage or use alternative
technologies like videa, canferencmg. we are

" taking ather measures reduce our lmpac(

on the environment.
The average CO; emissions of our company

_.car fleet is 117.9 g/km CO; per vehicle, which

we are workingto reduce, Our company car -
optians now include nine types of electric/hybrid
vehicle, and half the fleet for Millwood Designer
Hemes are hybrid and etectric vehicles.
Touchstone has introduced a car sharing
initiative, offers discounts for public transport
and promotes a cycle-to-work scheme to
encourage staff to think differently about how
they travel lo the office. .
New technology is helping us to reduce our
impact on the enviranment yet further. For
example, Castle Rack Edinvar is piloting an

_ e-bike scheme for travelling between its

Edinburgh offices.

Reducing waste

Waste is a growing problem and has been

. the facus of much media coverage in recent

months. The Group has introduced a number
of initiatives to reduce waste and 72% of waste

_produced at our corporate offices was recycled

this year. Recycling initiatives include
awareness days and office recycling campaigns.
Although recyeling is crucial, however,

. preventing the praduction-of waste in the first
- placeis even better. We saved 244,499 sheets

of paper by encouraging staff to take more
responsibility for printing documents and
avaiding unnecessary printing.

At our Brio sites, we consider the ’ﬁve Rs'
of refuse, reduce, reuse, rot, recycle when

. commissioning developments. Customers

are encouraged to drive less and use our
shuttle bus service. Locally-saurced food is
also available at the on-site State and Grain
restaurants to reduce food miles.
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Zero C - Robofough
eco-village
Roborough Eco Homes in Bickleigh,
Devan, won the highly-coveted gald
‘award for Best Sustainable Development
* inthe WhatHouse? Awards, Judges said
it was a “triumph In delivering truly
eco-build housing which successfully.
combines stylish design with carbon
conscious living.”

Celebratmg the country's very best'
new homes, the WhatHouse? Awards’
are judged by an extensive panel of
praperty experts, including architects,
surveyors, property writers and industry -
‘specialists. The panel remarked that
Bickleigh was an “eco-henchmark that
others would do well to follow.”

Avoiding landfill

Our Property Maintenance department
diverted 93% of its waste from landfill during
2018/19. Similarly, Allenbuild's effective
waste management praclices at its new .
build developments ensure that 96% of
non-hazardous waste is diverted from landfill.
Outstanding site results include Brooklands
Square, which diverted 98% of waste
fromlandfill. -~ - ‘ .

.Other successes include Hope Social
Enterprisesin Cambridgeshire, part of the
Chorus Homes Group, which runs a furniture
shop that recycles second-hand furniture.
During the lasl year, 543 customers purchased
- itemsresulting in a £11,000 turnover, and

.- preventing more unnecessary tandfill.

Offering a range of two- Lo five-
bedroom homes, and one- and twa-bed.
apartments, the Bickleigh development

. hoasts fantastic sustainable qualities,

capable of achieving a 100% reduction in
target emissions compared to building
regulations guidelines. :
Using the latest energy-saving
technology, cambined with highty
efficient, durable materials and

construction methods designed to

minimise waste, the homes arestriking .
in appearance and built to last.

Me.a'suring impact: Social
Value Dashboard

Technology can play a.vikal role in

_satlal enterprise Reason Digital, we have
measurement and analytics app: the Social -
Value Dashboard.

The Social Value Dashboard prowdes a

report on a diverse range of sacial impact .
outcomes. As a digital application, it can be

and customer engagement activities.
The dashboard is now live across-our

opportunities, fram financial and digital

to sports projects for younger people,

measuring and understanding how we deliver:
- soclal value. Working with award-winning -

invested in the develapment of a social impact -

Group-wide approach to capture, analyse and

used by frant-line staff to récard sacial value V

affordable housing businesses and s currently
being rolled out to all Group companies, -
In 2018/19, we reparted 42,000 sacial value

* inclusion work with older custemers, through

45

The dashboard also recorded 35,000

“oppartunities for customers to engage with us
_to help shape the way we deliver our services,

Sacial value monetary figures are
calculated by using the established HACT
methadalagy for the afferdable housing total
and the Sheffield Hallam methed for our
lelsure totat.

The strategic report was apﬁroved by
the boord of directors on 18 July 2019
and signed.on its belialf by:

David Cowans, Group Chief Executive.’
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Principal activities of the Group

Places for People is one of the largest praperty and leisure management,
development and regeneration groups in the UK. We build, rent, sell’
and manage homes, manage leisure facilities, provide employment and
training opportunities, support new and existing businesses, and offer
financiat products and specialist care and support services te over *
00,000 customers, -

' Performance for the year

The Group's profit befare tax for the year was £95.5m (2018 £130. 2m)
The 2018-profit betare tax included a gain of £45.2m in respect of Chorus
Homes jaining the Group. As such the profit before tax tor the year ended
.2018 on a camparable basis is £85.0m, A full review of the performance

for the year can be found in the Financial Review section on pages 52 ta 53,

" Business review ..

Information that fulfils the business review requirements applicable to
the Group can be found in this report, the Chairman and Chief Executive
statements and the Strategic Report. ’

Measuring success

2015/18 "2018/19

Kgy operational .mc'aasm'es Performance Performance

Tatal losses from: empiyhomes

{affordable hausing) .0.90% - 1.24% -

rorianerousing o

rossr e
- zaﬁs;:;;llcel?\%uang propert;es) 99.90% 99.99%

gcffcour%aa?sg ;it:sing) 99.'26% 99.55%

e —
‘ ,Numirer of RIDDOR reportable incidents ' 2 S )

" (rolling 12 fhonths)
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Directors’ report

Health and safety

The recognition of responslhmly for and ownership of safety
management is firmly embedded within each.Group company. This local
ownership allows a business-centred approach te safety which takes into
account the individual safety and employee profile of each company, its
prigrities and risk profile. This has also allowed for greater accountability,
with health arid safety performance being monitored and challenged
by the Graup Health, Safely and Wellbeing Director, both at local safety
steering group meetings and at the Group Health and Safety Compliance
and Strategy Board.

The number of accidents to employees reportable to the Health and

. Safety Executive (those of a serious nature or preventmg an employee -

from doing their normal duties far mare than seven days) has been
reduced significantly during the 2018/19 financial year, from 25 in 2017/18 )

1019 in 2018/19 — a reduction of 24%. In addition we have reduced the

number of non-reportable accidents by 9% and increased our number
of completed accident and incident investigations to 100%. The
comprehensive data from these mveshga}lans will allow us talearn

. and implement changes to prevent repeat accidents.

The strategic objectives for this three-yaar business plan cycle

* have been updated ta reflect progress made in the lasl financial year:

— To further reduce the rate of RIDDOR reportable acc:denls to staﬁ
acrass the Group by at least 10% yéar on year. .

—  To decrease the number of Lost Time Incidents (accidents and .
injuries which result in an employee being absent from wark for
between 1 and 7 days) across the whole Group by at least 10%.

— To continue to adapt the annual health and safety assurance . .
process to reflect the safety maturity of each part of the Group
by setting bespoke continuous improvement milestones at the
beginning of each financial year that are challenging but achievable
and designed to incrementally improve safely maturity and promote
positive safety culture change.

— To continue to increase the focus on health and wellhemg by
providing resources, information and oppertunities far Group
companies to devise and |mplemen1 strategies to |mprove
employee health,

— Ta continue to provide value for money through the Group Health
and Safety Team, performing alt agreed-activities and providing
ad hoc services, to companies or collectively to the Group, in line
with agreed resources, capacity and budget. The Group Health,
Salety and Wellbeing Director witl cantinue to meet with each Group
company senior leadership team to ensure that commitments are
being met and that value for money is being achieved.
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* The primary function of the Group Health and Safety Team will
continue to be cornpliance auditing, for which thére is now an annual
pragramme, and leading on incident investigations which carry a

. significant corparate risk or which have necessitated the involvément *
". of the enforcement agencies. Health and Safety auditing hot onlylacks
at compliance with legislation and internal gundance but alse covers
reporting on safety maturity and evaluates safely culture, suggesung
improvements where necessary.
. InJanuary 2019, the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) prosecuted
Group campany Allenbuild Limited, under the Construction (Designand -
'Management) Regulations 2015 in respect of a fatal accident to an agency
waorker at a construction site in Edinburgh. Allenbuild Limited pleaded
guilty to the charge and received afine'of £600,000. .
" There continues to be a sustained focus on fire safety managemenl
throughout the Group, and with the release of the recent Hackitt repart
. and the Gavernment's subsequent ‘Building a Safer Future'

implementation Plan, there is now a blueprint for improvements in this .

area. In a number of areas we have atready made significant progress:
we are currenlly in the process of retrafitting sprinkler systems in our
affordable housing blocks of six storeys and above, and we are already
advanced in the area of customer involvement in our Affordabte Housing
businesses. We have set up workshops and communicatian channels far
. tustomers to be.involved in decisions and raise any concerns around fire
safely and these have been well received. We are also learning lessons ™
from the Gavernment's ‘Early Adopters' of the Hackitt recommendations
- compames that cover a broad spectrum of the constructionand -
property management industry — and there are initiatives and innovations
. that we can replicate within Places for People to ensure we-are nol
waiting for legislation to make improvements. . :
- Where appropriate, the Group Health and Safety Teamn W|ll continue
lo work closely with other parts of the business to ensure that its work
is carried out as efficiently and transparently as possible, and that the
central health and safety function is providing best value for maney.

Wellbeing :

. Within the Group we have increased our facus on wellbeing over the last
year, which will culminate in the publication of the Group's wellbeing

* strategy designed to draw tagether all the many initiatives which runin
the Graup companies and introduce a consistent approach to wellbemg .
_activities which engage aur staff and assist with recruitment and

- retention of top talent. We already have a comprehensive and mature
Employee Assistance Programme in place, and a substantial amount

of health and wellbeing information through our Qccupational Health
provider, but we saw the need to bring our proactive and reactive
wellbeing activities under one banner. The strategy covers not onty
employee workplace wellbeing, but also commits us to cantinuing our
customer physical, mentat and social wellbeing initiatives in our existing' .
‘places and embedding wellbeing inta all our placemaking activities.
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_Inparticular we are identifying and training 'Wellbeing Champions’
across all Group cempanies who will take responsibility far identifying
and encouraging health-related initiatives in their awn husinesses based
an their own demographics, and who will network with peers to share
ideas, resources and evaluations to make sure projects and events
are both effective and efficient. The action ptan which accompanies the
wellbeing strategy has identified the key areas of musculo-skeletal .

’ d_isordvers'and mental health as priorities for action as they accaunt for -

a significant proportion 6f our sickness absence, and therefore activities
which focus on lmpravemems in these areas will be at the top of
lhe agenda.

" Inrelationto musculo»skelelal issues, we will be loaking at ways in

" which we canincorparate mare physical activity into our warking lives —

we have already run a successful ‘Fitbit Challenge’ which was warmly
received and included teams from many of our companies competing in
step-based challenges over'a six-month period. We intend to capitalise
on this success by.introducing a Group-wide 'Daily Mile” initiative - similar
to that which has been successfully intraduced in primary schools across
the country — using existing app-based technology whichis usedin

1" Places Leisure. We wilt also be encouraging greater physical activity
~generally: identifying walking/running routes from each office,

encouraging watking and cycling to work and waorking with our Leisure
colleagues to participate in campaigns such as National Fitness Day.

We have always recognised that mental wellbeing is vital to ensuring "

a healthy and happy warkforce and we already train aur managersto

. identify-and manage stress in the workplace through our leadership

training progrémme. In addition, however, we are training alarge cohort
of Mental Health First-Aiders acrass the whote Group t6 provide support

| tocolleaguesincrisis; we are investing in refurbishing our office porifolia”
. ta provide modern environments which cater for all different styles of

working; and we have also sel up yoga classes across a number of our -

" sites to assist our calleagues in mindful relaxation, We will continue to

look at other ways we can raise the awareness and reduce the stigma
assaciated with mental ill-health by participating In key national
campaigns, such as Mental Health Awareness Week, and runmng
local initiatives II"I each Group company.

Prmmpal risks and uncertamtles
The Group faces a number of significant risks across its huslnesses )

“including housing management, development, properly managemnent
" and leisure management. All the Group’s risks are monitored closely
and managed to an acceptabie level through a rabust control environment. -

and a high degree of scrutiny and chatlenge, as outlined in the following
table, These risksinclude the key elements shown in the'table.
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Mitigation

Economic downturn

Interest rate risk

_The Group's strategy is to contain interest rate risk within
309 of the debt book, with the board exercising a strict control
over derivative transaclions. At the year end, 77% of debt was
either held at fixed rates of interest or hedged against rate
" ’movements.

The Group manages its exposure lo this risk through a mix of debt at fixedrates
of interest and interest rate hedging techniques. It is estimated that each 0.25%
increase in interest rates would increase interest payahle costs by £0.9m per’
annum. Due ta the low levels of cash and cash depasits held, the lmpac! of achange

inthe interest rate on interest receivable is insignificant.

Liquidity risk

Liqt)idily risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty
. inmeeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. "

The Group's approach to managing (iquidity is to ensure, as far as is passible,

it wilt always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities, under bath normal

" and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage

to the Group's reputation. The Group's palicy is to ensure that sufficient cash and
committed loan facilities are available and immiediately accessible to finance a-

. minimum of ane year's cash flow. Due to ongoing Brexit uncertainties, facilities
- have been maintained to create additional liquidity than required by this policy.

Foreign q:urrencyerisk

. The Group has no averseas subsidiaries and trades only
- insterling. The Group has same debt whlch is denominated
in forelgn currency.

The Group's strategy is to mitigate currency risk arising fram foreign currencyA

_ denominated debt. This is achieved using cross-currency interest rate swaps.

Currency cash flow exposure is fully hedged s0a change in the foreign currency
rate would be fully oﬁset by the swaps. :

Impacts of Brexit

On 23 June 2014, the UK public voted to {eave the EU. There
remains considerable palitical and econamic uncertainty on
the UK's future econamic and political retationship with the
EU, the timing and extent of any changes and the consequent
impact on the UK economy. The Group has identified five key
risks: borrowmg costs and sales and rental values; labour
constraints; cost and access lo companents; failure or
underperformance of keysuppliers; and customer hardship.

The Group has set a Brexit strategy to |dentify key risks, understand impacts’
on the Group companies and customers, and to prepare mitigations as appropriate,

" including assessing likely scenarios.
- Inconsidering mitigating actions, the Group has assessedthe proportlon ofits

_suppliers from the EU and continued to develop a dedicated procurement strategy
designed to reduce the risk of increased cost or delays from suppliers.

In addition the Group has analysed its exposure to non-UK workers and found itto
be tow, although there are pockets of concentration where a pragramme of activity -
is underway ta support affected workers to apply for settled status.

‘Further activity has included assessing'lhe' vulnerability of the corparate estate

. and Group IT systems in Lhe event of a dlsorderly Brexit and the risk is considered

to be low.

) The wider r(sk of significant economic turbulence resul\mg from the vote to leave

the EU that could lead, among other things, to difficulties in accessing finance

" and increased interest rates is considered in the liquidity and interest rate risks

assessed above. In addition the stress lesting of the Group's 10 year plan provides
comfort that the busnness can continue to operate effecnvely if significant negative
events occur.

1 1
eport
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Mitigation

Debt 'funding, market and treasury risk

Market valatility could impact adversely on the rating agencies’ view of
the financial stability of the Group. For exampte, sovereign debt could be
downgraded in the future, therefare making access to sufficient band
funding at acceptable rates more difficult. c

The Group utilises increasingly diverse sources and types of funding
which reduces reliance on particular financing instruments, This
diversification strategy is reflected in more than a quarter of debt being
raised in foreign currency.

A prudenl treasury strategy is in place which allows the Grouptoseek -
finance at appropriate rates when apportunitles arise. The board
regularly monitors and scrutinises the fundmg position through the
Treasury Committee.

Government axjd legislative (including Welfare kefa(m)

in 2015 the Government intraduced a rent settiement for sacial housing
in England which delivers a cumulative 1% rent cut aver four years
commencing in April 2016. This change was accompanied by ptans to
change the nature and method of payment of state benefits, notably the
intraductian of Universal Credit, although the fult rell aut of Unlversal
Credit has been delayed untit 2023.

Ta inform our strategy and business plan each year, the Group develops
a comprehensive analysis of the operating environment. This provides
facts, figures and commentary on government.and legislative

" developments and key changes in the markets in which we are active,

Following the rent reduction, the Group has delivered the savings
required while maintaining profit margins and service standards..
Although the implementation of Universal Credit had been delayed, the
Group continues ta maintain a project to monitor the impact and mitigate
the adve.rse‘ impact of the introduction of Universal Credit.

Development and land risk (and joint ventures)

The Group holds a cansiderable amount of land stack and wurk
in progress on its balance sheet. -

TheGroup's ability to manage the build-out and performance of its major
development projects is addressed through strong project management
structures for each majar development that allow for flexibility in
product mix and build-out timetables. Furthermore, development risk . -
is being shared through the formation of tailored jaint ventures with
specialist construction partners. Group flexibility and development
options have been enhanced with the acquisition of both canstruction and
devetopment companies that broaden the commercial offerings available.

1

Data managemént and governance ’

Ifdata management and governance processes and systems were
unable to meet information needs and regutatory requirements this

* could lead to poor decision making, financial loss, compliance fallure
and/or reputational damage.

A Graup data management and governance structure has been
established, including an Insights and Information Committee.

The Group has significant in-house expertise led by the Group Chlef
Da(a and Information Officer,

SIUBLLL

Heailth and safety

The Group could suffer an incident impacting upon the health, safety and.-

wellbeing of its customers, staff or contractors where harm s suffered
by stakehalders and sanctions severe,

Health and safety disciplines are embedded within the GroGp and -
issues reported to management on a regular basis. Health and safety

‘monitering incorporates a wide range of activities fram fire safely,

through to gas servicing alongside staff training.

uodey dhmens

ALATR LISTEINTH

S




72

People

As at 31 March 2019, the Group emptoyed 12,340 staff (6,677 FTE).
8,481 (3,076 FTE) of them are in the Places Leisure business. After
Places Leisure, the next biggest emplayer is the Affordable Housing
business with 1,214 full-time equivalent staff followed by RMG, Places
for People Group and Places for People meg Plus, each with aver
240 full-time equivalent staff,
Fifty eight per cent of our staff are female, The average age of

staff varies across the Group. Places Leisure has a younger staff cohort
with an average age of 33, Around 6.4% of our staff are from black and
minoarity.ethnic backgrounds and approximately 2% have a disability.
QOur turnover and absence rates are low compared with industry norms,
with our current turnaver rate (voluntary) being 16.7%, with the XpertHR
2018 labour turnaver rates research finding the nationat average for
large organisations is 25% (22% median). Employee absence has
outperformed our.target for 2018/19 of 3% at 2.9%, with the XpertHR
2018 absence rates research finding the national median for large
organisations is 3.4%. Through a continued focus on best practice

~ absence management, we have continued to reduce short-term absence,
which stands at 1.2% (2.9% overall including lang-term absence).

" We have an inclusive, values-led and high-perfarmance culture, and
were successful in achieving reaccreditation of the Gold Standard for
{nvestors in People in 2018, We have reviewed our approach to measuring
employee engagement in 2018 and will trial the use of an engagement

index called Great Place to Work in 2019/20, as well as Investors in Peaple, .

in order ta gain more richness of Information with which to improve our
organisation. Our engaged approach is underpinned by our SPIRIT values,
- which are embedded throughout the Group, and across all aur subsidiary
companies. Our values have been developed with our employees and act
as a guide to all of us in Places for Peaple in how we manage and operate
our business. '

During this year we pubtished our second Gender Pay Gap report,
Once again, {ed by our culture and values, we decided to go abave and
beyand the legislation and report an gender pay across the whale Group,
as well as fulfil our statutory requirements to report on our individual
campanies that had 250 or more employees. Our Group repor! showed
our mean gender pay gap to be 4.4% (pravious year 6.3%) and median
gender pay gap ta be 0.9% {previous year -5.9%)— as both numbers have
.moved closer to zero, we believe this is an improvement on previous
years' results. We believe these figures compare favourably with other
companies results as reported by XpertHR and the ONS, While the results
show that our overall pay is neutral by design, our mean and median
bonus.gaps shows there is more work ta be done to ensure we embed
gender equality. We have a Group Gender Action Plan te guide our efforts
in this area.

More generally, the Group values diversity and is committed to
equality. Qur policies and strategies recognise that all peaple have the
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right to their own distinctive and diverse identity. The Group aims to
pravide an inclusive and barrier-free service which is responsive to all -
cammunitles and individual needs. This is reflected in the range of
services that we provide to our diverse customer base. We know that
employing people with different experiences and backgrounds will help
us ta fine tune our services ta meet our different customers' needs

and aspirations.

We positively embrace our responsibility to meel these needs by
having a diverse warkfarce which generally reflects local populalions
and that has the skills and understanding to achieve our objectives.

The Group gives full and fair consideration to employment
applications made by disabled persons having regard ta théir particular
aptitudes and abilities. Recagnising the benefits of a diverse workfarce,
the Group makes appropriate efforts to continue emplaying, and
providing training as required, to employees who become dlsahled
during their employment.

The Group has taken posmve steps to develop best practice and play
a sirategic role in develaping national diversity policy. It serves on key
advisory boards within the sectar, including the Homes England Equality
and Diversity Advisory Board, the Housing Diversity Network and lhe
Londan Diversity Network.

We have expanded our shared services across our subsidiary
companies. Our internal recruitment offer has been taken up by more
areas-of the-Group and we continue to perform well with aver 989 of

" roles filled directly, saving the Group over £2.5m in possible agency fees,

We continue to foster an environment where internal tatent can thrive
and last year close o 18% of rates were filled by internat staff, progressing
their careers or re-training in new areas. Our hiring has continued to
show neutrality across the recruitment process. We have supparted
the business in impraving under-representation of talent in key areas.

During 2018/19, 48% of all.our Senior Manager and Director posts were

filled by women, despite the prevalence of males in this level of the
recruitment market.

The recruitment market durmg 2018/19 has continued 1o be
demanding, with historic low unemployment and political uncertainty
tightening the market for talent. In arder to ensure the growth of Places
for Peaple and our subsidiaries is not hampered by the lack of talent we
have undertaken two key projects that will come to fruition during 2019.
The first project is to create and implement a new engaging employer

" brand, We have worked with an award-winning employer brand specialist .

and engaged the whale company to create something that celebrates aur
view that we are ‘a workplace like no other®. This was launched in May
2019 and will be used across platforms, including social media, to help

“attract talent that matches our values. We have also worked cross

functionally in order to minimise any impact of Brexit. We will become
a spansorship organisation in 2019/20 to ensure we can attract talent
from across the EU and worldwide to support the growth of the business.
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Engaging otir employees is also essential ta our continued success. ’

We inform, consult and involve our employees in a variety of ways,

, including digitat news bulletins, focus groups, engagement surveys, an
online G&A forum with the Group Chief Executive and annual recognition
awards. In early 2019 we engaged our first line supervisors and managers

in a programme of twenty ‘Take the Lead" events where Senior Oirectars

shared their leadership experience, and we supparted our newest leaders
to acquire the skills they need to be effective in their roles.

In 2017, Places far People achieved both the Gold standard and the
Hea((h and Wellbeing accreditation against the éth generation Investars
in People standard, having-achieved accred:tatlon for the previous
four years. In 2018 we retained those accreditations through an 1iP-
assessment. Qrganisations that meet the inlernallonal(y-recogm'sed

‘Investors in People standardreflect the very bestin peaple management

excellence,

This year we have extended our range of employee benefits,
taunching a new voluntary benefits plalform toall colleagues across
the Group.

We also provide access to a suite of services and facilities whlch
are de5|gned to support our employees' wellbeing, whether physical,
mental or financial, including an employee assistance programme, which
includes a confidential suppart helpline and access to medical advice or’
services. We continue to invest substantially in employee development.

.This involves a range of management development programmes, to

help managers imprave their skills and ensure the future success of the -

business, and a blend of face-to-face learning oppartunities along with
e-learning. We have developed a comprehensive approach ta the new
apprénticeship delivery model and are focused on ensuring that we
spend our levy effectively on developing both.existing and new staff.
In March 2019, our levy utitisation since its launch in April 2017 was 47%,
compared toa national average of 15% (FE Week). We continue to emplay
. in excess of 600 apprennces and expect this to reach aver 700 by the end
of the year.

‘During 2018/19 we successfully delwered the first year of the three-
year Peopte Strategy and plan, which has successfully supported the
organisation ta achieve its business objectives lhrough its people,

This has included introducing and embedding talent-focused strategies -
to ensure effective long-term planning such as Talent Mapping and
Succession Planning and an annual Workforce Planning process: The
Strategy has been reiterated and refreshed to define our priorities for
2019/20 by consuttation and discussion with the business.
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Modern Slavery Act
The Group is required lo publish an annual slavery and human trafficking
statement for the purposes of compliance with the Modern Slavery Act

20185, The Group Is completely opposed to human trafficking and modern

slavery practices and it is committed to ensuring that those practices are
not taking place in any par! of its own business nor, as far as the Group:
can cantrot the position, in its supply chain: The latest iteration of the

. Group's statement is published via a link on the homepage of its website,

The statement has been adapted by the Group and each of the
subsidiaries within the Group required to make a statement pursuant
ta the Modern Slavery Act 2015, as set out in the statement.
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The Group board, at the date of signing the
annual report, comprises the Group Chairman,
seven non-executive directars and four
executive directors. Details of the board
members can be found listed on pages 76 to 81.
These detaits are also available to view on the
Group's website at www.placesforpeople.co.

.. uk. Theyhave diverse backgrounds'in industry
and publicife, and share a strong commitment
to applying their expertise, skills and experience
ta ensuring that Places for People's businessis '
sound. All the non-executive directors are
independent of management and have access
to the Group Company Secretary for advice.

Non-executive directors are subject to
re-appointment at intervals of no mare than
four years and may serve far a maximum
of.no more than fifteen years. The terms of -
appointment of all directors are available for

_inspection at the registered office during
normat business hours.

In accordance with the Campanies Act
2008, the directors comply with a duty to

. exercise reasonahle care, skill and diligence;
a duty ta promote the success of the Company;
a duty to act within their powers; a duty to -
. exercise independént judgement; a duty to
- B . S - avoid conflicts of interest; a duty not to accept
) - benefits from third parties and adutyto
declare any interest in a proposed transaction
or arrangement. .
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The board meets at least five times a year
to direct overall strategy and take key financial
and business decisions. Given the complex .
nature of the Group's business, members
of the board also meet in standing committees
or workmg parties to examine specificareas’ -
of aperation. The standing committees are;
the Nominations & Governance Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit & -
Risk Committee and the Treasury Committee:
Details of committee membership and
attendance at board and committee meetlngs
during the year are reported on page 84.

Decisions to approve praposed financial
transactions can also be delegated to the boards
of Places far People Finance plc and Places for
People Treasury plc as reparted below.

Non-executive directors

- ‘The board has adopted guidelines for the

appaintment of non-executive directors,

- which have been in place throughout the year.
Those guidelines inctude a requiremerit for

. there to be a farmal role profile in relation to-
each nan-executive board appointment. During
the year and owing ta ill-health, Jo Dixon
stepped down from the board on 5 June 2018.

- Arecruitment process involving open

advertising of the vacancy was undertaken to-
identify an appointable candidate on the basis
of their broad commertial experience and .
-cammitment to the Group’s range of services.

As aresult, Amjad-Hussain was appainted
to the board on | November 2018. Graham
Waddell, who already held other board
positions within the Graup, was appainted .
to the Group board on 1 September 2018 and, :
following Lynetie Lackey's resignation from
the Group board on 1 April 2019, he was
appainted Seniar Independent Director.

The performance of each non-executive
director during the year is formally appraised.
The process involves self-assessment asto .
contribution and a meeting with the Group

. Chairman at which the directar’s contribution,

attendance, training needs and possible areas
for additional invelvement are reviewed. The’
Senior Independent Director conducts the’
appraisal meeting for the Group Chairman and
is assistéd in that exercise by a meeting held

wWith the other non-executive directors (inthe |
.absence of the Group Chairman) to review the
* Group Chairman's performance.

Each non-executive directoris reqmred

“to declare interests held in organisations

outside the Graup. The independence of each
non-executive director is assessed annually
as part of the governance review. Each non-
executive directorwho held office during the

year was independent,

‘78

Delegation of responsnbllltles

by the board of directors

Ultimate authority for all aspects of the Graup’s

activities rests with the board, the respective
respansibilities of the Group Chairman and
Group Chief Executive arising as a consequence
of delegation by the board. The board has
determined a clear division of respansibilities

. between the Group Chairman and the Group

Chief Executive. The board is responsible for
setting strategies and palicies for the whole .

' _ Group and ca-ordinating the Group's activities.

The board achieves that through a
combination of an estahlished set of matters
that are reserved to the Group board, intra- .
Group agreements, schedules of delegated
authority, appointment of board members
to subsidiary boards and the application of
Group-wide policy standards on key issues,
Where matters are not reserved to the Graup
board, the scheme of delegatian aperates so

" that management has all necessaryauthonty
_torun the Group’s busuneSSes
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Chris Phillips
Group Chairman
- Chris was Managing Director of PB Securities,
the UK subsidiary of Prudential Bache, for
“three years, before joining Lombard Odieras .
the Managing Director of its London broking
business. He then joined Colliers International
and, after heading its residential <cansultancy

business, became the first Managing Director

of Cotliers Capital (UK).
Chris has chaired a number of companies
listed in the UK and Germany, and is currently

" . Chairman of Landon & Newcastle, Apex

Airspace Development, NCL Technalogy
Ventures Limited, Bayham Investments
Limited, Deskfair, Estates & Infrastructure
Exchange, Anthony Green & Spencer and
Tuffbau, and chairs the advisory boards for
Market Asset Management and Shetland Space

_ Centre. Chris Is also Chairman of SOHO, a £400"

million REIT on the main lIst of the Landon.
Stock Exchange.

Chris joined the Places for Peaple Group
board in 2006 and was & senior independent
director from 2008. He became Chairman
in 2010,

00

Michael Brodtman

Michael is a Chartered Surveyor with 35 years'
experience of both commerciat and residential
praperty markets. Michael'is responsible for
UK valuation services at CBRE, the largest
global real estate services firm, where heis a
member of the UK Operalmg Committee and
Executive Board.

Michael is a member of the Glabal :
Valuation Professional Board of the RICS,
and for 10 years was a non-executive director
at teading praperty data provider, IPD.

Michael joined the Places for Peaple Group

bogrd in 2016. -
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Jon Lloyd
Jon is a Fellow of the Rayal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and has 40 years'

‘experience in property development,
investment and assel managemenl.

His executive career included roles as
Chief Executive of UK Caal, Head of Group
Property for HBOS, Managing Director of the
Northern Region of DTZ International Property
Advisers and Managing Director of Yorkshire
Water Estates.

His current non-executive director and
advisory roles include Chairmar of Mulgrave
Praperty Group Limited, a Yorkshire-based
residential developer and special adviser to
alarge AlM-listed develapment land owning
business with assets throughout England and
Scotland. He also operates his own property, .
energy and minerals consulting business,
Winksley Consutting. ’

Farmerly, Jon was a non-executive director
of Titfen Land, a London property investment
and development company. Qutside his
business mteresls. Joni isan active supparter
of several charities.

Jon joined the Places for People Group
board in 2012, '
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. that placed 15,000 disabled and dlsadvantaged
- people into work each year. )

78

&eo
Nigel Hopkins
Nigel is Finance Director of Abbeyfield and
Chairman of Instructus, the UK’s largest
provider, registration and certification authority
for apprenticeships, having previously had a
wideé-ranging international career, living and
waorking in the UK, Eurape and the USA.

He is a qualified accountant and has

- held senior management positions with

the Canfederation of British industry, Fiat,-
Laporte {Chemical), Burmah Castrot, United
Technologies, Caopers & Lybrand, Ernst &
Yaung and Remploy. At Remploy he was
Finance and Strategy Director at a time when
the company was being transformed from one
that was exclusively an employer of disabled
people in a wide range of industries, to one N

Nigel joined the Places for People Group
board in October 2013 and the board of Cotman.
in August 2016.
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Adam Cleal -

- Adam has over 30 years’ experiénce asareal
- estate salicitor, including over 25 years working

on housing deals including many housing debt
facilities and bonds,_ sale-leaseback deals and

Large Scale Voluntary Transfers. In addition, he -

had a wide-ranging legal practice in property
investments and disposals, office and housing
developments, M&A, infrastructure projects,
sports facilities, funds and structures as wel(

_ as long- and short-term debt, securitisations
_ and structured finance. He also dealt with

many regulatory bodies aver that period on
a continuing and frequent basis.

For over 25 years he was a pariner at Alien
& Overy, one of the largest law firms'in the

. world, and in that time was head of the London
" real estate group far 15 years and head of the

international real estate group for 11 years; he
also spent time.on the firm's audit committee.
. Hechairs the Clay Hili Charitable Trust,
which helps address homelessness, yauth
unemployment and special educational needs.

"He has personal experience of investing in and

managing residential property.
* He was a non-executive director of PfP

* Capital Limited immediately before joining the

Places for Peopte Group board in October 2017,

"He chairs the board of Places for Peaple

Ventures Limited, which oversees the Group's

non-affordable housing businesses.
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Graham Kitchen
Most recently, Graham was Global Head of -
Equities at Janus Henderson Investors.

Prior to joining Janus Henderson in 2005

. as Head of UK Equities, Graham was with -
_Threadneedle Investments, and he spent 13

years at INVESCO Asset Managementasa UK’

" Fund Manager and Ca-Head of Investment.

Graham is non-executive director of Invesco

" Perpetual Select Trust plc, The Mercantile
" Investment Trust plc ‘and AVI Glabal Trust.

Graham is also amember of the’ lnvestment
Committee of the charity Independent Age and
acts as mentor for The Prince’s Trust and The
Social Mabitity Feundation.

He is an ambassador for the Diversity
Project, which is an industry initiative to
promote gender equality in the mveslmenl

management industry.

Graham joined the Places for People Group’
board in Octeber 2017, :
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Graham Waddell

Grahar worked far Nationwide Building
Society aver a period of 32 years, during which
* he held a number of Senior Executive positions
in a range of disciptines including retail
“banking, markeling, customer experience,
risk and strategy development.
He was Chair of the Council of Mortgage
Lenders in Scolland and is a fellow of the _
_Chartered Institute of Bankers, He was also
the Managing Director of a Nationwide -
subsidiary company, which was alarge -
private landlord and praperty owning vehicle.
Graham.joined the Baard of Castle Rack

Edinvar in September 2013 and becameits

Chairman on 1 March 2018.

Graham joined the Board of Places for
People Group Limited on'1 September 2018 .
and was appointed senior independent
directar in 2019, :

8@

Amjad Hussain

- Amjad joined the Royal Navy while at

university. An unusually broad carees has seen
operational jobs at sea balanced ashore with a

variety of functions that have similarities with -

the Places for People business, It has also

included two periods on the Royat Navy’s main

board, lastly as Controller of the Navy, arole.

which included responsibility for the complete

aircraft carrier programme. He then led a
technicat consultancy business for a multi~

" national corporation before developing a

non-executive portfolio encompassing

. technolagy start-ups, trustee positions and

personal charity projects averseas.

He is a Trustee of the Imperial War
Museum and the HMS Victary Preservation
Company, a Fellow and council member of

-the City &Guilds Institute and an ambassador
_ for Mosaic, a Prince’s Trust charity. He holds -

bachelar and master's degreesin engineering,
amaster's degree from London Business

. School and an honorary doctorate from

Durham University. He was made a Companion
of the Mast Hanourable Order of the Bath
in 2011. ’

Amjad joined the Places for-People Group '
. board in Navember 2018,

~
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Executive board

members

. Key to Board and Committees

Group Board

Audit & Risk Committes

Remuneration Commiftee )
Nominations & Gave_manée Commitlee
Treasury Camamittee

Ventures Board

Requlated Board
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David Cowans =
Group Chief Executive

David has extensive experience of housing,
_urban regeneration, mixed-tenure and mixed-
use development, praperty management,
marketing and financial management, and
leading strategic change intarge and small
orgamsatlons
Davidis 3 Fellow of the Chartefed Institute
of Housing, a Féllow of the Royal Society
of Arts, a Fellow of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors, a Fellow of the Institute
of Directars'and a member of the Institute of -
Residential Properly Management. He has an
MBA from Birmingham University and is also
an Academician of The Academy of Urhanism

and a Visiting Fellow of Cambridge University. .

e
Pat Egan :
Group Director, Affordable

Housing
- Pat has aver 30 years' expertence in affardable
and mixed-tenure housing management,
managing ane af the largest registered
providers in the UK. He has over 20 years'
experience at a senior tevelin a variety of roles
focussing on business transformation, .
including the transfer of Bristol Churches
Housing Assaciation into the Group. .

”

eed

Andy Winstanley
Group Finance Director
Andy was appointed Group Finance Directorin
August 2017, having previously operated as the
Group's Financial Conlraller smce joining
Places for Peaple in 2010,

Andy qualified as an accountant at Ernst
and Young, where he spent nine years inits
Narth West assurance practice.

o000

Chris Martin

Group Company Secretary
and Legal Services

Director

" Chris is-a solicitor with over 30'years' experience

of legal practice and joined Places for People in

- 2008, Previously, he worked in private practice .
far 10 years, in a City law firm and as a partner in

a .S, legal practice, and then in generat counsel

. raoles inUK and international businessesin a
| -number of different industry sectars.

81

00

Mary Parsons

Group Director,
Placemakingand

Regeneration

‘Mary has over 25 years' experience in the
development, construction and regeneration
industry, working across the private,
registered provider and consultancy sectors.
She has been involved in some of the largest
housing-ledregeneration programmes

in the UK and is responsible for the Group's "

large-scale new places, including joint ventures.

Previously, she warked in the private

" sector on large-scale, mixed-tenure

developments andin the consultancy sector,
specialising in public/private sector
partnerships and hausing market renewal.

" Maryis Trustee and Chair of the Town and
" Country Planning Assaciation and Trustee

of MOBIE, an educational charity encouraging

innovation in housing design and delivery.
‘She is presently a Commissioner for

the Government's "Building Better Building

Beautiful Commission'. She joined Places

for Peaple in 2004, becoming Group Director

in 2010
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Audit & Risk Committee

The executive directors are responsible for maintaining and reviewing
. the Group's systems of internat control. The Audit & Risk Committee is-

responsible to the board. It oversees, reviews and monitors the Group's
- application'of accaunting palicies and standards, the appaintment and
remuneration of the external auditars, the resources and work
programme of Business Assurance (the internal auditors), the risk
managgmeht framework and the adequacy of internat control.

The members of the committee during the year were L Lackey

(Chair), N Hapkins, J Lloyd and A Hussain (from 28 Navember 2018)..
. The Commitlee receives and reviews reparts from Business

Assurance on aregular basis. The programme of reports reviewed in the .

year is informed by and aligned with business planning and ensures that
-the cammittee covers all material areas of risk on a regular basis, The
external auditors submit reports to the committee when appropriate.

- The committee also reviews regular presentations from management
on the operation of controls thraughout the business. It takes initiatives
. tosatisfy itself that risk avoidance measures are fully embedded within
the Group structure-and to determine the effectiveness of management
actions. The initiatives far this year included:

— the approach taken ta reviewing operational risk and the reporting .

of it — the repart provided to the Audit & Risk Committee contained -

detalls of the process and policy followed when operational -
incidents occurred within the Affordable Housing business; and

— adiscussion between cammittee members of macro-economic
risk in order ta test thinking that had informed the business
planning process.

The cammittee meets separately with representatives of Business
Assurance and external auditors on at least one occasion in each year
without any members of management heung present.

. External audit :

. During 2018/19, the audit assoc:ate partner presented KPMG's external
audit strategy and fee praposal. The committee considered and agreed
the Graup's materiality limits, the significant risks, areas of audit focus
and the audit strategy. The audit fee was subsequently agreed.

At the close of each financial yéar, the committee receives areport

- on the external audit process and reports to the Group board its findings

regarding the effectiveness of the external'audit process., ’

" Online annual report and accounts www.placesforpeople;co.uk/annualreport
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Non-audit work ) ) '

The Group has instructed KPMG LLP ta carry out £35,000 (2018 : 45,000),
of non-audit work'in the year where advantages of efficiency, cost or
expertise were Identified. The Audit & Risk:=Committee monitors the
nature and scale of such instructions during the year and its approval
is required for totat non-audit fees in excess of a threshold agreed by
the board. As a result of these cantrol mechanisms, the board is satisfied
as to the independence of the external auditar.

. lasues considered by the Audit & Risk Committee

Fallowing a review and debate about the issues that have impacted

‘the Group in the year ended 31 March 2019, including debt re-financing, -

pensions and financial instruments and derivatives, the committee
identified that the only significant issue was in relation tn the Group s
property valuations.

The commitiee has reviewed the judgements made in respecl of the
Group's properties and has consideréd the sensitivities surrounding the
assumptions used in assessing the net realisable value of its properties.
The committee agreed with the Judgements made by management and
concluded that the valuations of the Group's properties are appropriate.
The committee was satisfied that, where necessary, appropriate provision
had been made for any impairment in'the carrying value of the Group s
properties.

The committee has cansidered the potentialimpacts to the Group of
the UK public voting 1o leave the European Unian. It has noted the Group's -
Brexit Strategy to understand key risks and prepare mitigating actions
where appropriate. The committee is satisfied that while the situation
is inherently uncertain and outcomes unclear, the Groupisin a strang
position 1o navigate the difficulties that may occur. The committee has
considered revenue recognition in the parent company inrelation to the
fravision of Group suppart services.

After reviewing the presentations and reparts from management
and consulting where necessary with the auditars, the.committee is
satisfied that the financial statements appropriately address the critical
judgements and key estimates (both in respec! of the amounts !’eporte'd
and disclosures). The committee is also satisfied that the significant
assumptions used for determining the value of assets and liabilities have

- been‘appropriately squtinised. chaltenged and are sufficiently robust.

" Misstatements

Management confirmed ta the commntee that they were not aware of
any material or immaterial misstatements made intentionally to achieve
a particular presentation, The auditors reported to the committee the
misstatements that they found in the course of thelrwork and na material
amounts remain unjustified.
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Remuneration Commlttee -

The Remuneration Commlltee determines and agrees the reward policy
for the remuneration of the executive and non-executive directors and
determines the total level of bonus for the executive team as a whole.

The members of the committee during the year were M Brodtman -
(Chalr). ACleat and G Kitchen,

. The Group engaged the servicesof 4 remunerat:on consultant, MM&K,
for the 2018/19 year. PricewaterhauseCoopers has been engaged as the
Group'sreward consultant from the start of the 2019/20 financial year.

There are no connections between the Group or any members of the
board or the cammittee and any remuneration consultants appomted
during the year. .

Nominations & Governance Committee

- The Nominations & Goverhance Committee reviews the Group's

. governance arrangements and makes recommendations to the board
on changes required. ’
“The committee also reviews the Group 's succession planning and
makes recommendations to the board on the recruitment and selection of
. board members and, on'behalf of the board, approves recommendations
made for-appointments to the boards of Group subsidiaries, The board -
selects the best candidate for any vacancy. It has no targets for hoard
compositian by reference to gender, ethnicity or any other diversity
measurement. The board gathers information (provided on a voluntary
basis by board members) on the diversity of the board but wauld onty
use it in connection with any appointment if two or more candidates
were considered ta be entirely evenly matched in other respects.
The members of the committee during the year were N Hopkins
(Chair), A Cleal, J Dixon (until § June 2618), L Lackey {from 5 June 2018
" until 31 August 2018) and G Waddell (from 5 September 2018).

Treasury Commlttee -

"The Treasury Commiltee scrutinises an behalf of the Group board lhe
strategic management of the Group's financiat assets and liabilities and
- itsliquidity pasition. The Group board has delegated to the committee
authority to approve treasury transactions an behalt of the Graup parent
- including, but not limited to, the terms of new or extended borrowing -
facilities. It has also charged the committee with, ensurmg co- ordmatlon
* of the approach to treasury mattersiin all parts of the Group.

The members of the committee during the year were C Phillips
{Chair), L. Lackey, J Dixon (until 5 June 2018), G Kitchen {from 22 June
2018) and G Waddell (from_ l September 2018) supporled by members
of management

83

'The Group maintains a clear distjnctiqﬁ between its Regulated
businesses (being its registered providers of sacial housing in England

- and Wales ar. reg|slered social landlord in Scotland) and its Ventures

businesses (being its commercially-driven entities). Places for People
Treasury plc raises finance only for the Regulated businesses and those
businesses have delegated their authority to its haard to approve treasury
transactions on their behalf, Places for People Finance plc raises finance’
only for the Ventures businesses and those businesses have délegated
thelr aulhorlty toits board to approve treasury transactions on their behalf.

Overall treasury stralegy and co- ordmauon rests with lhe commlltee

" and decision-making in relation to specific treasury transactions rests

with the committeé for the Group parent and with either Places far People

Treasury plc or Places for People Finance plc for the Group'sulis_idiaries.

Places for People Ventures lelted

The Gruup board has charged the Ventures board with oversight of actwnty )

within the Group that.is nat subject to scrutiny by a housing regulater.
Through the provision of challenge and direction, the Ventures board -
assists in refining information on those parts of the Group's activities.

| Regulated Board

The Group board has charged the Regulated hoard with consrdermg the

* operationat perfarmance and compliance with applicable standards of the
. Group's regulated housing praviders. Each provider retains its own board
" but the Group-wide réle of the Regulated board promotes sharing of good

practlce and expertise across relevant parts of the Group.

SuBMR)G R LR
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Attendance at board and _
committee meetings -
Directors’ altendance at hoard and commitleé meétings, in relation to the-

number of meetings held, during the year ended 31 March 2019, is setout
in the following table. L . )

" NOMINATIONS

Annual Report

s e W mom Gl e
Chris Phillips - o . Nm L NAC “N/A 4l 4k 5/5
 Michael Brodtman m . NA s "N N/A 34 o NA
Adam Cleal R “N/A s 4fh - N/A. 4/ N/A
oDient .o N/A . ONA ot on N/A o/t
NigelHopkins &7 s N A4 NA 34 . NA
AmiadHussait 33 n - NA | N N/A N/A n

"(.Sréham Kitchen . m N/A .‘ 3/3 ~ NA. 33 4t4 N/A
LynetteLackey’ wmo O ss o NA N/A 4lh 4l "5/5
Jonliogd 417 L NAA - N N/A - N/A 5/5
GrahamWaddetli * - 5/5 NA N/A 3 212 34 N/A
David Cowans Co " O N/A . N/A N/A N/A 3k4 4/5

" PatEgan N S NA N/ N/A N/A 4l N/A
Colin Rae® ' 7 CLNA N/A N/A N/ 4k 5/5
MoryParsons . wm NA N/A N/A N/A 24 5
Andrew Winstanley o . NA CONA NA NA 4/t 5/5

N/A =not a board/committee member
' Jo Dixbn resigned from the Group Board on 5 June 2018

2 Amjad Hussain joineﬂ the Group Board on | Navemhber 2018
% Lynette Lackey resigned from the Group Board an 1 April 2019
4 Graham Waddell joined the Group Board on | September 2018
5 Colin Rae resigned from the Group Board on 24 May 2019

Online annual report and accounts www.placesforpeople.co.uk/annualreport
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Evaluation of board performance.

The board conducts an annual evaluation of its own performance.

This invalves consideration of the following: whether a strategy and
business plan were agreed prior to the start of the financial year; whether
the plan was delivered and if it was no! whether the board satisfied itself
as ta the reasons for change; whether the committees carried out the

. plans of work approved for them by the board; whether the béard fulfilled ..

its own plan of work for the year; whether requwements for.new/ -
additional/replacement skills on the board (at executive and nan-

. executive tevel) were ;onsndered during the year whether any steps
taken as a result were successful; whether the Group board assessed
its level of compliance with its adopted code of governance and provided

explanations for any non-compliance; whether the boards of the regulated.

hausing subsidiaries adopted, adhered to and reported against a suitable
gavernance code and, whether time was made available far and the way

in which meetings weré conducted allowed apen discussion of key issues -

between board members. The board's evaluation of its own performance
in respect of the year under consrderatlon produced the conclusion that
. theboard has been effective. . oo

The Group has complied with the UK Corporale Governance Cade
(UKCG) (2016 version) except for code provisions B.7, E.1 and aspects
of C.3 and D.2. Those provisions contemplate dialogue with external
_ shareholders or decisions being referred to shareholders on matters of
director appointments, auditor appointments, director remineration and
the use of the AGM ta communicate with investors, The reason for this
is that the Group does not have external sharehalders in the sense
cantemplated by the cade'and therefore it addresses the need for scrutiny
and evaluation through the board or an appropriate committee of the
board and it engages wilh mvestors direcily and through an annual -
investors farum.

The directors consider the report and accounts, taken asa whole,
to be fair, balanced and understandable.

8% |

Subsidiary boards
Places for Peaple subsidiaries have governance arrangements’
appropriate lo their size and field of activity. All of thase governance

‘arrangements feed into the Group's overall governance structure.

The registered provider subsidiaries are required to adopt a
governance code. Places for People Hames, Places for People Living

_ Plus, Castle Rack Edinvar Housing Assacidtion, Derwent Housing )
-Assaciation and Chorus Homes Group have each adopted the UKCG cade.

Cotman Housing Assaciation has adopted the National Housing
Federation (NHF) cade of gavernance, which cantains principles that the
Group considers to be broadly consistent with those of the UKCG code.
Each of the main aperating subsidiaries — Places for People Homes,
Places for People Living Plus, Castle Rock Edinvar Housing Association,
Cotman Housing Association, Derwent Housing Assaciation, Chorus
Homes Group, Touchstane Carporate Property Services, Residential
Management Group, Girlings Retirement Rentals, Brio Retirement Living,

_Places Leisure, Places Developments, Allenbuild, ZeroC, Millwood and

ModularWise — has its own board consisting of non-executive and/or

.executive directors, biut always including one or more members of the

Group Board.
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Going concern and
viability statements

Introduction
The Group praduces a strategic business plan each year. This process
includes review and challenge by the board, alongside consideration
of principal risks and uncertainties. When the business plan is approved
itis then used as the basis for monitoring businéss performance and

" providing external guidance far aur stakeholders, including regulators
and investors.

The Group robustly assesses bolh its risks and mitigating actlons

thraugh the use of a comprehensive risk mapping pracess. Principal
risks and uncertainties are set out on pages 70 to 71.

" Going concern

" The going concern assessment cansiders whether it is appropriate
to prepare the financial slatements on a going concern basis.

The directors have considered the balance sheet position of the Group - -

at 31 March 2019 which has net assets of £561.3m (31 March 2018: £488m)
alongside a liquidity position of £806.5m of undrawn facitities in addition
to the Group holding £90.6m of cash and shori-term investments. -

The Group's forecasts, taking into account reasonably possible
changes in its operating perfarmance, show that the Group has sufficient
financial resources available, The directors have reasonable expectations
that both the Campany and the Group are in a strong position to manage
business risks and therefare continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, which accounting standards define as one year or
more from the date of this report. The directors have not identified any
material uncertainties that threaten the Company’s or the Group's ability
to mitigate business risks and continue aperations for this periad.

On the basis described above, the directars consider it appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements, . . .

'Vnablhty

The UK Corporate Governance Code requires the directors to make
3 statement with regard to the viability of the Group. This requires

. cansideration of solvency and liquidity aver a lenger period than the going
concern assessment, The Group's strategic plan covers a 10-year period,
over which the directors have made assumplions regarding the Group's
revenues, operaling costs and cash requirements,

The projections for the first three years of the plan are based on
current opportunities and include an expectation of the rental incomes
for the Graup, There is inherently less certainty in the projections fram
year four to ten. Consistent with prior years, the directors have therefore
determined that lhree years is an appropriate period for this v:ablllty
stalement .

" 1 /;
people.co.uk
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In assessing the Graup's prospects and resilience, the management

. produced projections which corisidered the Graup's current business

position and risk appetite. While the rent reductions impased by the
Government on social housing rents are coming te an end in 2020,
the Group has continued to undartake rigarous single- and multi-
variant stress testing exercises on its projections, which has included
cansidering the impact of challenging economic conditians including a
downturn in the hausing market. The resuits confirmed that the Graup

* would cantinue to be able to settle projected liabilities as they fall due

over a three-year period.

This year, the directors have also consu!ered specnﬁcally the .
impact of the UK voting to leave the Eurapean Union. This is considered
a principal risk as set out on page 70. The directors havé considered
several different severe, yet plausible, scenarios including potentially .

* challenging outcomes such as increased difficulty in accessing finance

and increased interest rates. The directars alsa considered additional
impacts, such as restrictians in supply chains and were satisfied that

-measures were in place to mitigate significant risks to the Group's

operations. The stress testing again demanstrated the ability of the
Group to cantinue to operate effectively.
‘Having assessed the prospects of the Group, including the Group's .

. current funding, forecast requirements, existing committed barrowing

facilities and the principal risks as outlined on pages 70 and 71 of the

Directors' Report, the directors have areasanable expectation that the

Group will be able to continué in operation and meet its liabilities as they

fall due aver the period to March 2022, .
. Inmaking this statement the dlreclors have. made the following

key assumptions:

— If one or more risks occur with particularly adverse effects on the

‘Group, all potential actions, such as constraining development
spending, would be taken on a timely basis. The Group cansiders

.t has the early warning mechanisms needed to instigate such
timely action if this proves necessary.

— - Implausible scenarios involving several severe risks accurring

" simultaneously or an individual risk occurring that cannot be
- appropriately mitigated do not occur.-
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Risk management
and risk appetite

- Internal control
The board is respansible for the Group s system of internal control This
has been designed to manage, and mitigate as far as possible, the risk
of any failure to meet husiness objectives. It carionly provide reasanable
assurance — not absolute.assurance — against material misstatement
orless. The board's approach to risk management is supported by a
‘structured assurance framework which |nc!udes the Audit & Risk

- Committee.

The board has an on-going process to |denl1fy‘ evaluate and manage
the significant risks faced by the Group. This was in place throughout
the year and up-to the date of the approval of the financial statements.
The key elements of this pracess are as foltows:

— ARisk Management Framework is'in place which is supported

by a ‘three lines of defence’ assurance model, risk based internal . .

audit and assurance mapping. This intégrated approach provides
the Graup Board with the necessary assurance that risks are being
managed effectively.

— Risk maps are maintainad by each Group busme;s which setout -

" the key internal and external risks faced by that business. Controls
in place to mitigate each risk are documented, as are any further
aclians consldered necessary to redlce risk further. Risks are
reviewed by subsidiary boards at their meetings and risk maps

- updated to reflect any necessary changes.

— “The Group business plan sets out for each Group business its
abjectives for the coming year, along with the risks that might
prévent achievement of those objectives and the controls and
actions in place to mmgale those risks.

— The Group's risk appeme is reviewed and agreed by Group board .
as part of the business planning process.
~ . The Group's Strategic Risk and Value far Money Group meels twice
yearly to consider emerging strategic risks and to review and
_ update the Graup Strategic Risk Map.
— Graup Risk Maps are subject to further scrutiny and challenge by
- the Regulated board, the Ventures board and by lhe Audll & Risk
- Committee.

— The Group Business Assurance internal audit p(an is driven by the-
Group Strategic Risk Register, which ensures audits are focused
upon the key risks identified by management. Audit testing ‘seeks
to ensure that apprapriate controls Qre in place to mmgale and
manage risk ta an acceptable level

. The Group board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of
internal control for the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of
signing these financial statements. lt has nat identified any weaknesses
which resulted in material losses or contingencies or other uncertainties

which require disclosure in the financial statements. -

Cdmpliance with the Governance and Financial Viability -

. Standard issued by the Regulator of Social Housing
_ The Group Board has confirmed that an assessment of the Group's
. campliance with the Governance and Financial Viability Standard has

been completed and certifies that the Group is comptiant with the

Governance and Financial Viability Standard.

Donations
Dunng the year the Group made charitable donat!ons of £193,000
(2018: £519,000). The Group made no political donations (2018: £nil).

Annual General Meeting

-The Annual General Meeting was held on 18 July 201 9.

Statement of disclosure to the Auditor
At the time of approval of this report

— So far as lhe directors are aware, there is no relevant audit
informatian of which the Group's auditor is unaware; and

—  The directors have taken all steps that they aught to have taken
.as directars in order ta make themselves aware of any relevant’
audit information and to establish tha( the Group S auditor is
aware af(hat information.

87
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' Statement of board’s
- responsibilities

in respect of the board’s report, strategic report and the financial statements

.The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the
Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with -
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare ﬁnancnal statements
for each financial year. Under that law they have elected to prepare the .
financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and
applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice); including
FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable iri the UK and

" Republic of Ireland.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of

- the state of affairs of the company, and of the profit or loss of the company

for that period. In préparing these financial statemenls the directors are

required to:

— select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
— make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

— state whether applicable UK'ac,counting standards have been
" followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements; .

—  assess the company'’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and

— use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend
to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have na realistic
alternative but to do so. S :

"Online annual report and accounts www.placesforpeople.co.uk/annualreport

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company'’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time'the
financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
responsible for such internal.control as they determiné is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general

-1 responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
‘safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and

other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the company's website.
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

By order of the board

Chris Martin
Group Company Secretary
18 July 2019
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Financlal Statements

lndependent audrtor s report
For lhe year ending 31 March 2019

!ndependent auditor’s report to the
members of Places for People Group
o lelted only

memns and conclusmns ariging from our audlt
1 Ouv opinion on the flnancial statements is unmodlfled :

We have audited the financial statements of Placés for Peaple Group
- Lirnited ("the Group” or "the Group and Company") for the yearended 31

" March 2019 which comprise the Consalidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income, the Company Statement of Comprehensive
Incorne, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Company
Statement of Financial Position, the Cansolidated Statement of Changes

. in‘Reserves, the Consalidated Statement of Cash Flows, and therelated + .

notes including the accountlng pollctes innote 1.

in our opimon

—  The financial statements give a true and fair view of the slate ofthe . .

‘Group's and of the parent Company's affairs as at 31 March 2019;
and of the Group's profit and the Company s result far the year lhen
ended; . .

~ The Group and parent Company financial statements have been
" properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards,
.including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard appllcable in. .
the UK and Repubhc of Ireland; and

— The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requiremnents of the Companies Act 2004, the Housing and ~
Regeneration Act 2608 and the Accounting Direction for Private
Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015.

Basis far opinion -

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternahunal Slandards

- on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our. responslbllmes .

are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibitities-

under, and are independent of the Group in accordance with, UK ethical

requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the

_ audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for
our opinion. Qur audit opinion is cansistent wnh our report to the Audit
and Risk Committee. :

Materiality:  E15m (2017/18: £15.5m)
Group financial ’ » A
statementsasa  1.81% (2017/18: 2.0%) of group turnaver -

. whole E : - -
Coverage- " 97.9% (2017/18: ﬂ.ﬁ%)ofgrouplurinover
Key audit matters - . o v 2017/18
Recurring risk . Recoverable amauntof E <)

development pragramme schemes
. and assaciated land

New risk _ Theifmpact of uncertainties of NEW

- uncertainties due to Britain leaving
" the Eu:opean Union on our audit
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',independent auditor’s report
" Forthe yeor ending 3 Morch 2019 -

- 2 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material

misstatement

" Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professlonal ]udgment :
were of mast significance in the audit of the ﬁnancnal statements and
Jinctude the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement

- {whether or nol due to fraud) identified by us, including those which had
the greatest effect on: the averall audit strategy: the allocatian of
“resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team

. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial stalements as awhole, and in'forming our opinion thereon, and
we da not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In arriving at our
audit opinion‘ahove, the key audit matters, in decreasmg arder of audit

: stgnlﬁcance were as follows:

_Annual Report

Recoverable amount of
development programme
schemes and associated
land.

(Carrying value of stock = '
£448.0 million
{2017: £387.3 millian))

Reter to page 82 (Issues
considered by the Audit & Risk
Committee section of the
‘Gavernance Repart), pages
105 to 111 (accounting policies)
and page 122 (financial
disclosures),

Forecast-hased valuation
The Group's development program me continues to

_increase in line with the Group strategy, and includes a

significant portfolio of properties developed for
commercial sale and rent, the recoverable amount of
which has heen patentlally affected by changing market
conditions during the year.

The Group has appraisal medels in place to
determine the recoverable amount of each development
scheme (and help identify any potential impairment .
risks), which include a number of subjective .-
assumptions, such as rental income, tenure mix, cost
inflation and the market value of praperties.

The Directors review the assumptions and update
the models of the development appraisals regularly, and
at the year end, to determine the recoverable amount of

. the assets, The Directors also consider whether there’
"are any additional impairment triggers (e.g. change in
‘market conditions, defects to schemes etc) and calcutate

any impairments that may be necessary across the
dévelopment portfalio {including land elements),

If the assumptians or underlying dala used are
incorrect thereiis a risk that development land and

- assets will be valued incorrectly and any carresponding ’

impairment charge misstated.

The effect of these mattersis that, as part of our risk
assessment, we determined that the recoverable
amount aof development pragramme schemes and
associated land recognised has a high degree of
estimation uncertainty, with a potential range of -

reasonable outcomes greater than our materiality for the -
financial statements as a whale. The financial statements

discloses the sensitivity estimated by the Directors,

Our procedures included:

Methodology choice

— Assessment of the land appralsalmodels thal are
‘used to determine the scheme carrying values to -
check that these are consistent with our sector
knowledge and, where apprapriate, consistent with
the methodology choice used in the previaus year:

Benchmarking assumptions :
— Assessment of the assumptions that have been used
" to underpin the land appraisal models to assess
) their appropriateness including consideration
of the planned tenure mix for the development -
scheme being considered, and comparisen of key
assumptions (e.g. market value of properties; cast
" inflation, rental assumptions) te current third parly
online data;, including appropriate online indexes
(e g. the Building Cost lnformation Service lndex).

Our sector experience .
— Consideration of the Directors' assessment of
whether there has been an impairment indicatar
and assessment of this based an other evidence
" abtained during the audit including the sales
performance of scHemes and market indicators; and

Tests of details

‘— Agreeing the underlying dala usedin the appralsal

‘models, including consideration of the sales history
and costs incurred during the 2018/19 financial

* year, back to sales certification documentalion and
other third party dacumentation, such as invoices.

Our results: :
We found the resulting estimate of the recoverable

" amount of development programme-schemes and

associated land to be acceptable (2017/18: acceptable).

Online annual report and aceounts www.placesforpeople.co,uk/annuatreport




Financial Statements

2 »Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of matenal
misstatement (continued)

95 -

-The impact of uncertainties

- due ta Britain exiting the
'European Union on aur
audit..

Unprecedented levels of uncertainty

All audits assess and challenge the reasonablenessof =

estimates, in particular as described in the key audit
matter on development and land valuation, and related
disclosures and the apprapriateness of the gaing
concern basis of preparation of the financial statements.
All of these depend on assessments of the future
economic environment and the Group s future prospects
and performance. L

In addition, we are requ:red lo consider the other

. information presented in the Annual Report including the.

- principat risks disclosure and the viability statementand
.to consider the Directors' stalement that the annual -

" reportand financial statements taken as a whole is'fair. -

balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the’
Group's position and performance. business model and
strategy.

Brexit is one of the most ‘significant ecanamic events
for the UK and at the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of
outcomes; with the full range ot possﬂ:le effects
unknawn

We developed a standardised firm-wide approach to the
cansideration of the uncertainties arising from Brexit in
planning and performing aur audits, Our procedures
included: .

Our Brexit knowledge N

. — wehave cansidered the Directors’ assessment

of Brexit-related saurces of risk for the Group's
business and financial resources compared wnh our
own understanding of the nsks.

'Sansmvnty analysis

. When addressing the key audit matters affected
+ and other areas that depend on forecasts, we have
. compared the Directors' sensitivity analysis to
. our assessment of the worst reasonably possible,
known adverse scenarlo resullmg fram Brexrt
uncertainty.

Assessing transparency .

— Aswell as assessing individual disclosures as
part of.our procedures on the key audit matters
affected we have considered all of the Brexit
related disclosures together, Including thase in
the strategic report, comparing the averall picture
.against our understanding of the risks. )

Our results~
As reparted under the key audqt matters affected,

‘we found the estimates around recoverable

amaunts of develapment schemes and associated
land to be acceptable. However, no audit should
be expecled to predict the unknowable factors ar
all possible futuré imptications for an entity and .
this Is particularly the case in relation ta Brexit.

Parent Company revenue
racagnition

(Turnover= £29.9 million
(2017/18: £31.4 mitlion)}

‘Refer to page 82 (Issues
considered by the Audit & Risk

. Committee section of the
Governance Report), pages
105 to 111 (accounting pollqes)
and page 100, (ﬁnancnal
disclosures) ’

Provision'._oi support servir.es
Places for People Graup Ltd is the holding entity for the -

“group and prowdes central support services to each of

its subsidiary entities.”

As such, the entity witl incur charges for these
centralised casts and recharge these ta ather group
companies.

This results in the majority of the Company
Statement of Comprehensive Income being driven by

costs incurred on behalf of the group and related income, .

Therefore the revenue generated from the services
prov:ded to subsrdlanes is seen as the key area of audit

o focus

) Review of parent Cnmpany lncome

Our hrocedu_res included:

*Review of costs incurrad

— reviewing the costs incurred and companng the
mavement year an year ta determine the cost base.

-— !esllng the parent Company income to determine the
_recharges that have been applied torelevant costs, .

ur results:’
We found that the revenue recogmsed in the group

' ‘relatedta central services to be acceptable.

We cantinue to perform procedures over goadwill in relation to the Chorus Homes Group-Acquisition, farmally Luminus. Group However due to the
acquisition taking place in the prior year, we have not assessed this as one of the mast stgmﬁcanl rnsks in ourcurrent year audit and, therefare, it is not
"-separately ldenllﬁed inour report lhls year. . .

‘'
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Independent auditor’s report
For the yeor endmg 31 March 2012

-8 Ourapplication of materiality and an overview of the
-scope of our audit
The materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole was set at
_£15 million (2018; £15.5 million), determined with reference toa
benchmark of Group turnover of £827.1 million (2017/18: £754.4 million),

of which it represents 1.81% (2017/18: 2.0%). We consider total turnover to :

be.the most appropriate benchmark as the Group is'a not-for-prafit
organisation, therefore the focusison turnover and any surplus
generatedis variable and reinvested.
We reported to the Audit & Risk Committee any corrected or
uncarrected identified misstatements exceeding £750,000 (2018:
- £750,000), in addition to other identified mlsstatemenls that warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds.

Of the Group's 190 (2018: 179) reporting components, we subjected 86 .-

(2018: 51) to audits for Group reporting purposes. These audits accounted
- for 97.9% (2018: 91.4%) of Group turnover, 104.7% (2018: 97.9%) of Graup
" profit before tax and 98.4% (2018: 97.5%) of Graup total asséts. For the.
remaining companents, we perform.ed analysis at an aggregated group
level to re-examine our assessment that there were na significant risks of
material misstatement within these.
The Group audit team instructed the component auditors as to the

1

significant areas to be covered, mcluding the relevant risks detailed above

and the information to be reparted back. The Group audit team approved
all subsidiary materiatities, which ranged from £14,000 (2018: £16,000) to
£8.3 million (2018: £8.4 million), having regard to the mix of size and risk
. profile of the Group across the companents. The wark on 45 (2018: 33) of
~ the 66.(2018: 51) components was perfarmed by-companent auditors (alt

_ of whom are component teams from the same audit firm as the Group

" audit tearn) and the rest by the Group audit team .

Telephone conference meetings were held with the component -
audildrs to discuss the findings reported ta the Group audit team in more
detail, and any further work required by the Group audit team was then
perform ed by the component auditar. .

Annual Report

Ma!eiﬂiallly

£15m
Whole financial statement
materiality (2017-18: £15.5m)

Group turnover t
£827.Im (2017-18: £754m)

1£8.28m

Range of materiality across -
audited components

4 (£0.02m - £8.3m)

5 (2017-18: £0.02m - £8.6m)

1¢0.75m

Misstatements reported to the
Audit and Risk Committee
. (2017—1 8: £0.75m)

B Group turnover
Materiality

4 We have nothing to report on going concern
The Directors have prepared the financial staterrients on the gaing
concern basis as they do not intend ta liquidate the Company or ta cease

its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s financial -

position means that this is reatistic: They have also concluded that there
are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over
its ability to continue as a gaing concern for at leas! a year from the date -
of approval of the financial statements ("the gaing cancern period”).

. Our responsibliity is to conclude on the appropriateness of the
Directars’ conclusions and, had there been a material uncertainty related
ta going concern, to make reference {6 thatin this audit report. Hawever, -
as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent
events may result in outcomes that are'inconsistent with judgements that
were reasanable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to
. amaterial uncertainty in this auditor’s repart is nota guarantee that the
‘Company will continue in aperation.

In our evaliation of the Directors’ conclusions, we considered the
inherent risks to the Company’s businéss madel and analysed how thase
risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to cantinue
operations over the gaing concern periad, The risks that we considered
most likely to adversely affect the Company's available financial .~
resources over this period were: .

— The impact of further reductions; and

— Adownturnin the development market.-

Online annual report and accounts www.pl. people.co.uk/ treport

- Asthese were risks that could potentially cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going cancern, we considered )
sensitivities over the level of available financial resources indicated by the

_Company's financial forecasts taking account of reasonably passible (but -

riot unrealistic) adverse effects that could arise fram these risks )
individually and collectively and evaluated the achievability of the aclions
the Directors consider they would take to imprave the position should the
risks materialise. We also considered less predictable but realistic
second order impacts, such as the impact of a disorderly Brexit and the
erosion of customer or supplier confidence, which could resultin a rapid
reduction of available financial resources.

Based on this work, we are required to report to you if we have
anything material to add or draw altention to in retation to the directars’

_ statement in Note | te the financial statements on the use of the going

concern basls of accounting with no material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt over the Company's use of that basis for a periad of at
least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.

We have nothing to report in these respects, and we did not identify
going coricern as a key audit matter.




" Financial Statements

5. We have nothing to report on the other information
inthe Annual Report.
The Directors are responsible for the other information presenled inthe
Annual Report logether with the financial statements. Our opinion on the
ﬁnam:lal statements does not cover the other information and,
accordlngly. we do not express an audit apinion or, except as explicitly
stated below, any form of assurance conclusion theréon. .
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether, based an our financial statements audit work, the
- information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
~ financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work
. we have notidentified material misstatements in the other information.

Strategic report and directors’ report

Based sotely on our work on the other information:

— we have nat identified material misstatements in the strategic . -
- report and the directors’ report; .

— inour apinion the information given in those reports for the financial
year is consistent with the financial statements; and-

'~ inour opinion those reports have been prepared in acccrdance with
lhe Companles Act 2006

Corpdr‘ate governance dlsclosures

We are required to report to you if:

— we have identified material inconsistencies between the knowledge

* we acquired during our financial statements audit and the directors'
statement that they consider that the annual report and financial
statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary to assess the Graup’s
pasition and performance, business mpdél and strategy: or -

— the section of the annual repart describing the work of the Audit
and Rlsk Committee does not appropriately address matters .
communicated by us to the Audit and Rnsk Commmee

We have nothing to reportin these respects

Oisclosures of principal risks and longer-term viability
Based on the knowledge we acquired during our financial statements
audit, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in retation to: .
‘— the Directors' confirmation within the viability statement on page
86 that they have carried out a rabust assessment af the principal
risks facing the Group, including those thal would threaten its
business model, future performance, solvency and liquidity;

"— the principal risks disclosures describing these risks and exp(almng
how they are belng managed and mitigalted: and

~— the Directors’ explanatlon in the viability statement of how they
~ have assessed the prospects of the Group, aver what periad they

have done so and why they considered that period 1o be apprapriate,
and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable ’
expectation that the Group will be able to cantinue in operation
and meet its liabilitiés as they fall due over the periad of their
assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to
any necessary qualifications or assumptions. ’

]

Our work Is limited to assessing these matters in the context of only
- the knowledge acquired during our financial statements audit. As we
cannot predict alt future évents ar conditions and as subsequent events
. may resultin outcames that are inconsistent with judgments that were
" reasonabte at the time they were made, the absence of anything to
report on these statements is not a guarantee as to the Group s and
Company’s longer-term viability.

97

6 We have nothing to report on the other matters on which
we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if,
in our opinion:
— adequate accounting records havenot been kept by the Group and
* Campany, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
" from branches not visited by us; of . .
— the Group and Company financial statements are not in agreement
w:lh the accounting records and returns; or
— certain disclosures of dlrectors remuneration specnﬁed by law are
not made; or
— we have not received all the information and explanallons we-
require for our audit.

. We have ‘nothing to reporl in these respecls

7 Respective responsibilities
Directors® responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 88, the

Directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial statements

. -including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internat
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation.of .
financial statements thal are free from material risstatement, whether

due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and parent Company'’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern; and using the gaing cancern basis of accounting unless .
they either intend ta liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to
cease operatrons or have na realistic alternative but to do so.

} Auditor s responsabilmes

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the

" financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's
report. Reasonablé assurance is a high level of assurance, but daes nat
guarantee that an audit canducted in.accordance with ISAs (UK) will

_ always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can
" arise fro'rn'fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
"aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econamic

decisions of users taken an the basis of the financial statements.’

A fuller description of our responstbllmes is provided on the FRC" s
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditarsresponsibilities.

In addition we considered the impact of laws and regulations in the
specific areas af health and safety, liquidity and certain aspects of
legislatian recognising the nature of the Group's ar Company's activities.
With the exception of any kiown or possible non-compliance, andas
required by auditing standards, our work in respect of these was limited

to enquiry of the Directars and other management. We considered the

effect of any known or passible non-compliance in these areas as part of
our procedures on the related financial stalementsitems.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout aur -
team and remained alert to any indications of non compliance throughout
the audit,

As with any audit, there remamed E] hlgher risk of ncn—delecuon of
irregularities, as these may involve callusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of Internal conxrols

uoday Hbxnens,

1
3

:\ueuja.r\c-g/ Y

&

deday




98

Independent auditor’s report
.For the year ending 31 March 2019

8 The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe
our responslblhtles

. This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as abody, in
-accordance with Chapter 3 of Part. 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyane other than the Company -
and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Harry Mears (Senior Statutory Auditor) .
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London, E14 5GL

K ‘M. By 1
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income = .. I | &
For the yeor ending 31 March 2019 ’ . ' ’ g

3
; 2009 2018
Notes . Em -Em’
Group and share of joint ventures l.urnover' ’ ) - ‘ . S 8394 o . 7847 .
» Less: shéfeoljoinlventuresturnover ‘ R e - . o T A, (12.3) . (30.3)

‘ GréUbthrﬁaver ‘ * - I _ _ o 2 L a1 7544
Cost of sales SR - : o B T ) (1498) -

' ,dperatiné costs : ‘ _ PR o ‘ 2 (447.8) .. : (620.1) -
Profit on sale of fixed assets : ) o ] o . A © 263 4.
'Operating‘ proﬁl'bgfore interest ' : . . ’ . T 227.1‘ - 118'9.2
Combin_a(ions that are in substance a gift - o ' o B N C - - o o 45.2
Shareofﬁﬁeralingproﬁlonjoinlventures o K i . . o (2.0) o ) . 20 \< '
Gainon revéluationofinveslmenlpropertie§ . ] ’ oo % . b . 0.8 . .. .38 ‘3 :

"-Ilnlerestreceivahleandsir;nwilarincorheA- . ' S 7. _ 1.0 . 13.0 ;é:
Interest payable and similar charges . o ' - . . D ¢ X (123.0) - i
'Profit on ordinary activilies before taxation . ' _ : v ] . 9 95.5 o.o1302 g
Taxation . - S L . 10 ' 08 0w |
Profit an or&inary activities Qter taxation - . . . . o ] N d 85,7 S . 1163
Loss attributable to non-con‘lrolliAng‘in!erests. ’ C o C o : . {0.3) T (03
Profit attributable to membars of the parent c;:nibany ' ’ . , . - o 85.4 . 160
GroupprofittorlhefinaAncIalyear,exdudingjoinlven‘lures‘ . ' . . S ' 86.7 ) 114.8
Share‘ofjointvenlures(loss)/pré)fitforthefi'nancialyéa} o . - . (3.3) . : 12

" TYotal prafit for the financial year . ‘ ) - o ’ . 85.4 160
Fairvalueg;inoh'intereslra'téandcurrencyswaps . _ - -, -_ 4 N 6.0 ° " 56,
Deferredtax oninterest rate and currencysv;/aps' L T ' [ (0.5} ‘ o'
fnitial recognition of mutti-employer defined benefit scheme : o A .2 ' (4.0) I —
Actuarial loss recquiséd in thepér_ms_ioﬁscheme S : ’ 24 : (13.4) . @n
Defefredtaxal:isirig anmovemenl'inthe pensioﬁ séheme ‘ . o i ' ) 1o B - 2 @n
(_:o‘mprehénsiveincon'-le adjusti’né’ﬁlon business comhinati‘o‘ns ‘ 4_ E ‘ ) 1 _ 1.1 ‘ ©(3.8)
Total compréheqsiye income for the year 4 - . o ‘ o JE SRR ‘3.4 o 1100

_ The notes on pages.105 ta 146 form an .integral part of these financial statements.
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‘Company statement of comprehensive income

For the yeor ending 3} March 2019

Turnaver '

] Oberaliné costs

Operating profit_

interest bayah(e and sir_m'laf charges

‘Profiton ,o{dinary activities before and after taxation
The notes on pages 105 to 144 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Thereis no other comprehensive income other than that reported abave.

’ Online annual report and accounts www.placesforpeople.co.uk/annualreport
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o 2018
Notes . . ) £m €m
29.9 g

(29.8) (31.9)

0.1 0.2

{0.2)

©o8 o (©.1)




oo S COMPANY NAME - PLACES FoR PeoPLE
e - GROUP LimiTED.

Fir;aAnc-ial'statements K . C,OMPﬂ N\‘/ ’\/O 03 ?—:} ? 0 3 ?‘ AR ) R PR
. oL - . o . . . A - . N . .5 )
. . -
Consolidated statement of fmancnal posmon £
As ot 31 March 2019 . 12
1o
2009 . - ©2018
Notes Em -Em ' fm . fm
Fixed assets . L : e .. : ' )
Goodwill ' : o n L 104 : ‘ 7.2
Housinglproperties . ’ 12 " 3,655.7 o 3,516.7
Fixed asset investments ' S ': % " 894.4 . . .o 804.8
EquityLoans =~ -~ . N 15 o 765 . 848
. Other fixed assets - ‘ L. B I o937 . ' - 83.2 ‘
Non current assets o ) A o : R ’
Debtors:ahﬁountsfallihgdueafteroneyear IR 17 ' _ 17.8 - . .. 208
Current assets ) o i R o - B
Stock . _ : e 16 .- 448.0. : : 387.3
Debtors:amounts falllng due wnhln oneyear o ’ 18 : 156.6 o - 1203
Investments o . : e 565 - .7 , 982
Cash at bank and in hand S e PR 682 : L 124
e ' ’ _ ' 7293 - S g2
'Credltors amounts fallmg due within one year 20 . - (665'.9) ' ‘ - (421.2) .
_Net current assets R v . : ] 3 S . 2634 . o o 257:':.J
. Non-current llabllmes ] A .
. Creditors: amounts falling dueaftermorethan oneyear . 21 - . (4,228.5) . - (4,270.4)
" Pension liability X S ] ' 24 - (22.1) ' (16.5)
, . 4‘ 4 ' ' 4;250.6): , 4.286.9)
‘Net Assets o I A ‘ ... . 5613 o L 4876
Capital and reserves _ ) o : ‘ . ‘
Revenue reserves KA . . . 5622 . o : . 48838 -
Restricted reserve _ A D ' 0.2 . - " 0.2 .
Total capital and reserves . - . C ‘ i .o . . 562.4 o T 489.0
Non controlling interests v o P o . Sy B L 0.4)
5613 . A 4876

.
“The notes on pages 105 to 146 form an |ntegral part of these financial statements. -
. The ﬁnanual statements on pages 99 to 146 were approved by the Board of Dlrectors on 18 July: 2019 and signedonits behalf by

C Phillips ‘ . 'DCowans A
Group Chairman ~ ~ . ’‘Group Chief Executive ’
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Company statement of financial position
As at 31 March 2019

2019 . 2018

Notes Em . 'Em

" Fixed assets - i .
Investments 14 . 0.5 ‘ 0.5

* Current assets )

Debtors: amounts falling due within one year . : : - 18 5.5 7.4
Cashand cashequivalents * ) . L7 e 0.3
' 7.2 17
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year ) o ‘ ’ 20 B A ) R - (8.2
Net current liabilities S . ' : , ' . ,-(0.5) ) {0.5)

Net assets : R ’ ’ ) C - —

Capital and reserves -
Revenue reserves R B . - -

The notes on pages 105 to 146 form an integral part of these financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 99 to 146 were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 July 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

D Cowans
Group Chairman . Group Chief Executive

C Phillips
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Consolidated statement of changes in reserves
" For the year ending 31 March 2019 "~ i ‘ o

: Ba.l'anc'e' at 1 April 2018
... Total Comprehensive income for the year
Pro,fi.t .fo.vr lh;e ;ea;r |
- Fai'r val;Je gainon intéres't rate _and cu.rre'nty sw‘aps
Delerr_edﬂlaxnpn‘ interest r.até and currency swaps
.lnitial recoénifion of m'.ulti‘-Aemploye.r defined benefit scheme
Aqlua_ria} toss re‘gagnised in th; penslon sch;e;ne
Déf'erred tax aéisinq on lossin (4he\pensiar4| schemé B A

Comprehensive income adjustmeént en business combinations

Balarice at 31 March 2019

103
P
Revenue 'ﬁestricted o ATot-alA"
Reserve Reserve R_eserves
© L Em. C. . Em £m-
:488._8 0.2 - 489.0
85.4 - 854
60 - 8.0
{0.5) — (o;s)A
(4.0) - (4.0)
(13.;) - (15.6)
| (1;2} A — .(1.1;)
1 — 14
562.2 0.z 562.4

S
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Consohdated statement of cash ﬂows
. Fortheyeor ending 31 March 2019

Annual Report

2019 2018
£m. fm
" Net cash generated fram operating activities (see note a) ~ s . . T 1569 153.8
Additional pension cantributions : o < : (16.3) -
Cash ﬂo\y from investipg activities ' .
Purchase of housing and investment properties . - _ . . (268.5) (270.2)
Proceeds from the disposal of housing and investment properties o - ’ ) 264.6 39.4
Purchase of other fixed assets . . ) : ' (22.2) (18.8)
Praceeds from the disposal of other fixed assets - . o L : - 2.1
Purchase of fixed and current asset investments . S . ) ) (84.2) (2.8
Proceeds from the dispasal of fixed and current asset investments 108.9 45.1
Cash received from cambinations that are in substance a gift - : N 204
Cashrecieved from acquistions - = - - . : ' ‘ 2.4 2.2
Receipt of government and ather grants : . ) . . . o 344 Noe 125
Interest received . . ' . ’ : SR & 0.7
Dividends received from investments - : ' ’ ’ 1.4 0.4
Nét cash flow from invésting activities - ) : : . 3% (159.0)
Cash flow from ﬂﬁanclng activities . ) )
Interest element of finance lease rental payment T ’ . " ' : - {14.9). {8.5)
Capital element of finance rental lease payments Lo .o . R . (0.9) S (19)
Interest paid . - S o L (126.5) 3.1y
Tax paid . ] . .. ) o {11.8) 0.3
Settlement of financial i lnstruments ’ ‘ L C o L {3.5) (24.4)
" Drawdown of loans in the year . . ) o 229.6 497.1
Repayment of loans in theyear o . o . . (257.3) . (370.1)
Net cash flow from ﬁnancing activities ° . . o o 4 ' (184.4) ©(18.2)
Net change in cash and cash equivalemr.- . : . ' . ) (6.2) (23.4)
‘Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - ; S . . 724 95.8
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year . ) o . TR ) 924
Note a
Profitfortheyear - ' : . 85.4 1160
Adjustments for non-cash items lo reconcile profit for lhe year to net cash generated from operating acuvmes ' ’
Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets . C A3 476
. Amortisation of grants . . ’ ) ) (16.2) (15.6)
- Prefit from investment in joint ventures o ) ’ 3.3 (1.2) -
Profit/(loss) attributable to non-controlling interests . s - 0.3 .0.3
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets . . - L . 0.7 45
Appreciation of fixed asset investments. 4 ' . : {1.7) ‘_ (2.8)
Gain on revaluation of investment properties . o o (0.8) (3.8)
Combinations that are in substance a glfl , : o g R - {45.2)
Increase in stock . _ o ’ : S T (899 T {74.)
Decrease indebtors - T Co - : ) . . o 83 " 5.0
Increase in trade and other creditors L ] L ' B A 19.0 S107
Prafit on tangible fixed assel disposals L : C ’ T (26.3) %7
Pension adjustment - ) o : (5.7) (6.9).
~ Interest payable h : . : ‘ o ) ) o 141.4 123.0
" Interest receivable S : R S (11.0) 13.0)
Tasation = . o . o . i - 9.8 13.9
Cash flow from operating activities . E ' : T o 1569 153.8-°

The notes on pages 105 to 146 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Online annual report and accounts www.pl orpeaple,ca.uk/. \report,’




Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 2019

1 Principal Accounting Policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies, whu:h have been applled :

consistently; is set out helow.

' Basis of accounting :
These financial statements have been preparedin accordance with -
applicable United Kingdom accounting standards, including Financial-
Reporting Standard 102 - 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the United-Kingdom and Republic of Ireland' ('FRS 102'), the Statement of

- Recommended Practice for Registered Social Housing Providers (SORP),
the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social
Housing 2015, and with the Companies Act 2006,

The financial sla;emeri(s are presented in Sterling (Em's).

Going concern

After making enquiries, the board has reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate reésources to continue in operational existence for*
the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the gaing
concern basis in preparing the Group financial statements,

‘Basis of consolidation . .

The financial statements are group statements and have been prepared -
by consotidating the results of the entities within the Places for People
Group using the acquisition methad for subsidiary entities and the equity
method for joint venture entities as appropriate.

The consalidated accounts comprise the financial statements of
Places for People Group Limited and its subsidiary undertakings, cantrol -
of which are achieved where Places for People Group Limited has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits fromits activities. A listing of subsidiaries and related
undertakings is provided in note 28,

Independence and Responsibility Agreements exist between the
Group parent and the subsidiaries, which are the basis of the Group
structure, and enable the Board of Directors ta control the Group. All
subsidiaries have coterminous year ends. Places for Peaple.Living+
Limited, Places Impact, Castle Rock Edinvar Housing Assaciation,
Colman Housing Assaciation, Derwent Community Housing Assaciation
Limited, Charus Homes Limited (formerly Luminus Homes Limited) and
Places for People Leisure Partnerships each have a charitable status.

_ Public benefit entity combinations that are in substance a gift to the
Group are accounted for by calculating the excess of the fair value of the
assets assumed aver the fair value of liabilities acquired. This gam is
recogmsed in the Statement of Comprehensive Incame.

Significant judgements

The following are the significant judgements apart from those mvolvmg

" estimations (which are sel oul separately below), that have been made in
the pracess of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recogmsed in the financial
statements,

Lease classification . -

An agreement to manage a portfolia of 4,096 properties was classﬁied as
an operating {ease arrangement when the freeholds of these propemes
were owned by another Registered Provider.

. During the year ending 31 March 2018, the Group purchased the
freeholds of these properties and assessed that the arrangement should
be classified as a finance lease.

The Group considered the requirements of FRS 102 Section 20 which
requires that, if a lease substantially transfers all the risks and rewards of
ownership, it should be treated as a finance lease, it was determined that
because the Group will retain ownership of the properties at the end of
the 45 year lease period, alangside holding the risks and rewards of
owning and managing the properties during this periad, the Group
subs!annally holds the risks and. rewards of ownership.

" judgement, as it was concluded that both the Group and Charus Homes

. objective to pravide services ta the general public, community or secial
" benefit and they are not funded by private equity.

" 108

Recoverablhly of slor:k

The Group has E448m of stock at 31 March 2019 (2018 £387 3m)
comprising land of £86.6m, properties in construction of £306.9m and
completed properuesof £53.2m. FRS 102 seclion 13 requires stockta
be measured at the lower of cost and estimated sellmg price less costs
to complete and sell.

The Group monitars development projects and properties held for
sal_e on an angoing basis and uses rigorous appraisal lechmques to )
estimate the recoverable amount of stock. Realistic financial projections
are used on an individual site basis to allow management to estimate that

land and property are held at the apprapriate amount.

Business cambinations that are in substance a gift
Chorus Homes Group Limited (formerly Luminus Group Limited), a

- registered housing provider, joined the Group on 26 March 2018, This

required the Group to decide the appropriate accounting for this business
combination. The Group concluded that the requirements of FRS 102
Section 34 Public Benefit Entity Combinations were ralevant to this

Group Limited (formerly Luminus Graup Limited) both have a primary

‘The Group considered that the combination was in substance a gift
as zéro consideration was made or is due'as a result of Charus’joining the
Group. The entity and its nel assets were gifted to the Group. As such, the
net assets, at fair value, have been recognised as a gain in the statement.
of comprehensive income in the year ending 31 March 2018.

Investment properties.

* The Group owns a range of different property types. This requlres the

Group to assess which properties should be classified as investment
properties as thesa praperties are held at a market valuallon not at
depreciated cost.

The Group considered the FRS 102 definition of investment praperty
which refers to property held to earn rentals for capital appreciation,
rather than for administrative purposes or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. The Group has alsa reviewed Section 16 of FRS 102 that

.- precludes the classification of property held primarily for the provision
of social benefits being classified as investment property. The Group has

applied this by judging that rental properties without public subsidy

attached to them are investrnent groperties,

Accounting asllmates :
The nature of estimation means that actual outcomes may differ trom
the estimates made.

Itis considered that the esumate of residual value of social housing
properties has a significant impact on the carrying amount of sacial
housing assets. The Group consider the residual value of social housing
property structure to be cost. The net book value of saclal housing
propertiesis £3.5bn. The residual valte of social housing property
structure is £280m above the carrying value as at 31 March 2019.

A 10% reduction in residual value would result inno'impact to the
depreciation charge. .

The Graup has defined beneﬁt obhgatlons relaling to six pension
schemes. Note 24 sets out the details for these schemes and the
assumptions made to assess the net scheme benefit as at the reporting
date. Thé Group engage qualified actuaries to advise on an appropriate
discount rate, A decrease in'the discount rate used of 0.1% is estimated
to increase scheme deficits by £13.6m. ’

‘The Group has £448m of stack at 31 March 2019 (2018: £387.3m),
comprising land of £86.4m, praperties in construction of £306.9m and

. completed praperties of £53.2m. FRS 102 section 13 requires stock to

be measured et the lower of cost and estimaled setling price less costs

to complete and sell,

wndoy Mnbey
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Notes to the financial statements
Farlhe year endmg 31 Morch 2017 ' :

Pvlncipal Accountlng Policies (contmued)

The Group monitors develapment projects and praperties held for
sale on an ongoing hasis and uses rigorous appraisal techniques to
eStimale the recoverable amount of stock. Realistic financial projections
are used on an individual site basis to allow management ta estimate
that land and property are held at the appropriate amount. -

It is estimated that a 5% reduction in setling price of houses would -
not require an alleration to the value of stock recorded in the Group
Statement of Financiat Position.

Turnover

Turnover represents rental and service charge income recelvable (net
of void losses), income from the sale of properties, income from the sale
of the first tranche of shared ownership praperties, fees and grants from
local authorities and Homes England, leisure facilities management fees,
mortgage broker fees, equity loan fee income, personal loans interest
and loan service delivery fees and other income. The turnover of the
parent entity consists of recharges to otheér Group entities,

Charges for support services funded under Supporting People are
recognised as they fall due under the contractual arrangements wilh
Administering Authorities.

Rental income is recognised from the paint the property becomes .
available far letting, net of any voids. Income from land and praperty sales
is recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership have passed to

" the purchaser. Long term contract revenue is recognised based on the ~
total contract value and the stage of completion of the contract. Mortgage
" tee income is recognised aver the term of the contract. Other income is
recognised upon the delivery of services.
Government grant is recognised in turnover over the expected lives
of the assets to which it relates.
All turnover arises from activities within the Unlted Kingdom.

Corporahon tax
The Group is (iable to United Kingdom Corporatlon Tax

The charge for taxation for the year is based on the profit for the year
end and includes current tax on the taxable profit for the year and
deferred taxation. Deferred taxation is recognised in respect of all timing
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and for

accounting purposes which have arisen but not reversed by the statement .’

of financial pasitian date.

VAT

" The majority of the Group's turnover is exempt from VAT, However, certain -

activities are subject to VAT and give rise to VAT recovery. Where
appropriate, costs are stated including irrecoverable VAT.

Pensions
There are thirteen pension schemes, six of which are deﬁned beneﬁl
. pension schemes based on final pensionable satary. Thereis a Group-
wide contribution based scheme. Details of the schemes are setoutin
Note 24. Employees joining the Places for People Group have the option
of joining the Places for People Group Stakeholder Scheme ('Stakeholder
_Scheme’), a defined contribution scheme. The casts of cantributing to the
Stakeholder Scheme are accounted for as an expense in the year in which
they occur. Contributians from the Group and participating employees are
paid into independently administered funds. These payments are made in
accordance with triennial calculations by professionally qualified -
independent actuaries.

Pension scheme assets are measured by independent experls using
market values, Pension scheme liabilities are measured using a projected
unit method and discaunted at the current rate of return on a high quality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the tiability.

Pension scheme deficits are recognised in full. The movement in
scheme deéficit is split between operaling charges, finance costs and,
in other camprehensive incame, actuarial gains and losses,
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Annual Report

Places for Peaple Homes Limiled, Cotman Hausing Associalion
Limited and Derwent Housing Association Limited {the English
Assaciations) participate in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS),

a multi-employer defined henefit scheme. Castle Rock Edinvar Limited -
and Places for People Scotland Limited (the Scottish Associations)
participate in the Scottish Housing Assacialion Pension Scheme (SHAPS).
During the year, the English and Scottish Assaciations recognised their
individual share of the SHPS and SHAPS scheme deficits following an
exercise carried out by independent actuaries to identify each member's
share of the deficit, In previous year's,.the Group recognised a liability

- based on the present value of the agreed deficit reduction contributions.

The change in the liability as a result of the change in estimate. has been
recognised in other comprehensive incame. The in-year movement in
the scheme deficit Is split between aperating charges, finance costs and,
in other comprehensive income, actuariat gains and losses,

Housing properties

Housing properties are those held primarily for the provision of sociat
benefits. Housing properties are stated at the lower of depreciated cost or
its recoverable amount. Cost is laken as the purchase price together with
costs of acquisition and impravements, attributable administrative costs

. andinterest casts incurred, including retated development and

administrative cosls and interest payable,

The Group capitalises expenditure on housing properties which
resultsinan increase in either the existing use value of 1he property .
or the disposal value of the property. | ) ) A

Investment praperties
Properties held for rental income or capital'appreciation that are not
held primarily for the pravision of sacial benefit are held as investment
properties at fair value, with changes to the fair value recogmsed in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Privaterental sector properties were valued at the date of transition

.to FRS 102 by a qualified RICS chartered surveyor and are reassessed on

an annual basis. Commercial properties are valued on an annual basis by
an experienced in-house team using detailed renlal income cash flow’ and
yield data. :

Land
Land is stated at lawer of cost or its recoverable amount. Land purchased-

" far the develapment of properties which are planned to be subsequently

owned and managed by the Group is recorded In housing properties. Land
purchased for the development of praperties to be sald is held within
stack in current assets.

Other fixed assets
Other fixed assets are recognised initially at cost and subsequently hetd
at the lower of depreciated cost or its recoverable amount.




" Assets

Financial Statements -

Notes to the ﬁnanmal statements
For lhe yeorending 3! March ?019

Principal Accounting Pohcnes {continued)

Depreciatwn

Fixed assets, other than freehold tand and investment. properties,

are depreciated at rates calculated to reduce the net book value of each
component element to its estimated residuat value, on a straight line
-basis over the expected remaining useful ecanomic life of the component.
. Freehold land is not depreciated. The estimated lives of assels and
components is as shown in the table below.

{years)

. Rented housing & commercial propert(es- -
Kitchens . ’ 20
Bathrooms R . ‘20
Boilers . T N |-
External windows & doors = C o3
Roofs ) ’ o LS
Fire safety syslems ‘ . ) .20
Fencing- C . ) 30

. Digital TV-aerials e S 10
Lifts , ' - 20
Sacial alarms o " From20-40
Surveys . v - ) 15
In_itiél and repl’aéement scheme assets . From 1105
Other elements (new build) .. . . 100 - 125
Other elements (rehab) . . . : - 80
Other elements (leasehold) - © Lesserof term of lease -

or 100 years -
Shared ownership housing: . )
All elements (new build) ’ S " 100
Al elements (rehab) ' , - 80
All elements (leasehold) Lesser of lerm.of [ease

or 100 years
Other fixed assets: . .
Offices (newbuild) ’ © 100

" Offices (rehab) . . : : . ‘80
Office refurbishment From 10-20
Offices (long leasehold) Lesser of term of lease

o or 100 years
Gffices (short leasehald) Terms of lease -
Plant & equipment B . 5
Cars and commercial vehicles C o ‘5

Computer hardware, software and infrastructure From3-18

Depreciation period

107

Fixed asset investments -

Fixed assel investments are measured at cost, An annual reviewis
carried out by management to assess if there are any triggers that _
would lead to an impairment review. In the event of any impairment,
the investment is measured at the lower of its recoverable amount
or its value in Gse. Investments in joint ventures are recognised initially
at cast and subsequently measured using the equity method.

Stock
" Properties purchased for improvement for sale are treated as currenl

assets and all other hausing properties are treated as tangible fixed
assets. Properties held as current assets are stated at the lower
of cost and estimated selling price less casts to complete énql sell.

Stack includes {and and property held with the intention to sefl,
including assets construction and those purchased for improvement prior
to sale. Stock is stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price
less costs to complete and sell with any provisians being charged to cost
of sales. The cost of stock is 1he purchase price together with costs ot
acquisition and attributable overhead costs.

- Altland and property held within stock is subject to regular ‘appraisal
to confirm the assels are recoverable at least at the carrying value.-

Included within stack are amounts in respect of the expected
perc'en'tage of sales under first tranche disposal for shared ownership
properties. Proceeds fram first tranche disposals are recognised in

turnover. The unsold equity of shared ownership properties is recognised -
. ,within housing properties..

GaodWlll

- Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acqursnlon aver the fa:r
_value of the net identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired business
. or campany at the date ot acquisition. Goodwilt has no residual value and
" the finite usefut life of goodwill is assessed on an individual basis for each

acquisition, with a maximum useful economic life of 10 years. The Group
reviews the amortisatian period and method when events and * .

_ circumstances indicate that the useful life may have changed since the

lastreporting date', Goodwill and other Intangible assets are tested for

, impairment in accordance with FRS 102 Section 27 (Impairment of

assels) when there is an indication that goodwill may be impaired. -

Impairment -
An impairment review is undertaken when there is anindication the
asset may be impaired. If assets are found to be impaired, the amount
of impairment is disclosed in Note 3.,

When undertaking impairment reviews to assess whether assets or.

* cash generating units are held at the lower of cost or recoverable amount,

recoverable amount is defined as its value‘in use. Recoverable amount

is normally assessed using discounted cash flow techniques far all

anticipated cash flows to generate a net present value. .
Costs are assigned to all schemes ona delalled basns‘ inctuding

.mixed tenure schemes.

The Group defines cash: generating units as housing developmenls
except where its devetopments are not sufficiently large enough in size
and it is more apprapriate to consider individual assets. This apgroach
supparts effective appraisal of housing schemes as it aligns with the
management and aperation of the business. ’
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 2012

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Long term cantracts .

Long term contracis are stated at cost plus altributable prafit after
‘providing for anticipated future losses and contingencies. Progress
payments received are deducted from these amounts. Cost includés
appropriate altributable overheads. Long term contract work in progress
is included in debtors as amaunts recoverable on contracls.

Cash retentions relating ta customers and contractors are’
recognised, within debtors and creditors respectively, in line with the
terms and stage of the relevant contract. Cost accruals for works

_completed but not yet inveiced by suppliers and costs estimated for defect
remediation are recagnised in line with profit recognition on the project
and held until actual costs are incurred.

~ Sacial hausing grant.and other capital grant .
Gavernment grants are included within creditors in the statement of
financial position and credited ta the statement of comprehensive income
over the expected useful lives of the assets to which they relate or in
periods in which the related costs are.incurred. -
When Saciat Housing Grant (SHG) in respect of housmg properties in
- the course of construction exceeds the total cost to date of those housing
properties, the excess is shown as a current liability. -
Where SHG or other grants are retained following the dlsposal of
property, itis shown under the Disposal Proceeds and Recycled Capital

Grant Funds within creditars. These funds will be used for the provision of

new social housing for rent and sale and become repayable if unutilised.

Concessionary loans
The Group has a HomeBuy arrangement WhICh is consndered to be -
a cancessionary loan.

Under the HomeBuy scheme, the Group receives HomeSuy grant

_representing a percentage of the open market purchase price of a

property in order to advance interest free toans to a homebuyer. The
loans advanced by the Group meet the definition of cancessionaryloans
and are shown as fixed assets investments on the statement of financial
position, The HomeBuy grant provided by the government ta fund all
or part of 3 HomeBuy loan is classified as a creditor due in more than
oneyear, )

Financial instruments

The Group has elected to apply the recogmhon and measurement
provisions of International Accounting Standard 39 as allowed by FRS 102
‘sections 11 and 12, Financial instruments are initially recorded at fair
value. Subsequent measurement depends an the des:gnatlon of the -
instrument as foltows:

" — Debt service reserves held in trust as security against debt holdings
are categorised as hetd-ta~maturity and measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

" — - Loans and mortgages receivable are categonsed as loans and
receivables and measured at amorllsed cost using the eﬁectwe
interest method.

‘— Amounts recoverable onlong term comracls are included with
debtors.

~— Other assets, |ncludmg trade investments and joint venture
investments and asselsthal are short-term in nature such as
cash and receivables are predominantly categorised as loans and
receivables and measured at amorused cost using the eﬁectlve
interest method, ’ )
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— Discounted bonds are shown at their redemption value less deferred
interest. Deferred interest represents the discount an the issue of the
discounted bonds. Discounts are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on an effective yield basis.

— Derivatives, comprising interest raté and currency swaps, are held at
fair value. Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognisad asset or liability,
or a highly probable forecast transaction: the effective part of any
gain or lass an the derivative financial instrument is recognised
directly inreserves. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised

- immediately in the statement of comprehensive incame account.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designatédand .
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income immediately, together with any changes in
the fair value of the hedged item that is attributable to the hedged -
risk. The associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equily
and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income account
in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast’

_ transaction affects profit or loss.”

‘= The cost of raising finance is amartised over the period of the

associated financial instrument. The deferred cost is offset against
the liability recognised in the statement of financial pasition.

— Financial liabilities are predominantly measured at amortised cost
using the eﬂeclive interest melhod. }

The eﬁecuve interest rate includes interest and all directly
attributable incremental fees and costs. Derivatives require fair vatue
measurement each year and consequently they are subject to )
categorisation under the hierarchy approach.

Cash at bank and in hand in the statement of financial posman

- comprises all cash and cash equivalents that mature or are convertible

within three months or less. The Group is required to set aside sums in
respect of future maintenance of certain properties subject to leasehold:
arranéemems. These sums are held In a separate bank account to which
interest is added and tax deducted. Amounts accumulated in the fund are -

‘included within current asset investments and within crednors in the ’
* statement of financial position.

‘Other debtors, including tenant arrears, and cred\lors with no stated
interest rate and receivable or payable within one year are recorded at
transaction price. Any losses arising from lmpalrment are recognlsed
in the statement of compreahensive income.

Fcreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded usmg the rate

of exchange ruling at the date of the transactions or if hedged forward,

at the rate of exchange under the related forward currency contract.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fareign currencies are
transtated using the contracted rate or the rate of exchange ruling at the |
statement of financial position date and gains or losses an translauon

are mcluded in the statement of comprehensnve income.




Financial Statements

Notes to the fmancnal statements
For the yearandmg 31 March 2019

' Principal Accounting Pohqnes {continyed)

-Leases
The Group classnﬁes ﬁnance leases as thase where the rlsk and reward of
' ownership of the leased asset has transferred to the Group Other leases
are classified a5 operating leases.

Assels obtained under finance leases are capitalised as langlble fixed
assets and depreciated over the shorter of the lease lerm and their
economic useful lives, Obllgatlans under finance leases are included in
creditors net of the finance charge allocated to future periods. The finance
element af the rental is charged to the statement of comprehensive
income using the effective interest rate method.

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged tathe statement’
of comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the lease term,
Income in respect of operating leases where the Group is the lessor is
recognised in the statement of comprehenslve income on a straight line
basis over the lease term, reduced by the cost of any lease incentives. -

" - Restricted reserves .

The Group has a reserve which is only expendable jn accordance with the

wishes of the funder. The transfers to/from restricted reserves are shown

- inother comprehensive income.

109

andsy Jbniens

]

429

"

k2

soday asuet

1
B




Two -
. . . . . . . . K
Notes to the financial statements
. For the year énding 31 March ZQW

i

2 " Turnover, cost of sales, operating costs
and operating profit :

.Social housing lettings (note 3)

Other sacial housing activities
Sacial housing property.sales
Shared Ownership property's'alesA
. Charges'for support services
Other o .

Non sacial hqusiﬁg activities :

Surplus on sale of fixed assets (note 4)

: i’otal

Analysis of turnover

Social housing turnover

Non sacial housing activities -
Leisure facilities management
Nan saciat housing devel;:pment
Property management services
Non social construction services
Non social bousing lettings
Retirement management services .
Other '

" Total

Annual Report

2019 .

Turno-ver' Cost of sales - Operating .Other Operating
’ ’ costs operatingitems  profit/(loss)
fm £m £m £m £m
354.3 — (186.7) - 1672.6
2.5 (2.2) (0.8) - (0.5)
5.2 ER)) (0:5) - - 1.0
4.8 — (4.1) - 0.7
0.6 — (0.7) - {0.1)
367.4 (5.9) (192.8) - 168.7
459.7 {172.6) ' (255.0) — 32.1
827.1 (173.5) {447.8) - 200.8
- - - 26.3 263 .
8271 (178.5) (467.8)“ . 263 T 2274
2019 2018
£m - £m .
3867.4 3358
158.2 147.3
127.1 839
621 . 58.0
59.8 73.6
41.2 44,8
2,0 . 4.2
9.3 7.0
8271 - C 7544

.Online annual report and accounts www.placesfarpeaple,co.uk/annualreport
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Notesto the financial statéments , |

For the yeor ending 3'[ Marci) 2019

2018

317

Turnp;ler Caost ofsal'es Operaling _ Other _* Operating
_— : - costs aperatingitems  profitiloss) . -
Em : £m ©Em ' Em: . Em
L 3154 gEg—- (164.2) - 151.4
23 - 8) (0.9) - o1
58 (25 @1 = 12
ks - ann - 0.5
0.5 T (0. - ©.2)
338 4O (179.0) - 1528
M86 T (145.8) @411 -
7544 049.9) 6200y - SEAC
- = . 47 47
TsAE049.8) (%20.1) 47 189.2
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Notes to the financial statements .
Far the year ending 3! March 2019 A -

3 Income and expenditure from social housing lettings

Income

:Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges
Service charge income .
. Revenue grant
Amortised government grants
Other income

" Turnover from sacial hatising lettings

Expendit_ureon social housing Ietlinés a:tiv'ilieg

~ Management

Service charge costs

Rautine maintenance

‘Plannéd maintenance

Major repairs expenditure

Bad debts ]
Depreciation on housing assets

. Leases relating to housing properties .
Other casts . .

Operating costs on saciat hausing lettings
Operating profit on social housing lettings

Void losses

Gnline annual repart and accounls_www;placasfc.lrpcupla.co.uk/amiua!roburl )
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. 2019
J
Supported
"housing &
-General needs housing for } .
housing  older people _Other Total
£m £m £m " Em
252.8 - -18.8 - 19.8- 291.4
22.3 12.5 19 367
5.4 — . - 5.4
13.7 1.5 . 1.0 16.2
3.2 ' 1.1 " 0.3 4.8
297.4 33.9 230 . 3543
'(41.3) 6.7 (5.2)- ' (53.7)
. {20.2) {11.5) (0.8) {(32.5)
" (40.0) - (3.3) (1.8) (44.7)
(12.9) (1.0) (0.8) (14.7)
(4.2) {0.5) (0.1) (4.8)
(2.1) {0:2) (0.1). (2.4).
27.1) (2.8 {1.5) (31.0)
(1.5) (1.4) _ @9
(149.8) (272.0) (9.9) {188.7)
1472.6 8.9 139 ' 167.6
(2.6) 0.7) (0.5) @3.8)
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Notes.to the financial statements 2,
For the yeor ending 31 March 2019 - " . ' ' . ’ . . . ' . .. é"

N .. . : . ° : . -t . . . R S
2018
Total
£m
261.6 N
30.6
5.4
15.6
2.4
. 3154 1
- K<
L g \
&
3
. . . . . . R . o
) S : >
(28.5) " ST 3
(36.8) =
(12.4)
4.7)
(2.9 !
(29.5)
4.1
(1.5)
(164.2)
151.4
[¢X:)]
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor ending 31 March 2019

Anaual Report

nghesx paid director
The Group Chief Executiveisnot a member of the Group's pension scheme, and does notreceive
any enhanced or special terms or contributions to any individual pension arrangement,

Online annual repart and accounts www.placesfarpeople.co.uk/annuatraport
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4 Group profit on sale of fixed assets . . 2019
. ’ » Sale proceeds _Cost of sales Other sales Surplus/(loss)
. ) . expensas )
£m £m £m £m
Saleofhousingassets -~ _ B ' 265.0 (234.2) 4.8) - 28,4
Sale of other fixed assets : B ' ' - ©.1) - (0.1)
Total . ‘ ' o s . 2680 (234.3) (6.8) 26.3
: : 2018
. Sale proceeds ‘Costof sales _-Othersales  Surplus/(loss)
- ) expenses ’
£m . E£m £m £m
Sale of housing assets” o , - .29 ~(75) 0.4 90"
Sale of fixed asset investments - R e o T - (4.6) (4.6)
Sale of'olher fixed assets : ) -2 (1.6) . {0.2) 0.3 .
Total . ' S : - 9.1 6.2) 47
5 Directors' emoluments
The Group is a_dminfsl_ered by a Board of Directars. The directars received rem'uvnera(ion as set out below. Group
o ’ : ' : 2019 2018 -
E£m £m
Aggregate emoluments {excluding penslon contrlhuuons) .
Non-executive directors 05 - 0.4
Executive dlrectors‘ 1.6
Pension contributions: A‘ .
Executive directors 0.1 0.1
Total rc_emdneraﬁon 2.2 . 21
‘ Th'e:riumber of executive directors who received emoluments in the following ranges was:
: . ' : 2019 2018,
. No. No.
£80,000-£89,999 -
£180,000 - £189,999 1
£200,000 - £209,999 -
£230,000 - £239,999 ~.
£240,000 - £249,999 -
£240,000- £269,999 1 —
£290,000-£299.999 1
£300,000 - £309,999 1 -
- £590,000 - £599,999 S 1
£600,000 - £4609,999 1 -
2019 2018 -
£'600 £'000
405 592
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Notes to the financial statements E
For the yeor endmg 3t Mnrch 2019 ;r?
a
é Employee information ) )
The average number of employees expressed as full time equwalents (mcludlng the executive dlrectors) employed dunng the year v was: .
Graup o ~Com‘p§ny
2019 2018 . . 2019 . 2018
No: ~ No. N "~ No.
Managing housing services o ' L 2,597 a 2448 . 19 ' 1
Developing and selling houses : o 457 - Al0. 7 . '8
Central'administration services B T . . 843 590 250 282 .
" Careservices ) : o C L 244 586 - -
Leisure service activities - . . . ' L ~2,405 .23 - -
625 . 6041 278 " 308
Average number of employees is calculated by ascertammg for each calendar monlh in the financial year, the number of persans, by cateqory, empluyed a
by lhe Group The monthly numbers are then added togetherand divided by the number of months in the tinancial year. i
. . G
. : , 2q19 2018 2019 - 2018 5.
Staff costs (for the above persons): : "Efm - £m £m . Em 2
N w
. S . . - B : SRR I
Wages and salaries o ' L2004 0 1834 . 120 ' 147 1732
Severancepay - T ST R K 29 - 0.4 B R
Social security costs ) ‘ o 187 147 T3 Cs
Pensionpayments = . o ' . . 1.3 Y 19 0.6 |
' 230.0 2076 e 13
Staff costs (for the non-executive members of the board):
Wages and salaries ‘ L ' - ’ 0.5 - .04 — .-
X ¥ - s
Rem.uneralion banding for key management personnel is di'sclosed.below, which is considered by the
Places for People Group to be members of the Group management team responsible for the management
of the Group’s Registered Providers. Analysis of the Executive Directors is disclosed in nate 5. -
' ' : o 2019 2018
) No. No.
£60.000-£69999 . - o Lo S 2 -
£70,000- £79999 o Lo . _ ' L = 2
£80,000 - £89.999 : : - ' . - - B
£90,000- £99.999 ' ) ) ‘ o : - 1
£100,000 - £109.999 1 T2
£110,000 - £119.999 1 -
£120,000 - £129,999 - 2
£130,000- £139.999 3 _‘
£140,000 - £149,999 1 -
£150,000-£159.999 1 2
~-£160,000 - £149,999 1 C -
£170,000 - £179.999 , 1. o
~ £180,000 - £189,999 1 i
£190,000 - £199,999 ) A S . 1 1
£200000-£209.999 . ' o A o 1 o

| £210,000-£219999 : _ _ , ,
£220000-£229999 ~. . . : : S R - T
£230000-£239999 . - . . : o 1 ~
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Notes to the financial statements
Far the yeor ending 3! March 2019

7 Interest regeiv:{ble and similarincome ' R ‘ o Group . ‘ " Company
e : A ' 2019 - 2018 2019 2018
On financial assets not at falrvalue through the statement of ° e ) ) Em - . £m T fm 7 Em .
comprehensnve income: '
‘Interest on fixed asset investments R ‘ S 3 124 . - -
Dividend received ’ . - . 1.4 0.4 ' T e
Other interest receivable from deposits - . © 0.3 0.2 Lo —
' 1.0 13.0 o= -
B Interest payéble and similarcharges L. . ' . Growp .. o - Company
’ T L2019 208 .o2019 . 2018
On hnancnal llabllmes not at falrvalue through the statement of o - ) £m £m . Em . £m
comprehensive income: : : : -
Bank loansand overdrafts - A ) S 1256 SIS 0.1 02
Finance charges on hire purchase or lease agreements : - ’ S0 - 45 - L
In respect of Recycled Capstal Grant Fund ) ) ) 0.3 0.1 - L=
129.9 1244 o 02
Share of jaint ventures interest payable and simila}'charges ’ . .14 ) 0.3 ) - . -~
" Unwinding of SHPS and SHAPSxiensionliabi(itydis’counl : o - ' - B % : - ) -
On defined benefit pe'nsionsg:heme; ) ) ] )
Expected return on pension assets : C : ' - (8.0) ©.0) - L ~
. Interest an scheme liahilities - v - ‘8.7 6.2 - -
' 07 . 0.2 L= -

On financial liabilities at fair value through the statement of
comprehenswe income: .

Fair value (galn)llossonmlereslrateandcurrencyswaps : . : = (1.0) - ) = L -
_ ’ T1420 0 0 1237 0:1 T2
Less: capitalis_éd inlére;v,l : . i . ’ ) (0.8) - 0.7) L= -
' [T SRR < ¥ S X IR ¥

9 Profiton cvdinéry activities before taxation . Group ' - Company
S oL ' g 2019 . 2018 2019 . 208
* Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging: . Em . Em . £m £m

Dépreciation and.impairment:

. Tangible fixed assets : o : - S 432 a1 - -
Amortisation of goodwitl : : BRI ¥ 45 = =
(Loss)/prohl on dlsposaloftanglble fixed assets otherthan housmg assels o wny -~ 83 - . .-

Paymentsunderoperalmgleases: ) ) L L . .
i Housing properties - : - 8.4 ) 125 . . -

Motor vehicles . . R ’ - . 6.8 .43 0.1 . 0.

Other operating leases . ' ) ) . DU N S R | - ) -—

Hire of equipment . : ' . 65 - 05: - —- —_
Auditar's remuneration: . ) . } »

In their capacity as auditor . . . 0.6 : 0.6 . - -

Auditor's remuneration in respect of.non-audit services was £35k (2018: £45K).

Gnline annual report and accounts www.pl forpeople.co.uk/, lreport
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Notes to the financial statements K
For the year ending 31 March 2019 . §:‘
Q

10 Taxon profit on ordinary agtivltles - : : - o ‘Group

: . o C ‘ 2019 2018

{a) Analysis of charge in period . : L o . : CoEfm. Em

- Taxon profit an ordinary activities V i

_United Kingdom corporation tax I - . 9.0 . 12.6

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periads o . ' i . ' 0.3 - 0.2)

Share of joint venture current tax . ' T ' ) R 0.5

. 9.2 ' 129

- Deferred tax (note 10e¢) . ’ .

Origination and reversal of timing differences . o N . 1.5 - 2.0

Adjustments to deferred tax in respect of priar periods . L. . ' ’ : {0.9) . {1.0)

o . 0.8 L0
Total tax charge ’ ' ) ’ . 98 139 -

(b) Tax expense inctuded in other comprehensive income

Deferred Tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences B . , . 1.2 . ' 37
QOrigination and reversal of timing differences — prloryear : ' . . a5 - . 1.0

.
imd:-'ga:ueujamg/\
N : \
. R N

7 Y

{c) Factors affecting tax charge for perlod
The tax assessed is different than the standard rate of carporation tax in lhe UK of 19% (2018: 19%)
The differences are ‘explained belaw:

. Taxable Group prom ' . : : ' . o . 95.5 130.2
Proflt on ordmary activities multiplied by the: standard rate of carporation taxin the UK of 19% {2018: 19%) C ‘ 18.1 K 247
Incomenottaxable . - . h - . o ) T PR v X/
Exempt charitable income o X . . S (7.0)° . (5.0

~Movementin unrecogniéed deferred tax . o _— T4 .29
" Rate difterence - . ‘ ) . - (0.3) (.1)
Adjustments to tax charge.in respect of prior periods - : . 4 (0.8) (1.2)

" Tax on profit on ‘ardinary activities (note 10a) . . . ' ) : ._ .98 - 13.9

(d) Factors.that may affect future tax charges

The Finance (No 2) Act 2015, which was substantively enacted on 26 October 2015, mcluded leguslauon that reduced lhe main corporation tax rate to’
19% from 1 April 2017. The main rate of corporation tax will be reduced to 17% {effective J April 2020) as substantively enacted in The Finance Act 2016
* on 6 September 2016. These changes will reduce the company's future current tax charge accordingly. o

(e) Provision for deferred tax

" Accelerated capital allowances ‘ C o , h - . o % 4.2
. Other short-term timing differences . ’ ’ . (5.7) (8.0)
TaxLosses . K . 7 o ' (1.8) -
Pension through other comprehenswe income . ' . . . . {4.4) . (5.8)
Other timing differences o ) . : ] I ¥ 2 18

‘ (5.8) - (7.8)

Provislonat | April . : . , (7.8) (13.5)
Transfers in through business combinations ’ o . . : ) . (0.4) -
.Expense in the year in statement of comprehensive income ' 0.6 . 1.0
Expense/(mcome) in the year in statement of camprehensive income in other comprehensive income N7 ) 4.7
Adjustments in respect of prior periods ather camprehensive income : . 0.1 . —

Pravision at 31 March at 19% (2018: 19%) (note 18) ‘_ - ’ . . (5.8 (2.8)
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Notes to the financial statements
Far the yeor énding 31 MarchVZDIO '
1. Goodwill : A : : . ‘ ‘ o " Graup -
. . . ‘ © . fm

Net baak value

'AtlAprl12018 . o . S : ' o 7.2
'Addrtlonsmyear o N - - ‘ o . ' ‘ ' ' 39
'Amorusanoncharged|nyear ' o . S o - . e (0,7)
At3iMarch2019 . - Lo ' e 10:4

In February 2019, the Group aéqulred 50% of ModutarWise Limited for £0.:8m to bring the Group's shareholding in the entity to 100%. The total cast of *
the combination was £1.5m of which £0.7m is deferred. The gaodwill f £3.5m recagnised an the business combination is to be amartised over a period
of 10 years. The acquisition of Madularwise; a modutar housebuitder, was made ta support the groups strategy of dellverlng a signficant pipeline of new
homes. The amounts recagnised for each class of assets at the acquistion date are shown betaw.

“In May 2018, the group acquired 100% of PFP Iglao LP. The total cost of the combination was £2.4m, the goodwill of £0.4m recagnised o (he
business combination is.ta be amartised over a period of 4 years. The purchase of PFP Igloa enabled the group to purchase investments to allow the
establishment of an urban transformahon fund for developments on serveral UK sites, The amounls recognlSed tor each class of assets at the acquistion
date are shown below.

Other comprehensive income has been credited by £1.Imto reflect losses 1ncurred whule MadularW|se Limited was a 50% jaint venture Inthe year
ended 31 March 2018 ather comprehensnve income was debited by £3.8m to reﬂect prafits recagmsed while MDH (Group) Limited was a 50% joint

- venture.

" Assets and liabilities acquired in year : ) . o : " fm £m
’ ' PFP Igloo * MedularWise

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets = . . . ’ . ’ R 0.4

Current Assets

Stock S ‘ c S . o 1
Debtors . . : ’ ) . - 0.7
. ._ Cash at bank ) . ’ . e . . ‘2.3 ) 0.1.
‘ 27 2.3
Creditars.-‘ Apdynts falling due within one yea;‘ - o : . . o (6.7) . (2.65
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year R o ' - . {1.7)
'A ﬁé! assets acquired . o - i . o ’ o . 2.0 (2.0)
Amotunts recogn.is'ed in the Statement of cémpréhensive Income since o
the acquisition date ) ) . ) . ~
’ Tqrnover ‘ ‘ - 0.2
©5) - ©.2)

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation - . K .

- Online annuai repart and accounts www._placesforpeople,co.uk/annuaireport
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Notes to the fmanmal statements’
For the'year endmg 3! Mnrth 2019
12 Group.housing properties ‘ . ©LsE § shared
’ LSE & shared ’ Housing ownership
Housing - ownarship  propertiesin ' properties in ,
properties - housing  the course of the coursd of Total housing
and land . properties  construction  construction properties
" Em | Em 'Em' £m . €m -
‘Cost . .
At} Aprit 2018 3,630.0 266.1 40.4 4.5 3,941.0
Additions 28 - 170.4 124 1883
Change of tenure 425 40.7) 1] 09 - - 3.8.
Transfer ta completed schemes 129.2 - NS 129.2) (11.5) -
Transfer ta sales éccqum on disposal (18.5) (7 - — (23.48) "

At 31 March 2019 3,788.0 2298 '82.7 - 6.0 4,106.5

' D_eprec_iation. o . . ’
AU April 2018 - (407.3) - (17.0) - - . (424.3) -
Charge for year C . o

- Depreciation (30.9) 0.2) - — - “@L)

- Eliminated on-disposal . o <o
Depreciation 41 05 - - 4.8
Change of tenure’ . . S
Depreciation {0.4) - 0.4 - — =

" At 31 March 2019 (434.5) (16.3) - - (450.8)
‘Net book value at 31 March 2019 3,3535 © 2135 82.7 60 3,855.7

 Net book valtie at 1 Aprit 2018 ©3,2227 404 45 '3514.7.

LSk denoles Leasehold Schemes for the Elderly

. Addvuons to housing properties in the course of construction during the yearmclude an appartlonmenl ofslaff time dcreczty spent on the adm;mstral:on

of development actwmes amounting to £2.5m (2018 £2. 3m)

Housing properties comprise, at cost:
 Freehold

Lang leasehold
* Short leasehald

Expenditure on major works to existing properties during the year was £48.0m (2018: £69.1m).

2019 - 2018
T Em “£m
©3,649.1 " 35006
448.9 432,72
8.5 8.2
.5,1085 3,941.0

\\\
N -

<

314}

140Gy ol
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2UIBADO /\
1
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" Notes to the financial statements

Far the year ending 31 Morch 2019

13 Group other fixed assets

Cost ‘ )

Net book value at 1 April 2018
Additions

) Dispasals

- AU31 March 2019
Depreciation .
Net haak value at 1 April 2018

Charge for year
Etiminated on disposal

At 31 March 2019
Impairment .
Net baok value at 1 April 2018

Charge for year
Eliminated on disposal

" At31 March 2019 -

‘Netz_Bnok Value at 31 March 2019

Net book value at 1 April 2018

Online annual iep_ort'and accounts www,placesfarpeaple.co,uk/annualreport
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Commercial and office pt;operties a

" Plant & . o
L . speclalist Computer Frachold
Motor vehicles equipment equipment . “offices
£m- £n LEm . Em
0.6 3.2 a2 273
- 0.7 64 . 5.0
- - 0.1) (0.3
0.8 3.9 3zs . 320
0.8 a9 0 48) .0
©.1) 0.3) . R E (0.3)
0.2 - 1.4 ' -
(0.3) @) (164 - (.3
—_ - L= (0.3)
- P C X
0.3 17 21.1 30,5
82’ R A 289
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 2019

Short Fixtures

Long lqaseﬁold - teasehald and fittings Total
£m Em - £m £Em
no. 25. - 45 137.3
0.3 - 5.6 A 3.0 210
— 7. S (03) 0.4)

"11.3 T 274 44.2 . 1569
@ . 8 (25.4) (52.0)°
©2y @2y . (50 (2.

- - a7 " 2.3.

@y . en @) (61.8)

ka.S) N ()] . (0.1) ©(2.1)
- 06 St 07
(0.5) 08 . = (1:4)
g6 o s 9.7
83.2
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ending 31 March 2019

14 Fixed assets - investments

. External investments and investmentin related undertakmgs (a)
Invéstment properly {b) . :

Total fixed assel investments

(a) External investments and investment in related undertakings

Cost at 1 April

Cost at 31 March

Accumulated impairment at 1 Aprit
Provislon raised in the year

At 31 March

Net book value at 31 March

. Debt Service Réserves

Grace Giltett Trust

Other external investments .
Invéstment in related undertakings
Investment in joint venture undertakings

Annual Report

193.6

172.6

. Group a Company
2019 2018 .2019 2018
£m fm £m CEm
193.8 172.6 0.5 05 -
500.8 632.2 - —
894.4- " 8048 0.5 s
) Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2008
Em £m Em “fm
1737 2364 0.5 . Lé
193.8 173.7 0.5 0.5
oy {0.2) - -
0.9 {0.9) - —
0.2) ) - -
193,68 1726 - 0.5 05
432 544 - -
0.2 0.2 - - -
38.8" 189 0.3 0.3
0.1 - 0.2 0.2
N3 994 - S -
0.5 0.5

" Investments in Debt Servicing Reserves are held in trust for the Association by the Prudential Trustee Company as security against the 6.625%
Eurobond 2038, and the 5.09% secured Bond 2024, and by Abbey National Treasury Services as security against a fixed rate loan of £50 million.

The reserves equate to one year's payment of i interest and principal.

The Grace Gillett Trust _résulled from alegacy left to support the residents of a scheme,in Bristol._

(b) Investment Properties )

At 1 April 2018
Additions

Change of Tenure
Revaluation in year.
Disposals

At 31 March 2019

Online annual repori and accounts www.placesforpeople.co.uk/annualreport

£m

632.4°
78.9
2.8
X
-{214.1)

© 500.8
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A

Notes to the financial statements
' ) Forlheyearending:?l March 2015

riedsy il

15 Equity loans : o . ) : A o s Group " : " Company
' - ' 2019 . 2018 2019 . . 208"
, £Em - £m ©Em . &m
Gross valuation ) . ‘ ) . . n ) :
C-At1Aprit - . . I : 1052 19 e
Additions in year : ’ A ' T 0.4 © 03 - -
Net appreciation inyear - : . T o 2.0 3 : - -
Disposals inyear : : L o (13.1) (15.1) . =
At31March S . ‘ : _ ' 94.7 105.2 - =
. Other associated liabilities . . K . : )
" Atd April o S : oo T (20.8) (23.) - S =
Net appreciation in year ) . L (0.5) ©3 - . ] _
Disposals in year - : o o . 2.6 - - 30 — T
At 31 March . L 4 - {18.2) (204 - R B ,Q 2
Net book value at 31 Marcl’j . . L . 765 : 84.8 - —_ %
16 Stack * . . e B o "' Group . . Company -
' ' ' . 2019 018 2019 2018 |
" gm £m . £m ’ £fm =
Land : L © T 868 1095 - - .=
" Propertiés in construction o ’ . ' : ©306.9 . - 155 ) - I
Completed praperties ' : o 532 ° . “61.1 - -
Oiher S S o 1.3 1.2 = L =
448.0 /73— =

17 Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year

o Group . ’ Company
2009 - - 208 2019 . 2018
£m - - Em . Em - Em
" ‘Derivative financlal instruments held tdm?nége the interest rate
profite and currencyrisk - . . . . 9.7 . 32 - _ : _
Trade and ather debtors - - - L . T 88 - - -
Agencyleases. - ) : S o 03 S A - -
Loans and advances to'customers - S I T2 3 . . - -
. Mortgages . S o S ) 2.1 2.4 o= —_
' 17.8 08, 0 ==
\
. 5
. J
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Notes to the fmano!al statements o
Far the year endzng 31 March 20} 9 .

18 . Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

Rental debtors
Less: Pravision for bad and doubtful debts

" Other trade debtors

o Agency Leases

Mortgages
Deferredtax -~
Capital debtars

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate profile”

. and currency risk
Amounts due from related undertaklngs )
Sundry debtors, prepayments and accrued income
.Loans to employees

19 Current assetinvestmerits

Bank depasits repayable wflhin ane monl.h

20 Creditors: amounts falling'due within one year

Debt

Housing and bank loans principal payabe within one year
'Debentureslslocks principal payahle wnhm oneyear

Oiscount on bond issue

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate profile
and currency risk

Finance leases

Other financial liabilitles

Interest on housing loans

Deferred government grant

. Trade creditars
Corporation tax
Other taxes
Capital development credxtar
Other creditors and accruals
Payments received on account
Prepaid rent
Social housing pension liability

" Amounts in respect of joint venture undertaking’
Recycled Capital Grant Fund (note 22)

Online annual report and accounts www.placesforpeople,co.uk/annualreport
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S Group Company
2019 2018 - 2019 2018
£m £m £m fm
13.6 160 - -
(5.4) (6.0) - -
8.2 10.0 - —
21.8 19.8 06 0.2
- 0. - -
0.2 0.2 - -
5.8 7.8 - -
70.8 507 - - -
12,0 a5 - -
- - 0.2 5.4
nr 3 4.7 1.6
.1 0. - _
156,86 - 1203 5.5 7.4
. Graup * ‘Companyi
. 2019 2018 2019 2018,
£m £m £fm £m
' 58.5 98.2 - -
. Grut-:pA Company.
2019 2018 2019 2018
£m _Em. “£m £m
128.5 102.0 — -
13.7° 224 - =
(5.2) (4.8 - -
0.3 26 - —
1.6 W} - -
138.9 124, - -
42.3 299 —_ -
17.4 122 - —
7.2 86 2.1 -0.8
1.6 5.4 ~ -
0.6 " 05 1.1 05
122.8 94,1, - —
91.8 " 108.0 45 69
14.6 $139 - - -
5.7 5.4 - -
- 0.8 - —
1.8 45 - -
11.8 108 - - —
4659 7.7 8.2
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Notes to the fmanma! statements
For the year ending 3) March 20‘9

21 Creditors:amounts falling due after more than o_ﬁeyeér’

Debt ) ]
Debenture stack/bonds .
Discount on bond issue
Housing and bank loans
Amounts due in respect of joint venture undertakmgs .
- Derivative fmanc;al instruments held to manage the lnterest rate proflle and
currency risk .
Revaluation of foreign currency denaminated debt’

Other financial liabilities
Obligalions under finance leases

. Recyc(ed Capitat Grant Fund (note 22)
Dlsposal Proceeds Fund (note 22)

‘Deferred gdvernment grant
Fair value of breakage costs
HomeBuy grant

Social hausing pensian liability

" Debt and other financial liabilities.

.Total creditors falling due after more than nne‘year

The total value of the loans subject to a guarantee is £75.0m (2018: £43.0m).’

. Alisecured loans are supparted by specific charges on the Group s housing properues and are repayable at varylng rates

of interest from, 1.09% - 18. 85%, in instalments.

- Included within housmg and bank laans s the amount of £13.4m (2018: £15.1m) whlch relates to the cast of debt issue.
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Group ' Campany

2019 2018 2019 2018 .

- Em £m £m £m

" 1,240 1.208.2 - -
(38.0) 31.0) - -
1,318.3 13719 - -
—— 0.7 — —_

39.1 619 - -
2.6 2.9 —_ -
2,563.0 26028, — -
"225.3 2261 - -
39.3 42.2 - -
0.1 0.5 . -
2847 248.8 — -
1,243.9 1,221:2 - —
S 1188 - =
45.3 '50.3 - - —
Ll .. "8.7 - and
1,665.5 1,667.6 - -
4,228.5 4,270.4 - -
-
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‘Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor ending 3! March 2'01? '

22 Recycled capltal,gra({t and dispasal' preceed; fund

Recycled capital grant fund

At Aprfl‘ .
Inputs to RCGF: Grant recycled
. Interest Accrued
Business Combinations
Recydling.of grant:  New Build
Repayment of grant ta the HE/GLA

- At 31 March

. Amaunts 3 yearé old or older where fepaymenl may be required

Disposals praceeds fund

“Att April )
Inputs to RCGF: Grant recycled

o Business Com!;inazion:s
Recycling of grant:: New Build -

At 31 March

Amounts 3 yéars ald ar alder where reéaymént rﬁay be required -

Recyc\éd capitat granit fund in resgect of Scottish sﬁﬁsidiaries

Total recycled capiia{ grénl fund

Online annual report and accounts www.placesfarpeople.co.uk/annusireport
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' Greater Londen Authority

2019 2018, 2019 . 2008
£m . £m fm = £m
327 252 187 16.8
71 © 00 5.5 S22
0.2 N RIS 0.)
- 35 . —_
(8.4) %2 (3.4) . =
- - 29 . . @4
31,8 327 15.0 157 -
42 Y I 6.5 65

Homes England

Greater London Authority

2019 - . 2018 2019 <2018 -
£m ) ~Em £m . . Em
05 - o - -
- .ol 04 . [
- .03 - —

{0.5) ’ — - —

S . 05 0.1 -~
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Notes to the financial statements
For lhe year ending 3l March 2019

23 Financlal instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies :
The Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the
establishment and.oversight of the Group's risk management framewark.
The board of directors has established the Audit & Risk Committee,
which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk
management policies. The Committee reports regularly to the board
of directors on Its activities. . )
* The Group's risk management palicies are established to identify

and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits
.and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect

" changes in market conditions and the Graup's activities. The Group,
through its training and management.standards and procedures, aims
to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment In which
all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group Audit & Risk Committee oversees how management
monitors compliance with the Group's risk management policies and -
pracedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to risks faced by the Group. The Graup Audit & Risk
Committee Is assisted in its oversight role by Business Assurance. That
team undertakes bath regular and ad hac reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, lhe results of whlch are reported to the Audit
& Risk Committee.

The Group's treasury functionis responslble for the managemem

.of funds and control of the associated risks. lts activities are governed in
accordance with board approved policy and are subject to regular audit.
The function does not operale as a profit centre.

. The net cash generated from operating activities was £157m (2018:
£154m). Bank balances and short-term investments were £125m at the
year end (2018: £171m). In addition ta this, the Group had further available
facilities of £807m (2018: £509m) and has established a Eurapean Medium
Term Note Programme of £683m (2018: £346m) for future fundraising.

Market risk* :
Markel risk cnmprnses interest rate risk, currency risk and other pnce
risk.

Interest rate risk
The Group's strategy is to contain interes rate risk within 30% of the
loan book, with the board exercising a strict control over derivative
transactions; currently 78% of debt is either held at fixed rales of interest
or hedged against adverse rate movements.
The Group manages its exposure to this risk through a mix of debt -
at fixed rates of interest and interest rate hedging techniques. )
Itis estimated that each quarier percent increase ininterest rates
would increase interest payable costs by £0.9m per annum. Due to the
low levels of cash and cash deposits held, the impact of a change in the
inlerest rate on intérest receivable is insignificant. :

- Currency risk

The Group has no overseas subsidiaries and trades only in sterllng

The Group has some debt which is denominated in foreign currency. The
Group's strategy is to mitigate currency risk arising from fareign currency
denominated debt. This is achieved using cross currencyinterestrate
swaps. Currency cash flow exposure is fully hedged, therefore a change
in the foreign currency rate would be fully offset by the swaps.

Other price risk
The Group ls impacted by general changes in pnce levels and specmcally
the Retail Price Index (RP1). This is because some paymenls to reta|| band
holders are directly linked to the RP\.

It is estimated that each quarter percent increase in RP{ woutd
Increase interest payable costs by £0,8m per annum.

127

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from exposure to therisk of aloss if a coumerparty

" fails to perform its obligations ta the Group. This relates to exposures

to financial institutions for investments and cash deposits placed, with
corporates for credit granted in the course of operations and wnh

" individuals for rent receivable and loans granted.

The Group's credit exposure is vxrtually all within the United ngdom.

Whilst the Graup's maximum exposure to credit risk is best
represented by the carrying value of the individual assets, inmost cases
the likely exposure is far less due ta the nature of the debt held, credit

_ stalus of counterparties, security hetd and other actions taken to mitigate

the risk to the Group as described below:'

— Inrespect of investments and deposits placed, the Graup has

established strict counterparty credit limits based on the overall level
of its investment activity and the credit quality of the institutions with

which investments are placed. External fund managers are employed -

to manage investment in government securities which are held as
debt reserves to credit enhance certéin loan stocks; these reserves
are held at (evels in excess of covenanted requirementsin orderta -
manage against the risk of short-term mnvamenls in financial
markets.

— Inrespect of financial derivative lnstrumenls the Group treasury

team currently performs a weekly review of the credit ratings of all
its financial institution counterparties. The credit risk on liquid funds
and derivative financial instruments is managed through the Group's
policies of manitoring counterparty exposure, concentration of credit
risk through the use of multiple counterparties and the use of
‘counterparties of investor grade quality.. ’

—. Inrespect of individuals, tenant arrears are reported each working
day and dedicaled teams are assigned to maximise debt recavery. In
addition, more than hatf of arrears are collected directly from lacal
authorities, reducing the Group's exposure to individual tenant's
credit risk.

— Loans made to customers la purchase Group developed hauses
are secured by a charge against the retevant property.

Liquidity risk and refinancing expasure )
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting
the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by

-delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to

managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as passible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidily to meet its liabilities when they fall due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceplable
losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

Interest rate risk is considered to be a key component of both market
and liquidity risk.

The Group is in compliance wuth all of its financial covenants
contained within its loan documents and loan stocks trust deeds. The
Group defines its refinancing risk as loans which do not include some

form of amortisatian or sinking fund.

The Group utilises short-term revolving bank debt as a consequence
of its sales pragramme. Currently 24.5% of debt matures withinthe next
S years, including 4.3% that matures durmg the next financiat year,

Hedging -
The Group hedges its currency risk by taking out ﬁxed/ﬁxed cross
currency interest swaps and fixed/floating crass currency interest swaps

“to fix the GBP value of both interest and principal repayable under fareign

currency denominated debt. As at 31 March 2019 the Group held cross
currency.interest rate swaps with a mark to market value of £17.8m.
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Notes to the fma nclai statements
Farthe year ending 3! March 20!?

23 Financial instruments {continued)

Aquuldl‘Y risk
The interest rate risk analysis below |scon5ldered lo be a key componenl
of the Group's hquldnty risk.

Agemg proﬁle and Interest rate risk of financial instruments ’
For each class of interest bearing financial asset and financial liabitity,
the fellowing tables indicate the range of interest rates effective al the
statement of financial position date, the carrying amount on the
slatement of financial position and the periods in which they reprice,
if earlier than the maturity date. The tables take into account rnlerest-
bearing assets and liabilities anly. .

The agelng profiles below include the impact of hedging transactions, -
all of which have cash flaw movements in line with the lmpact inthe
statement of camprehenswe income,

.Age!ng Profile and Interest Rate Risk of Financiai Assets as at 31 Marcli 2019

Fixed asset investments:
‘Fixed rate
Floating rate
Amounts due from joint venlure undertakmgs

Moartgages and loans
.Derlvatwe flnanclal instruments held to manage mterest rate rlsk

" Allfinancial assets carry a fixed interest rate }unlessolher\'uise shown,
Comparative figures as at 31 March 2018 were as follaws: .

Fixed asset investments:’
Fixed rate
Floating rate .
_ Amounls due from related undertakmgs .

.Mortgages and loans
Derivative financial |nstruments held to manage interest, rate risk

Online annual report and accounts www,placesforpeople.co.uk/annualreport

Effective

interest rate -

%

1.87%

- 0.95%-

9.03%

Effective
interest rate

%

2.62% |

0.13%
5.99%

Annual Repart

&0 -

Total Within ° 1-2. .
amotnt 1 year years
£m £m " Em
263 . - -
16.9 8.6 -
64.2 10.0
107.4 18.6 4.0
2.4 0.2 0.2
- 217 12.0 1.3
131.5 30.8 . 25
Total Within 1-2
amount 1year . years
£m " €m Em
257 - —
284 - _
437 - —
978 - ~ -
© 2.4 0.2 0.2
14.0 - 05 05
4.4 07 07
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Notes to the financial statements
For the yeor ending 31 March 2019

", Group.
2-3 . 3-4 - - 4=5 - Overs
‘years years' years years
fm . - £fm £m’ " Em
- - — 283
- - - 8.3
0.1 - 35 128.8° C 180
01 35 28.6 “50.6
6.2 . 02 . 02 . 1.4
1.2 . 2.6 . 1.8 - 3.6
15 .83 " 29.8 55.4
2-3 ©  3-4 %45 _Over5
years years years years
£m . fm £m £m
- - - 2.7
202 - - - 8.2
- S - 437 -
202 o= - 77.6
02 02 02 14
05 . - 05 . C 22 9.8 -
209 07 2.4
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Notes to the financial ‘statemehtsf

" ‘For the year ending 3! March 2019

23 Financialinétruhents(conti_nued)

Ageing Profile and Interest Rate Risk of Financial Liahilities' as at 31 March 2019

Stocks and bonds:
Fixed rate
Indexed
Discount on bond issue

Housing and other loans:
.Fixedrate
* Index linked
~ Floating

Finance leases
" Derivative financial instruments held to manage interest rate risk .

Alt financial liabilities carry.a ﬁxed-in'terest rate unless otherwise shown.

Comparative figures as at 31 March 2018 were as fallows:

Stocks and bonds:
Fixed rate
Indexed
Discount on boric! issue .

Housing and other loans:
- Fixed rate
index linked
'Floating rate

" Firiance leases :
Derivative financial instruments held to manage interest rate risk

- Effective

.interest rate
%,

£.97%

< 3.69%

4.99%

4.45%

2.82%

5.79%

Effective
interest rate

%

4.446%

377% -

5.19%
4.09%
2.21%

579%

Total

AnnualAReport

1-2

Trade'and other payables are not inctuded iri the above tables as they are non-interest bearing and are not subject to interest rate risk.

Bnrrowlngfaciiities - .

As at 31 March 2019 the Group had undrawn committed borrowing facitlitjés expiring as follows:

In one year or less, or on demand
In mare than one year but not more than two years
Inmore than two years

£111.2m of the und(awn committed borrowing facilities require fixed charge security to be place& with lenders (2018: £50.4m).
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_ Within
amount -1 year ‘years
“£m - Em £m
©'1,685.0 56.1 52.4
49.6 04 0.4
(43.2) - — -
1,661.4 58.5 '52.8
1,718.0 162.2 52,8
49.3 3.0 0.3
452.0 . 26,2 241
2,217.3 . UM 8.2
| 5385 11.5 1.5
39,5 0.3 "
4,458.7 259.7 152.5 -
“Total Within - -2
amount 1 year years
‘tm- £Em . © fm
17655 817 7.2
486 0.5 a5
(61.6) - -
1,772.5 82.2 767
1,456.4 120.2 143.0
50.2 1.4 17
- 5770 397 22.1
- 2,083.6 161.5 1668
514.1 10.4 10.4
649 19 39
4,437 256.0 " 2578

" 2019 2008 -
£m: fm
168.5 160.0

265.0 . 517 -
375.0 2971

806.5.

508.8' -
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“Notes to the financial statements

For the year ending 31 March 2015.

Group
2-3 3-4 4~5 Qver s
years years years years
Em fm £m . Em
524 52.4 13,7 "1,328.0
48.8 = - B
T - - - (43.2)
101.2 52.4 13.7 1,284.8
600 1268 55.4 1,260.2
0.3 . 03 0.3 " 45,
12,9 -107.6 48.7 - 2275
- 78.2 -232.3 104.4 1,522.8
115 1.5 1.5 481.0°
0.3 13.4 3.1 22.4 -
92 © 300.6 232.7 3,311.0
2-3 . 3-4 45 Over5
years . years years . years
CEm T Em £m " £m
4 " 524 52.4 1.428.2-
05 421 - -
_ - - (41.8)
%9 995 524 130.6
53.6 L4878 119.8 972.2
0.4 17 0.3 445
. 184.2 251 1011 2048
2382 b 2212 12215
2104 10.4 10.4 . 4621
29 3.l 189 38.2
326.4 ° 301 /3,108.4

1874 -
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Notes to the financial staterents

For the y ar endmg 31 March 2019

23 F_inéncial instruments {continued)

.Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities’

Annual Report

‘Set-out below is a comparison by catergary of carrying values and fair values of all of the Group's financial instruments. None of the imanqal assetsor

liabilities have been reclassmed during the year.

Financial assets

Fixed asset invesiments

Current asset mvestments

Cash atbank and in hand

Lang-term debtors

Mortgages and loans

Derivative financial instruments held to manage
interest raterisk *

Financial assets falling due within one year.

Financiat liabilities
Debenture stocks and bands
Discount on bond issue.

) Housing laans

" Amounts owed to joint venture undertakmgs ’
Revaluation of forefgn currency denominated debt

Derivative financial instruments held to manage
interest rate risk

Other financiat liabitities

Financial liabilities falling due within one year

Note

t4and 15

19

17
17 and IQ

17 and 18

.18

20 and 21

20and21.

20 and 21

.20 and 21

2t

- 20and 21

20and 21
20

Group

' 2019 2018

Baok value Fair value Book value Fair value
’ fm ' £m £m . £m -

270.1 273.5 " 9574 260.8

. 585 . 585 98.2 98.2

86.2 66.2 724 724

4.8 4.8 - 8.8 8.8

3.5 3.5 4.0 40

21.6 IR 87 87

" 101.0 1010 80.6 . 80.5

5257 529.1 530, 5335
1,254.7 1,369.2 " 1,230 13650

(43.2) (43.2) @Le) {%1.8)

1,446.8 1,446.8 1,473.9 14739

1.8 1.8 52 5.2

2.4 2.6 . 29 29

39.4 39.4 645 645

2781 278.1 2813 281.3

2195 219.5 167.9 1679
3,199.7 . 3,314.2 317859 3,293.4°

of the fmanc:al assets above £21.6m (2018 £8.7m)are derivative fmanc:al instruments with the remammg amounls being measured

al amortlsed cost,

Of the financial liabilities above £39.4n (2018: £64.5m) are derivative fmancnal instruments with the remammg amounts being measured

at amortised cost.

Online annual repact and accounts www.placasfaorpeaple.co.uk/annuvalréport
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Notes to the financial statements -
For the year ending 31 March 2019 ‘

Investments in debt and equity securities

* Thefair value of held-to-maturity investments is determmed by reference
'to their quoted bid price at the statement of financial position date. The
fair value of held-to-matursty investments after lnmal recognitianis
determmed for. dlsclosure purposes only

Financial assets falling due wnhm one year, leng-term debtors
and mortgages

The fair value of these assets is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the statement of
financial position date if the effect is material. :

Financial liahilities ' .

The fair value of trade and other payables is estimated as the present
value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at
the statement of ﬁnancial position date if the effect is material.

Cash at bank and in hand

The fair value of cash is estimated as its carrying amuunl where the
cashis repayable on demand. Where itis not repayable on demand then
the fair value is estimated at the present value of future cash ftows,
. discounted at the market rate of interest at the staternent of financial
positian ‘date. :

133,

. Interést-bearing bnrrowmgs

Fair value is calculated based on the present 'value of future prinapal
and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the
statement of financial position date.

Derivative financial mstruments

" Thefair value of interest rate swaps is based on broker quotes Those

quates are tested for reasonableness by discounting estimated future
cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each contract and using

" market interest rates for a similar instrument at the measurement date.

Fair value h:erarchy

The measurement of fair value for ﬁnancuat instruments has been done

. using a level 2- valuation technique. The definition of thistechnique per
the standard is a valuation using inputs other than quoted market prices

included within level 1 that are observable far the. asset ar liabiity, either
directly orindirectly. . .
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Notes to the financial statements
_ For the year ending 31 March 2017 V

-_.24 Pension obhgatnons

Annual Report .

The penslon casts for Places for People Group relale to lhlrleen schemes of which employees and former employees are members

Details of each scheme are set out helow. °

Group defined benefit scheme liabilities

The Social Housing Pension Schenfe "SHPS®

The Scottish Hausing Assaciations’ Pension Schemes 'SHAPS“

Places for People Group Retirement Benefit Scheme “PFP Group®

PFPL (Holdings) Limited *PFPL (Holdings)" .

Residential Management Group section of the Citrus Pension Plan "RMG"
Cambridgeshire County Council Pension Fund "CCCPF"

_The Places for Peaple Group Retirement Banefit Schemae
The Graup operates a defined benefit pension arrangement called the
Places for People Group Retirement Benefit Scheme.

This scheme is aperated by the Group and is an independently

- administered defined benefit scheme based on final pensionable salary.

The scheme was closed to new members as at | September 2004 and
was closed ta future accrual in October 2010. The most recent formal
actuarial valuation-was completed as at 31 March 2018 and has been
updated by the independent actuary to take account of the.requirements
of FRS 102. As part of the actuarial valuations as at 31 March 2018, the
Group agreed a schedule of contributions which included the Group

" paying £16.3m in March 2019 and further annual contributions of ESm

"between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2025. The Group expects to contribute’

£5m to the scheme during the yearto 31 March 2020.

* The tunding planiis for the Scheme 1o hold assets equal to the value
of the benefits earned by emplayees, based on a set of assumplions:
used for funding the Scheme. The funding assumptions differ from the

_assumptians used to calculate the figures for these accounts, and
therefore produce different results, If there is a shortfall against this-
{funding plan, then the Company and Trustee agree on deficit contributions
to meet this deficit over a period. .

The Assaciation has considered the |mpl|catlons of the High Court

-ruling in the Lloyds Bank Group Pensian Trustees case an the requirement
ta equalise pensions in respect of Guaranteed Minimum Pensians (GMP),
This has resulted in a £0.2m increase in pension obligation which has been
recagnised as a past service cost. Any future clarifications to GMP leading
"ta achange in financial assumptions are expected to be recagnisedin equity.

The mortality assumption used at 3t March 2019is 105% S2PA
‘CMI_2019 core projections with a leng-term rate of improvement of 1,0%,
The mortality assumption used at 31 March 2018 was 115% S2PA
CMI_2017 care projections with a long-term rate of improvement of 1.0%.
Based on these assumptions, a male currently aged 40 years old has a life

-expectancy of 25.4 years (2018: 25.2 years), a female currently aged
40 years old has a life expectancy of 27.5 years (2018: 27.2 years), a male
currently age 40 years old will expect to have a life expectancy of
26.6 years (2018: 26.4 years) when they reach age 60 and a female
currently aged 40 years old will expect to.have alife expectancy of
28.8 years (2018: 28.6 years) when they reach age 60

The Places for People Leisure Gmup Retirement Benefit
Scheme

PFPL (Holdings) Limited operates adefined beneﬁl scheme The assels
of the scheme are held in a separately administered fund and the plan
is administered by an independent trustee bady who are responsible
for ensuring that the scheme is sufficwnlly funded to meet current and
future abligations.

. Theliabilitiés have been calculated based on the results of the full -
Scheme Funding Assessment as of 30 April 2016, updated t6 31 March
2019, allowing for additional benefit accrual and benefits paid. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost
were measured using the projected unit credit methad. -

Online annual report and accou}\ls www.placesfnrpeaple.cn.uklannueireport ;

2019 . 2018

i £m ' fm -
A .oa
2.9 -
0.1 - 8.7
03 03 .
0.6 0.4

. 185 . 9.1
22.1 165

- PFPL (Hotdings) Limited has agreed a funding pian with the Trustees

* of the scheme, whereby ordinary contributions are made into the Scheme

based on a percentage of active employees’ salary. Additional
contributions are agreed wnh the Trustees to reduce the funding deﬁcn
where necessary.

- The mortality assumption used at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018

.15 90% of S2PxA CMI_2017 core improvements [1.25% p. a long-term

rate]. Based an these assumptions; a male currently aged 65 years old
has a life expectancy of 22.8 years (2018: 22.7 years), a female currently
aged 45 years atd has a lIfe expectancy of 24.7 years (2018: 24:6 years),a’
male currently aged 45 years old has a life expectancy of 44.2 years (2018:
44.1 years) and a female currently aged 45 years old has 3 life expectancy

af 46.2 years (2018: 4.2 years).

" Residential Management Group Limited Retirement"Benefit

Scheme .
Residential Management Group Limited aperales adefined benefit penswn
scheme, the Residential Management Graup section of the Citrus Pensian

* Plan (“Citrus™), with assets held in separately administered funds. The

scheme provides retirement benefits on the basis of members' final salary,
An actuarial valuation of the RMG scheme was carried out as'at
31 March 2017, Increase‘s inlongevity improvements seen in recent years
will begin'to tail off over the next 10-20 yéars and are assumed to be in line
with the Cantinuous Mortalily Investigation madel used at the latest formal
valuation. Over the long-term, longevity improvements wilt stabilise at
1.5% p.a. for males and females. The mortality assumption used-at 31
March 2018 is 90% of S2PxA CMI_2014 core impravements (1.25% p. a ldng-
term rate). The mortality assumption used at 31 March 2017 is 90% aof

- S2PxA CM1_-2014 core improvements [1.25% p. along-term rate}. Based
" on these assumptions, a male currently aged 45 years old has alife -

expectancy of 22.7 years (2018: 22.6 years), a female currently aged
45 years old has alife expectancy of 24.8 years (2018: 24.7 years), amale
currently aged 45 years old has a life expectancy of 45.3 years (2018:

45.2 years) and a female currently aged 45 years old has a life expectancy

of 47.0years (2018: 47.0 years)

CambridgeshireCoun(y Council Penslon Fund :
The CCCPF is a multi-employer scheme administered by Cambridgeshire
County Cauncil under the regulations governing the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS), a defined benefit scheme: Triennial actuarial
valuations of the pension scheme are perfarmed by anindependent,
prafessionally qualified actuary using the projected unit method. The
latest triennial actuarial valuation was'at 31 March 2016, The CCCPF.
is open to the employees of Chorus Homes Group Limited (farmerly
Luminus Graup Limited). ;

. The mortality assumption used at 31 March 20]9 is that a male

- currently aged 65 yearsold has a life expéctancy of 22,4 years (2018: 22.4
* years), a female currently aged 45 years old has a life expectancy of 24.4

years (2018: 24.4 years), a male currently aged 45 years old has a life
expectancy of 44.0 years (2018: 44.0 years) and a female currently aged
45 years ald has alife expeclancy of 46.3years (2018: 44.3 years).
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Soclal Housing Pension Scheme

Places for People Homes Limited, Cotman Housing Association Limited
and Derwent Housing Association Limited participate in the Social
Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS), a multi-employer scheme which

_ provides benefits to nan-associated employers.

SHPS is a defined benefit scheme in the UK and is subject to the
funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into
force on 30 December 2005, This, together with documents issued by
the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standardsissued by the
Financial Reporting Council, set out the framewaork for funding deﬁned
benefit occupaticnal pension schemes in the UK,

The last triennial valuation of the scheme for funding purposes was
carried out as at 30 September 2017. This valuation revealed a deficit of
£1,522m. Arecovery plan has béen put in place with'the aim of removmg
this deficit by 30 September 2026,

SHPS is classified as a "last-man standing arrangemenl Therefare
the company is polenllally liable far other participating employers”

" -abligations if those employers are unabte to meet their.share of the
scheme deficit fotllowing withdrawal from the scheme, Participating
emplayers are legally required to meet their share of the' scheme deficit .

"+ onanannuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme.

Far financial years ending on or before 28 February 2019, it has nat

been possible for the company to obtain sufficient information to enable .

it to account for the Scheme as a defined benefit scheme, therefore the’
Group has previously accounted for SHPS as a defined conltribution
scheme. For financial years ending on or after 31 March 2019, itis now
possible to obtain sufficient Information to enable the company to account
for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme. For accounting purposes,
two actuarial valuations for the scheme were carried out with effective
dates of 31 March 2018 and 30 September 2018. The liability figures from
each valuation are rolted forward to the relevant accounting dates; if

- applicable, and are used in conjunction with the company's fair share of .
the scheme's total assets to calculate the company's net deﬁcnl or surplus
at the accounting penod start and end dates.

" The'martality assumption used at-31 March 2019 is thatamale -
currently aged 65 years old has a life expectancy of 21.8 years, a female
currently aged 65 years old has alife expectancy of 23,5 years, a male
_currently aged 45 years old has a life expectaricy of 45.0 years and a
female currently aged 45 years old has alife expectancy of 48,2 years,

The major assumptions used by the actuaries of each scheme were:

SHPS
%
Discount rate 2.53
Rate of RPlinflation 3.24
Rate of increase iri salanes 3.24 '
Raté-of increase in pension paymenls nla
Rate of CPlinflation . nfa
) %
Discount rate P nfa
Rate of RPlinflalion n/a
Rate of increase in salaries nfa
Rate of increase in pension payments . n/a
Rate of CPl inflation o ‘nfa

! RPI max 5% pa/ RPI:max 2:5%pa’
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Scottish Housing Associations’ Pension Scheme

. Places for People Scotland Limited and Castle Rack Edinvar Housing
Assaciation Limited partici;iate in the Scottish Housing Associations'
Pensian Scheme (SHAPS), a multi-employer scheme which provides’
benefits to non-associated employers,

SHAPS is a defined benefit scheme in the UK and is subjecl to lhe
funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into
force on 30 December 2005, This, together with documents issued by
the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the
Financial Reporting Council, set out the framewaork far funding defined
benefit accupatianal pension schemes in the UK,

The last triennial valuation of the scheme fer funding purposes was
carried out as at 30 September 2015. This valuation revealed a deficit of
£198m. A recovery plan has been put in place to eliminate the deficit which
runs ta 28 February 2022 for the majority of employers although certain

" employers have different arrangements. ;
" SHAPSis classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement", Therefore

" the company is potentially liable for other participating employers'
obligations if thase employers are unable ta meet their share of the scheme
deficit fallowing withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are
legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit an an annuity
purchase basis-on withdrawal from the scheme.

For financial years ending on or before 28 February 2019, it had not
been possible for the company to obtain sufficient infarmation Lo enable it

to account for the Scheme as a defined benefil scheme, therefore the Group -

has prewously accounted far SHAPS as a defined cantribution scheme. For
financial years ending on or after 31 March 2019, it Is now possible to obtain
sufficient information to enable the company to account far the scheme as a
defined benefit scheme. Far accounting purposes, two actuarial valuations
for the scheme were carried out with effective dates of 31 March 2018 and
30 September 2018, The liability figures from each valuation are rolled

" forward ta the relevant accounting dates, if applicable, and are used in
canjunction with the company s fair share of the scheme's tatal assets to
calculate the company's nel deficit or surplus at the accounting period start
and end dates.

The mortality. assumpllon used al 31 March 2019 is that a male
currently aged 65 years old has a life expectancy of 21.8 years, a female
currently aged 5 years old has a life expectancy of 23,5 years, a male
currently aged 45 years old has a life expectancy of 45.0 years and a female
currently aged 45 years old has a life expectancy of 48.2 years.

PFPL

_SHAPS PFP Group (Holdings) RMG CCCPF
‘ Co L 2019
% % % % C %
"2.50 2,50. 2.45 2.40 2,40
328 3.20 3.35 3.45 n/a

" 3,28 .3,10/2.10" 3.35 2.45 2.80
n/a nfa 2.35 n/a 2,50
nla. n/a 2.35° 2.45 n/a

: : - A 2018

% . % % %o %

" nfa oam © 240 " 265 <270
nfa 3.10 3.20 3.35 nfa
nfa 3.00/2.10' ©3.20 235 2.70
n/a n/a 2,20 n/a 2.40
n/a - 2.20 2.35 nfa

-nfa

A
i

N

1BGsY dilimelsis
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24 Pension obligations (continued)

The major qéle_gories of assets as a percentage of total assets are as follows:

: © Annual heporl

Deficit in the scherne S : =

2019 .
SN ~ PFPL B C
* SHPS SHAPS PFP Group (Holdings) RMG CCCPF
% % . % D% % - %
Diversified growth funds, hedge fundsand - )
structure funds . 1.6 1.6 30 18.4 21.7 -
Equmes Lo . 14.8 16.8 - 13.0 68.2 19.4 © 76.0.
Gitts * o A - - = 3.7 . 9.1 12.0
Liability driven investments - T - 366 34,6 34.0 - - -
" Absolutereturnbonds . . - .87 8.7 . 6,0 - - -
Cﬁrporate bands ) 85 4.5 - 3.9 39.3 -
Cash and cash équivalents . . - - 1.0 1.6 1.3 1.0.
Other fixed interest - . ST 3.6 3.4 - - - -
" Insurance linked securities - - 59 5.9 - - .75 - ’ .
Directlending ) . 1.3 1.3 - - 1.6 =~
* Property ~ S 9.0 9.0 = 4.2 - 11.0%
. 2018
S "PFPL S A
. SHPS' . SHAPS PFPGroup (Holdings) RMQ . CCCPF
% % % % ) %
- Diversified growth funds, hedge funds and . . :
structure funds . . - - 41.0 17.2" 317 -
Equities . - . - S = - 14.0 72.7 245 77.0
- Gilts L _ - - - 1.6 87. 13.0
Liability driven investments - S - - 34.0 - - -
Absolute refurn bonds - -t - - - 7.0 — - —
Corporatebonds . . = - - 1.3 .30.% -
Cashandcashequivalents = - T - - 2.0 1.0 5.0 3.0
Other fixed interest A . - - - 39 - -
" Insurance linked securities ° - - - — — - —
Directlending - ' o ) e — — - - =
Property - - L o - - - 23 - 7.0
Amaunts recognised In the Statement of Financial Position ) T .
. ) s ) Value at 3) March 2019
: A PFPL’ ‘ )
SHPS SHAPS PFPGroup (Haldings) RMG _CCCPF . Total
©Em Em - Em “Em - . £m © Em. - Em
Fair value of assets - ‘ : © 335 YA 229.3 . 5.6 . 5.4 24.8 325.9 -
"Present value of the scheme's liabilities . ) . {(41.2)° - (30.0) (229.4) - " {5.9) (6.2) . {(3%5.3) (348.0) -
Deficit in the scheme _ e (29) (@) © (0.3) (0.6) (0.5 @21 -
: Value at 31 March 2018
a PFPL o
SHPS SHAPS PFPGroup (Holdings) - RMG CCCPF . Total
£m £m . Em Em - _Em £m. ~ Em
~ Fairvalue ofassels : : L= - 209.6 5.1 5.3 231 243.1
-,Presenlvalueoflheschemesllabllmes ) — — - {216.3) (5.4) (5.7 (32.2) . (259.4)
- (67) ©.3) (0.4) : @n - (165). -

Qnline annual report and accounts WWw.placevsfdrpen'ple.cn.uk/annualrepnﬂ
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. 3
Amodnts recognised in the Staieinenl of Comprehenéive Incﬁme ) )
' . ) - Year ending 31 March 2019
o ' PFPL . .
. SHPS  SHAPS PFP Group . {Holdings) . = RMG CCCPF Tatatl
, , . Em° . €m £Em - £m- £m eém  Em
Current service cost S S g ©.1) ©) (0.4 ©.8)
Past service costs . . . g - - 02 . 7 - - - (0.2)

. Arﬁodntchargedinarrivingaldperaling profit C - ol (0.2) (2 ) IR ( K ) {0.4) . (0.8)
Expected return on plan assels S 0.7 . 5.8 oo 01 0.6 8.0
Interest on scheme liabilities - . (1.1) © o (0.8) (5.7) (0.1) {0.1). ©(0.9) (8.7)
Amount charged/(credited) to other finance costs ___ (0.2) ©n @) - - . (0.3) (0.7)

Total charged to the statement ' o ©.2) ) ’ (0.3) ©.1) E .((; M ©.7) : (1'5) . \\
of comprehensive income o . = - . - . L= . = -?
. ; . &
. Year ending 31 March 2018 | &
L o . PFPL . = e
SHPS SHAPS  PFPGroup - (Holdings) . RMG - CCCPF - . Tatal =
Em . fm . fm - " Em fm . Em gm | 2
Current serviég\cost . o - - '. - - - e - 0.2 - (0.3)
Loss on curtailments and settlements o - — — = X)) - T 0.)
Amount charged'in arriving at operating profit, 4 - - - - (0.) 03 = - (0.4)
Expecledreturnonplanassets o .- L= - 58 ’ 0‘.'1 0.} - - 8.0
Interest on scheme liabilities o ) - = 6.0 . 0.n 0.1) - (6.2)
Amount charged/(credited) to other finance coslé, = — . (0.2)4 — . - ’ — {0.2)
Total charged to the statement L. T : . » ] :
of comprehensive income o - - 0.2) o.n 0.3 - (0.8}
' Amounts recognised in Other Coniprehensivg Income - '
= . Year ending 31 March 2019
: = © PFPL : o :
SHPS  SHAPS PFPGroup (Holdings) RMG CCCPF. " Total
£m Em - £m " fm - Em - £m - Em
Initialrecognitiohof'mljl(i-e_mployerdeﬁned . ) : ) - .
benefit scheme . . LBy 0.7) - = - - (40)
. Actuarial gain/(loss) inpension scheme . . - 0.7 0.7 (12.8) 7 (0.1) {0.3) (1.6) (13.4)
! - : R i . o T Year ending 31 March 2018
) S PFPL - : . .
SHPS SHAPS  PFPGroup,  (Holdings) - RMG- = CCCPF Total
“£m £m £Em . E£m fm . €m . Em’
Actuarial gain/(loss) in pension scheme : - L= LBy - 0.1 (0.2) - . (3.4)
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24 Pension obligations (céntihugd) B o ) . o o : ) . :
The change in the fair value of the plan assets isAanaly;ed as fallows: : : - i
' Year ending 31 March 2019

' S © . PFPL

SHPS - SHAPS PFP Group (Holdings) RMG CCCPF Total
£m Em £Em £m £m £m " Em
Asat 1 April 2018 , : - 209.6 5.1 5.3 230 2434
Initial recognition of multi-employer . ) B - L
defined benefit scheme : 21 . 25.5 - - - 576
Interestonplanassets =~ . o .09 07 - 5.6 0.1 C01) 0.6 8.0
Company contributions _ : .0 709 19.86 - 02 . 02 ' 0% = 228
Conlribution'bys'cheme’parlicipa'nls . T - - E . L - 0.1 0.1 -
Benefits paid ’ (1.1) T (0.7, (8.9) (.0 - (o.1) - (08  (1.7)
Return on assets less interest o 0.6 67 . 3.4 .03 Loat 0.9 - 4,0
As at 31 March 2019 - " © 335 271 2293 5.6 5.6 24,8 3259
i ’ PFPL . . .
SHPS SHAPS = PFP Group - (Holdings) ~ . BMG .. CCCPF Tolal
. Em Em . Em €Em . Em o Em . Em
Actual relurn on scheme assetsforyear endlng e - o . .
3 March 2019 ) - 1.4 1.4 - 9.0 0.4 : 0.2 - - 1.5 139
Actualrelurnonschemeasselsforyearendmg _ o o . s
31 March 2018 . ‘ ) ) - - = C 49 . 0.2 : 0.1} - " .50
The change in the present value of the defined benofit ohliga’tl;ons is analysed as follows:
- . PFPL A
SHPS SHAPS PFP Group . (Holdings) RMG CF:CPF . . Tatal -
. © L Em Em Em £m . Em . £m . :Em
Asatl Aprit2018 ' = - 2163 54 . 87 322 2598
Initial recognition of multi- employer . . . . . . ‘ T co . .
defined benfit scheme . 4_1.10 29.8 T T . . 2
. Current service costs ’ : . . - B - - © 0 .01 0.4 - 0.8
Pastservice costs - - - = 0.2 - - - 0.2
Conlnbuhonbyschemepartmpanls ) _ o - o= — - .- 04 © 0
~Interestcosts . . . .1 0.8 . 5.7 o1 (18 I X 87 .
Benefits paid . ’ {1.1) 0.7y - - (8.9) (0.1) (.1) (0.8) (11.7)
) Actuarlal(gams)/lossesfromchang.es o (@.6) (-0-5) . a9 - T . _ 99
to demagraphic assumptions . ; : C
"Act.uana!losses frorp changes _ - Y .3 9.8 L . 2B 154
ta financial assumptions . . . 5 .
Actuarial (gain)/loss an abligation - - {1.8) (0.9) (2.8) : 0.4 0.4 - (4.0)
" As at 31 March 2019 . : : a2 300 - 229.4 59 . 62 35.3 348.0
_ Online annual report and accounts www.placesforpeople.co.uk/annuslreport -
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25 Capital commitments

Capital expendlture that has been authorised and contracted for but has not been .

provided for in the financial statements

B Capit'al exnéndllure that has been au_lhoriséd‘by the board of directoi’s

and note 23 of lhese flnanc;al slatements.

are set out below

In one year orless

In one year or more but less than five years

In more than'five years

C13%
Group . Company
© 2019 2018 2019 2018
Em . £m’ ©Em £m
5.7 1498 - -
~ 1,4085 - 1582.3 . — -
The above commitments wilt be financed in accordance with (he (reasury management pohcywhlch is detailed in the operating.review
The commilments under non-cancellab(e operallng leases for the foﬂowmg year, ana(ysed accordmg ta the penod in whrch eachlease exprres
; Group KRR Company .
B - Motor : Motor Motor Mator
Land and vehicles& Landand . vehicles & vehicles & vehicles &
buildings equipment - buildings equipment equipment . equipment-
2019 .2019 . 2018 ’ 2018 2019 2018
£m " Em " Em £m £m Emi
3.9 - a4 39 Y 0.2 0
10.1 43 10.0 . 50 0.2 0.2.
15.7 L= 163 L — - -
297 02 88" 0.4 03 -

26 Contingent liabilities

7.7

Thé Group is party to certain legal actions arising in the ordinary course of businessA While the ouicome of these cases is uncertain, the directors believe,
on the basis of advice received, thal na matenal lossto the Group will occur. Hawng made due enquiries the directors are not aware of any furlher

. conungenl lishilities.

27 Re!ated-party'transactioné

Under Sectian-33 of FRS 102 defined benefit pension schemes are cansidered 1o be related parties. Employees of the Group and its subsidiaries-
are members of the fallowing defined benefit schemes: The Social Hausing Pension Scheme, The Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme,
The Places far Peaple Group Retirement Benefit Scheme, The PFPL (Holdings) Limited scheme, the Residential Management Group section of the
Citrus Pension Plan and the Cambndgeshlre County Council Lacal Government Pension Scheme Detaits of transactlons with the schemes are

. dlsclosed in no(e 24.

N

- lodey

uodaga':u;:u;an-:;g/(\.
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* For the year ending 31 March 2012

28 Disclosure of Group under'takirigs

Annual Repart

"The following enmles are related undertakmgs of the Places for People Group and unless staled olherwlse are incarparated i in the UK.

The reglstered ofhce address for each entity is 80 Cheapsnde London EC2V 8EE; untess stated olherW|se

Name

Allenbuild Limited
Allenbuild (South East) Limited
. Blueroom Properties Limited

Braintree District Leisure Community Assaciation Ltd*

Brio Care Limited
Brio Care Landale Limited' -
Brio Retirement Living (Apptegreen) Limited
Brio Retirement Living (Barton Marina) Limited
Bria Retirement Living (Chapeiton) Limited’
Brio Retirement Living (Chester) Limited
Brio Retirement Living (Chapelton Midco) Limited
Brio Retirement Living (Holdings) Limited-
Brio Retirement Living (JV) Limited
Brio Retirement Living (Midco) Limited
Brio Retirement Living (Poundbury) Limited
" Brio Retirement Living (Sole Risk) Limited
- Brio Retirement Living (Staw onthe Wald) Limited’

Castle Rock Edinvar Housmg Assadiation lelled"" '

Centro Place Investments Limited?
Centro Place Management Limited?
Chorus Homes Bevelopments Limited
Chorus Homes Finance Limited**
Chorus Homes Group Limited**’
Chorus Homes Limited** :
Christchurch Estates Llrmled-”
CPM Asset Management (Northern) L|m|tedJ
Cotman Housing Association Limited***
Cornerstonezed Plymouth Limited

_Curzon Street Management Limited®
Derwent Community Housing Asscciation Limit:ed'"‘
Derwent Facilities Management Limited?
Derwent Housing Association Limited***

East Wick and Sweetwater Management Company Limited

Emblem Homes Limited

F &S Property Management Limited®

Girlings Retirement Rentals Limited

Grass Fine? . '

Gross Fine (Holdings) Limited®

Grass Fine Management Limited’

Gross Fine Services Limited® )

Hertford Company Secretaries Limited®

HNJV Limited '

Hope Social Enterprises Limited

JVCO Limited

Leisure & Community Parlnersh:p L:mlted“
_ Lothian Housing Assaciation Limited'

Matilda's Academy Limited ..

Matilda's Blanket Limited - - -

Matilda's Planet Group Limited '

Matilda’s Planet Manufacturing Limited

Matilda's Radiant Heating Limited

Matitda's Warm Homes Limited

. Online annual report and accounts www.placesforpeople.co.uk/annualreport

Class of share held

Ordinary A* & B*
Ordinary*

* ‘Ordinary/Preference*

N/A

Ordinary**
Ordinary*
Ordinary A* & 8%

- Ordinary*

Ordinary*

* Ordinary*

Ordinary*
Ordinary A', B&C

Ordinary*

Ordinary*
QOrdinary*
Ordinary A* & B*
Ordinary* -

National/Cammunity

Ordinary*
Ordinary* )
Ordinary*/Preference*

" N/A

N/A
Ordinary* .
Ordinary*

_ Ordinary*

National/Community
Ordinary A* & B*
Ordinary* '
Ordinary*’

Ordinary*

A ‘Ordinary
" Qrdinary _
"Ordinary*/Preference”

Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary A*&B* -
Ordinary*
Ordinary*

. Ordinary*

Ordinary*

Qrdinary*/Preference*

Ordinary*

- Ordinary/Preference*

N/A .
Ordinary*

_ Ordinary*

QOrdinary*

Ordinary®*, Ordinary A* & B*

Ordinary*
Ordinary A* & 8*
Ordinary*

Propol-ijon of shares held -

100%
100%
100%
N/A

~ 100%

100%
78%
100%
100%
160%

100%

68%

100%
100%
100%
100%

" 100%
'100% of Nationat s/halding

100% . .

100%

100%

N

N/A

100%

160%

100% -

1009 of National s/holdlng
100%

100%

100%

- 100%

100%
100%
100%;
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

/A

160%
100%
100%
75%
100%
9%%
75%
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28 Disclosure of Group undertakings {continued)

Name

Matildasplanet Houses Limited.
Matildasplanet Housing Solutions Limited
Matitdasplanet Thermal Systems Limited )
MDH (Group)‘Limited‘

Millwood Contracts Limited* -

- Millwood Designer Homes Limited?
Millwood Designer Hames Kent Ltd*
Millwood Designer Homes (Southern) Limilad‘

* " Minton Healthcare (Buckingham) annted

ModularWise Limited

Oak Foundation®

Officers Field Development Limited

Osterna Limiteds '

PfP Capital Limited

P(P Capital Services Limited

PFP Casec 2 Limited

PFP-Cosec 4 Limited

PFPC 1 GP Limited

. PEPC1.LP+*»

" PFPC Retirement 1 Limited
‘PFPC MMR GP Limited'
PFPCMMR 1 LP!
PFPESCO | Limited
PFPL Developments Limited
PFPL (Holdings) Limited
_ PFPL Projects (Epping) Ltd
PFPL Projects (Hinckley) Ltd
PFPL Prajects {Gospart) Ltd -
PFPL Projects (Sandwetl) Ltd .
PFPL Projects (Sparkhill) Ltd
PFPL Projects (Surrey Heath) Ltd -
- PFPL Projects (Wyre Forest) ud
PEP123 Limited
PFP-Igloo (General Partner) Limited
PFP- _Igloo,L|m|ted Partneiship*****
PFP-Igloo Nominees Limited
PFP Palish Real Estate Investment LP*****
PFP Retirement lh_vestment Lptee
PFP PRS Investment LP*****
PFP SW Avon Limited .
Places Developments (Holdings) Limited
Place Builders Limited
Place Investments Limited
‘Placeford Properties LLP
Places Academy Limited
Places Development Services Limited
. Places Finance Limited o
Places for People Arrangements 1 Limited
Places for People Capital Markets Plc
. Places for People Developments Limited
Places for Peaple Develapments (PRS) Limited
Places for People Finance plc
Places for People Fihancial Services L|m|ted
Places for Peaple Green Services Limited
Places for Peaple Homes Limited*** A
Places for Pegple Internatianal Limited
" Places for Peaple Investments Limited

Class of share hetd

Oxjdinary‘
Ordinary*
Ordinary*

_OnfnaryA" 8% C, D E* & F'

Ordinary*
Ordinary A* & B*
Ordinary*
Ordinary’

. Ordinary®
" Ordinary*

NA )
Ordinary*/Ordinary A*
Ordinary* .
Ordinary/Preference’
Ordinary*

* Ordinary

Ordinary*
Ordinary*.
N/A

. Ordina}y' :

Ordinary*
NA
Ordinary .
Ordinary* -
Ordinary*

_ Ordinary*

Ordinary*

_ Ordipary*
Ordinary*

Ordinary*

“Ordinary*
. Ordinary*

Qrdinary*
Ordinary*
N/A

“Qrdinary*

N/A

NA

NA
Ordinary*

Ordinary®, drdinary B & Preference*
" Qrdinary* . '

Ordinary - ..
NA
Ordinary*’
Ordinary*

Ordinary*

Ordinary

Ordiriary .
Ordinary*/Preference*
Ordinary
Ordinary"
Qrdinary/Preference”
Ordinary*

Ordinary

Ordinary*

Ordinary

~ .

Proportion of shares held

106%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

-100% -

1060%

T NA
©100%

" 100%

- 100%

100%

© 100%

160%
100%
NA
100%
100%
NA
100%
100% -
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
N/A
100%

N/A.

N/A

N/A -
100%
100%
100%
100%
N/A
100%
100% - .

. 100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

'100%

100%
100%
100% -

© 100%

100%
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Notes to the financial statemen‘ts

" Forthe year endin g 31 March 2019
. .

28 Disclosure of Group underta kings (continued)
‘Subsidiaries

Name

Places for Peaple Landscapes Limited
Places for People Leisure Community Association L|m|led"

. " Places for People Leisure Limited**

Places far Pedple Leisure Management Limited
. Places for People Leisure Partnerships** .
Pléces for People Living Plus Limited***
.- Places for Peaple Pension Car Limited
Places for Peaple Pension Trustee Limited
P}aces for Pebple Placemaking Lifnite,d '
Places for Peaple Placemaking & Regeneration Limited
Places for Peaple Retirement Limited ’
Places for People Retirement (Slowj f.imited
Places for Peaple Scotland Limited'
Places for People Scotland — Care and Suppart lelted
Places for People Scotland{GP) Limited'
Places tar People Scottish Limited Partnership****!
Places far Peaple SPV | Limited**®
Places for People SPV 2 Limited**
Places for People Treasury plc
Places far Peaple Treasury Services Limited
Places for People Ventures Limited
Places for People Ventures Operatians L|m|ted
Places Homes Limited
Places Leisure Limited
Places Living Plus Limited -
Places Mahagement Limited
Places Plus Limited )
Places Residential Limited
Places Retiremeql Limited
Places Services Limited
Places Student Living Limited
Places Students Limited ]
Residential Management Group Limited?
Residential Management Graup Scotland Limited”
Residentiat Management Property l.lmlledJ
Retirement Rentals Limited
Retirement Rentals Nominee Company 1 Limited
RMG Asset Management Limited?
RMG Client Services Limited®
Sam Janes (Clubs) Limited
Shrubhilt investments Limited'
Stow Care Viltage LLP
The Engine Yard Edinburgh Ltd
The Ferry Project**
The Places Foundation**
Tila Commerecial Limited _
Touchstone Corporate Property Services Limited
Upper Strand Develapments Limited'
Urban Matrix (Ditton) LLP
Wood Carewell Managements Limited’
. Wood Group Trustees Limited’
Wood Management Trustees Limited?
Wood Managements Limited® .
Wood Trustees Limited®
ZeroC Acheson Consortium Limited

Online annual report and aceounts www.placesforpeople.co.uk/
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epart

Class of share held

" Ordinary*

N/A
N/A
Ordinary*
N/A

* Ordinary

Ordinary/Preference® -
Ordinary*

Ordinary -

Ordinary* -
Ordinary*/Preference*
Ordinary*

' Ordinary A*/Preference*

Ordinary*-
Ordinary*
N/A
N/A
N/A

. Ordinary

Ordinary i
Ordinary/Preference®

Ordinary*/Preference*
_-Ordinary

‘Ordinary*
* Ordinary .

Ordinary*
Ordinary*

" Ordinary*
' Ordinary*

Ordinary* ~.
Ordinary*

Ordinéky' B
Ordinary* & Ordinary 8
Ordinary*

* Ordinary*

Ordinary*
Ordinary*

~ Ordinary*

Ordinary* .

" Ordinary*’

Ordinary* )
N/A ) .

Ordinary & Ordinary C*

N/A

N/A

Ordinary*

Ordinary* & Ordinary B
Ordinafy'/Preference‘
N/A

" Ordinary*

Ordinary*

Ordinary*, Ordinary A%, B‘ &C*
" . Ordinary*
Ordinary* & Ordinary Deferred*

Qrdinary*

' AnnualReport

Propartion of shares held

100%
N/A
N/

100%
N/A
100%
100%
100% -
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100% -
100%

TN/

N/A

" N/A

100%
100%6

100%

100% '
1060% .

. 100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

 100%
.100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
N/A -
99%

N/A

“N/A

100%
95% .
100%
N/A
100%

" 100%

100%.
100%.
100%
100%
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28 Disclosure of Group uﬁde_rtaklngs (coﬁtjnued)

. Subsidiaries ';
Name
ZeroC Holdings Limited

ZeroC Ventures Limited
ZeroC Group (2008) Limited

Class of sh'ai'_e held

Ordinary* & Ordmary A’

o Ordinary*

Ordinary*, Ordinary A* & B*

-143

Proportion of‘sharebs held. -‘

100%
100%
100%

1 Hay Avenue, Edlnburgh EH16 4RW

N e A N -

Unit 6, 95 Morrnson Street, Glasgow, G5 8BE

t Centro Place, Pride Park; Derby, England, DE24 8RF
RMG House, Essex Road, Hoddesdon, Hertfardshire, EN11 0DR -
* & Alexander Grave, Kings Hill, West Malling, England, MEI9 4XR
Chelford House, Gadbrook Park, Nbr\hwuch ‘Cheshire, England, CW9 7LN
4 The Pavilions; Portway, Prestan, Lancashire, United Kingdom, PR2 2YB

‘ Shares held by other Group entities but ullimately hel& by the Group .
**  Acompany limited by guarantee without any share capital . .
***  Aregistered sociely registered under the Co-operative & Commumly Benefit Societies Act 2034, Through separate written agreements, .

the Group ultimately exercises control over the functions and operatlons of these enutles

b AScoulshllm«ted partnershlp
i Ahmlled parlnershrp

The followmg joint venture arrangements are related undertakings of the Places for People Group and unless stated otherwise, are lncorporated in the
. UK, Theregistered ofﬁce address for each entity is 80 Cheapside, London, EC2V 4EE, unless szaled atherwise.

Joint Venture arrangements

" Name o

" Abode Modular Living LLP
Alumno Group Limited**** -
Applegreen JV Midco LLP
Applegreen Retirement Living e
Applegreen Retirement Living (Nominee) L|mned )
Apptegreen Retirement Living (Stafford Road) LLP
Bigg Regeneration Limited Partnership**! -
Bigg Regeneration (General Partner) Limited'
Blueprint Limited Partnership***?
Blueprint (General Partner) Limited?
Blueprint (Naminees) Limited® <
8Boxed Energy Limited™ |
Brooklands Milton Keynes LLP*
Campbell Park Limited?
Cityscape Edinburgh LLP*
East Wick & Sweetwater Pro;ects (Holdmgs) Lid*eer?
East Wick & Sweetwater Finance (Holdings) Lid”
. East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Fmance) Lid?
Globat Habitat Housing SL®
Icknield Port Loop LLPS
. Lakeshore Timber LLP®
Lighthouse Caurt LLP*.
‘Market Asset Management Limited"
Namegrace Limited®
‘Places for People Strategic Land LLP
© PFPUS(IPLYLLP®

Class of ehares held

N/A -
Ordinary A*
N/A

N/A
Ordinary*
N/A

N/A

Ordinary A* ~

N/A -

Ordinary B*
Ordinary* .
AQrdinary*
N/A
Ordinary*

‘N/A ) .
* AQrdinary*/A Preference*

Ordinary*
Ordinary*
Ordinary -
N
N/A

- N/A

" Ordinary*

. Ordinary B
© N/A :

N/A

an;oportinn of pominal .

value of share class held

N/A.
100%
N/A”
N/A .
50%
N/A
N/A
100%
N/A
50%
50% . .
100%
N/A
50%
N/A
100%
50%

© 50% -

50% .
N/A

. N/A

N/A
50%
100%
N/A
N/A

{
Proportion of all share ,
classes :

N/A
5094
N/A
“N/A
:50% -
N/A -
N/A

50%
N/A -
50% -
50%
50%
N/A
50%
N/A
50%
50%
50%

© - 50%

NA
NAA
 N/A
50%
50%
N/A
N/A

<
>
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Notes to the financial statements
Forthe year ending 3 MarchAZjOW
‘28 Disclosure of Group un‘dertakings (continued) A_

.Jaint Venture a_rrangeinents (continued)

Na'me g

Annual Repart

Propartion of hominal Proportian of all share

) Class of shares held - value of share class held classes
PFPUSJVLLP® NA _N/A - NA
PFP US JV (Nominee 1) Limiteds " Ordinary* 50% - . 50%
PFP US Residentiat (Park Hill) Limited® Ordinary* 50% U 50%
Picture Living LP****1*- . "N/A N/A T N/A
PPSL (Keynsham) Limited : - Ordinary* 50% e 50%
Reside Student Living LLP N/A N/A C . N/A
Ruskin Square Phase One LLP'" . N/A N/A ' -~ N/A
Shaping Aberdeen Housing LLP" N/A NA .. N
Shrubhitt NHT LLp® . ’ ©ON/A N/A : N/A
Smith's Dack LLPS ’ . N/A - N/A . i N/A -
South Ridge Development LLP N NA " N/A
Swedish By Design LLP , . NA NJA’ . N/A
Urban Splash (Park Hill) Limited® © - Ordinary* . 50% ' 50%
.Other Graup interests/investments -

" Viridian Concepts Limited' Ordinary*. 5% - 5%
Symlconnect Limited'®  AQrdinary* 100% - 30%
The Vital Spark Incubation Ltd"? Ordinary* 13% . 13%
Ansaar. Management Company (Private) Limited" Ordinary 25% . . 25%

- Tripte Point Sacial Housing REIT plc'™ Ordinary* 3% : 3%
Market Asset Management Limited” Ordinary* - 30% L 30%
Sunamp Limited'® . .. Ordinary L4% y L 1.4%

) Impact Social Value Reporting Limited"? - - Ordinary* 7.5% ' 7.5%
like Homes Holdings.Limiled"‘ Ordinary* ~10% . 10%

*  Shares held by other Group enlities but ulhmalelyheid by the  Group

**  AScottishtimited partnership -
***  Alimited partnership

#*t Alumno Group Limited has mcorporated 3 further ten companies to develap various student snes

Alumno Student Management Limited
Alumno Student (Barn) Limited

8 Alumno Student (Manchester) Limited
Alumno Student (Lewes Road) Limited -
Alumno Student (Park Hill) HoldingsLimited .

- Alumno Student (Alscot) Limited

Alumno Student (Essex) Limited

- Alumno Student (Manchester 2) Lirﬁiled

Alumno Student (Whitelock) Limited
Alumno Sludent (Park Hill) Limited

R East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Holdings) Limited has |ncorporated afurther seven companies to complete the various phases

of the Queen Etizabeth Olympic Park development:.
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 1) Limited
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 3) Limited
-East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 5) Limited -
East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 7) Limited

East Wick & Sweetwater Prajects (Phase 2) Limited

East Wick & Sweetwater Projects (Phase 4) Limited
East Wick & Sweetwater Pro;ects (Phase 6) Limited

v'““'Picture LivingLPisa IG 90 limited partnershlp (10% bemg Group s interest) and the other entities that sit within the overall slructure mclude

. Picture Living GP LLP
Picture Living Investments GP LLP

Picture Living Investments LP
_Picture Living Praperty Limited

Picture Living Trustee 1 Ltd (incorporated in Jersey, 3rd Floor, Liberation House, Castle Street, St Helier, Jersey, JEI IBL)
Picture Living Unitholder Ltd (incorporated in Jersey. 3rd Floor. Liberation Hause, Castle Street, St Helier, Jersey, JB) IBL)

Canal House. I.Apple_cross Street. Glasgow Glo 9SP
First Floar, 48-50 St Mary's Gate, Nottingham NG1 1QA
Office 208, 49 0ld Street, Landon EC1V 9HX ’
- Barratt House, Cartwright Way, Ferest Business Park, Bardon Hill,
Coatville, Leicestershire LES7 IUF .
Timber Wharf, 16-22 Worsley Street, Manchester M15 I.LD
| Hay Avenue, Edinburgh EH16 4RW :
&th Floor, 350 Euston Road, Regent’s Place, Landan NW1 3AX .
Incorporated in Spain with registered address calle Sant Miguel 161
08330 Premia de Mar, Spain
? RMG House, Essex Road; Hoddesdan, Herts EN11 0DR®
19 3} Gresham Street, London EC2V 7QA

T

e ~ b w

Online annual report and accounts www.placasforpenple.co.uk/ahnualraimn

" st Floar, South Marischal College Broad Street Aberdeen ABI10 1AB
2 Marlborough House, Victoria Road South, Chelmsfurd Essex, CM1 1LN
13 £8 Stirling Way, Papworth Everard, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire CB233GY

" % fnstitute of Life Sciences 2, Raom 503, University of Swansea,

Singleton Park, Swansea SA2 8PP
'S 4 Hay Avenue, Edinburgh EH16 4AQ

. % Incorporaled in Pakistan with registered address 3]/10 A,

Abu Bakr Block; New Garden Town, Lahare
7 18 St. Swithin's Lane, London EC4N 8AD
® 1 Satellite Park, Macmerry, Tranent, East Lothian, EH33 IRY
1% 2nd Floor, 24-26 Lever Street, Manchester, M. 1DW )
™ Flaxby Industrial Estate, Knaresbarough, Harrogate; HG5 0X4 .
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28 Disclosure of Group undertakings (continued)
" Regulated'and non-regulated. entities
Places for Peaple Group, a requlated entity, allocates overheads to seven non-regulated entities within the Group. This is mainly in respect
of an administration charge for finance, information technalogy, facilities management and human resources services. BN .
The table below shaws the Group overhead allocation to each of the three enlilies.‘ ) )
L 2019 - 2018’
fm . £m
* Places for People Financial Services Limited ST : . : R AR o ar
Places for People Landscapes Limited . ‘ o . . 0.3 0.3
Places for People Séotland Limited ' : . . B X | 0.1
Touchstone Corporate Praperty Serwces leited R ) ) : - ‘ - 05 0.5
PFPL (Holdings) Limited : . - _' s A K | A e
Zero C Holdings Limited ’ : ’ . . . ' . - 0.2 . 0.2 y\ )
S 13 s e
29 Combinations that are in substance a gift - ’ : " ' S 3
On 26 March 2018 Chorus Homes Group Limited {formerty Luminus Group Limited) joined the Groug, becoming a 100% subsidiary, for nil * i %
- consideration. As such the excess of the fair value of assets received over the fa&r value oHiabllmes assumed has been recugnlsed inthe - g
Statement of Comprehenswe Income. S e
2019 i 2018
. . ) T Em £m -
Fixed Assets ' : T L o : : R © . Fairvalue Fair value
Housing p(oper(iés ' : : ’ ' o - . . - 390.4
Investment property . . N 19.7
Other tangible assets - . S . - : pA
Investments T . o - L — 14.0
, ' - 433.2
Current Assets _ ) ' L
Stock ) : : ) . L C e _ 10.6 -
Debtors o ’ T S Co L R L - .12
Cash athank ) o ' SR . . — 20.4
‘ ' : L - . — 382
Creditors: Amounts f}illing due within one year ol ) : ) . ' (84.4)
C'Eedi.tors; Amounts falling due after more than one year ’ ’ ) L o ) - T (331.2)
Provisions o ’ . . . ) B R 1)
Net Assets B I o ) o ' o - - 467
Additional liability in respect of Derwent Hnusmg Assocnatlon ] S ) . —_ (1.5)

Amount taken in substance as a gift A S . ) o ‘ . - 452
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30 Housing stock .

The Group owns or manages 19212 houslng properties, a hreadeWn of these housmg prapertles is shown below: '

Annual Report’ -

Graup

019 L2018
No. No.
$a£ial_ Housing managed . )

_ — General heeds housing (incl. intermediate rent) - 54,373 54,184
— Affordable housing 2,124 Do1,386
~— Supported housing 1,645 3,273
~ ‘Housing for older people ) 2,154 2,965
— ‘Low cost home ownership accommadation ) . 5,703 5,934

- Tatal Social hnUSing managed §6,019 -66,944
— Markel rent (incl. keyworker accommodallnn) . 25,264 24,180
- — Managed services 83,069 ¢ 75,983

- — Leased housing — freehold enly 6,984 6,851
— Student accommadation 13,424 22,921
— Slaftf . 120 125
Total housing managed 194,880 196,904
Total housing owned but managed by another body 2,832 1,736
Total housing owned ar managed 197,12 |'§8,640
Garages, commercial premises and o(her'hon-residential‘unﬁts managed or serviced 11,315 11,432 .
Total residential and non-residvential uni‘t‘sAmanaged or sgrvicéd 209,027 210,072
As disclosed in the table above, The Group manages 86,019 sacial housing units (2018: 64,844).

Abreakdown of the owned social housing properhes is shown below:

- Social housing
— General needs housing 54,142 54,638
— Affordable housing 2,175 1,381
~ . Supported housing 3,372 3122
~ Housingfor older peaple 2,154 2,065
- Low coslhome ownership accommodation © 5,27 5,382

' 7,114 46,588

Social housmg stock owned

' The Group manages 1, 15 1 soclal housmg residential units (20!8 1,478) which are owned by orher Regvstered Provnders

"The Group owns 2,246 saqal housmg units {2018: 1,222) chat are managed by another body

'

33 Events afterthe reportmg date .

“In May 2019, Places far People Hames acquired 3 10% holding in Ilke Homes Holdmgs Limited for a consideration of £10m.

Online annual report and accounts www.placesfarpeople.co.uk/annualrepart
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Board of dlrectors execuhves and advisors

For the year ending 3! March ZWIP

Board of Birectors

Company Secretary

Registered Office

“Bankers
Registered Auditors -

Registration of the Company

o

Non-executives : )
CPhillips . Group Chairman
M Brodtman '
ACleal .
N Hapkins
G Kitchen ) . S .
L Lackey Senior Independent Director (resigned 1 April 2019)
Jloyd : ‘
J Dixon (resigned 5 June 2018)
AHussain . (appointed 1 November 2018)
G Waddell . Senior Indepeadent Dlrectar {appointment } Sep!ember 2018)
-Executives .
DCowans | Graup Chief Executive
"PEgan - Group Director Atfordable Housing
M Parsons . Group Director Placemaking and Regeneration-
. CRae Group Director Development (resigned 24 May 2019)
- A Winstanley "~ Group Finance Director
CMartin
© 80 Cheapside ° '
* London . . ) .
EC2V 6EE o ' : . o ,

" Barclays Bank Plc

38Fishergate L S .
Preston ' ' :

‘PRY2AD .

KPMG LLP
15 Canada Square

- London
E145GL

The Campany is registered under. the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 (Number L4238)
andincorporated under the Companies Act 2006 (Number 03777037). It is also affiliated ta
the National Housing Federation. ’
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